
MEETING: Full Council
DATE: Thursday, 26 July 2018
TIME: 10.30 am
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

1.  Declarations of Interests  

To receive any declarations of interest of a pecuniary or non-pecuniary nature 
from Members in respect of the items on this agenda.

2.  Suspension of Standing Orders  

To consider suspending Standing Order 13(5) in respect of the following 
presentation only (item 3 refers) insofar as it relates to restrictions on Members 
speaking more than once.

3.  External Annual Governance Report - Presentation  

The Council will receive a presentation from the External Auditor on the External 
Annual Governance Report.

4.  Audit Committee Minutes - 20th July, 2018  (To Follow)

5.  External Audit Annual Governance Report 2017/18  (To Follow)

To consider the External Auditor’s Annual Governance Report for 2017/18.

6.  Final Annual Governance Statement 2017/18  (Pages 7 - 36)

To consider a report of the Chief Executive and Executive Director Core Services 
seeking the approval of the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18. 

7.  Minutes  (Pages 37 - 56)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings of the Council held on 
the 18th May, 2018 (Annual Council) and the 24th May, 2018 (Ordinary meeting).

8.  Communications  

To consider any communications to be submitted by the Mayor or the Chief 
Executive.

9.  Questions by Elected Members  

To consider any questions which may have been received from Elected Members 
and which are asked pursuant to Standing Order No. 11.

10.  Questions relating to Joint Authority, Police and Crime Panel and Combined 
Authority Business  

Minutes of the South Yorkshire Pensions Authority, South Yorkshire Fire 

Public Document Pack



and Rescue Authority, Sheffield City Region Combined Authority, and 
Police and Crime Panel

Any Member of the Council shall have the opportunity to comment on any matters 
referred to in the following minutes.

The relevant representatives shall then be given the opportunity to respond to any 
comments made by Members on those minutes.

11.  Police and Crime Panel (Annual Meeting) - 4th June, 2018  (Pages 57 - 68)

12.  Police and Crime Panel - 2nd July, 2018  (Pages 69 - 78)

13.  South Yorkshire Pensions Authority (Annual) (Draft) - 7th June, 2018  (Pages 79 - 
82)

14.  South Yorkshire Pensions Authority (Ordinary) (Draft) - 7th June, 2018  (Pages 83 
- 90)

15.  Sheffield City Region Combined Authority (Draft) - 11th June, 2018  (Pages 91 - 
100)

16.  South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority (Annual) (Draft) - 25th June, 2018  
(Pages 101 - 108)

17.  South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority (Ordinary) (Draft) - 25th June, 2018  
(Pages 109 - 124)

Minutes of the Regulatory Boards

18.  Planning Regulatory Board - 22nd May, 2018  (Pages 125 - 128)

19.  Audit Committee - 6th June, 2018  (Pages 129 - 136)

20.  Planning Regulatory Board - 26th June, 2018  (Pages 137 - 138)

21.  Audit Committee (Special Meeting) - 2nd July, 2018  (Pages 139 - 142)

22.  General Licensing Panel - Various  (Pages 143 - 146)

23.  Appeals, Awards and Standards - Various  (Pages 147 - 152)

Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board

24.  Health and Wellbeing Board - 5th June, 2018  (Pages 153 - 158)

Minutes of the Scrutiny Committees

25.  Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5th June, 2018  (Pages 159 - 162)

26.  Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 19th June, 2018  (Pages 163 - 166)



Minutes of the Area Councils

27.  Central Area Council - 14th May, 2018  (Pages 167 - 172)

28.  Dearne Area Council - 14th May, 2018  (Pages 173 - 176)

29.  North Area Council - 14th May, 2018  (Pages 177 - 180)

30.  North East Area Council - 31st May, 2018  (Pages 181 - 184)

31.  Penistone Area Council - 7th June, 2018  (Pages 185 - 192)

32.  South Area Council - 15th June, 2018  (Pages 193 - 196)

33.  Appointments to Regulatory Boards and Outside Bodies  

To consider the following appointments to Regulatory Boards and Outside 
Bodies:

Planning Regulatory Board

Proposed – Councillor Kitching

General Licensing Regulatory Board 

Proposed - Councillor Newing

Statutory Licensing Regulatory Board

Proposed – Councillor Newing

Appeals, Awards and Standards Regulatory Board

Proposed – Councillor Newing

Sheffield City Region Combined Authority Scrutiny Committee and Audit and 
Standards Committee

Proposed – Councillor Richardson to fill an existing vacancy together with up to 
six substitute members (Elected Members)

Schools Forum

Proposed – Cabinet Support Member for People (Achieving Potential)

Shaw Lands Trust

Proposed – vacancy (one Elected Member)

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education

Proposed – vacancy (Elected Member)



Corporate Parenting Panel

Proposed – Councillor Lofts and Burgess to replace Councillors Shepherd and 
Williams

Adoption Panel

Proposed – vacancy (Elected Member)

34.  Minor Amendments to the Council's Constitution  (Pages 197 - 200)

The Council will consider a report of the Executive Director Core Services 
proposing certain minor amendments to the Council’s Constitution.

Recommendations to Council

All reports detailed below are subject to Cabinet recommendation and are 
available to download from the Council’s website.  The Cabinet Spokesperson for 
the Service in question will respond to any comments or amendments concerning 
these minutes.

35.  Council Nominations To The Berneslai Homes Board (Cab.2.7.2018/6)  (Pages 
201 - 204)

RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL: that approval be given to the nomination of 
Councillors Coates and Pourali to the Berneslai Homes Board.

36.  Registration of Members Interests/Code of Conduct – Response to Audit Report 
(Cab.11.7.2018/7)  (Pages 205 - 220)

RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL

(i) that the recommendations arising from the Internal Audit review of the 
Registration of Member Interests be noted;

(ii) that the revised Member Code of Conduct, amended in the light of the 
review as outlined in Section 4 of the report and attached at Appendix 1, 
be approved; and

(iii) that forms for the Registration of Gifts and Hospitality and for the 
Declaration of Relationships, as set out at Appendices 2 and 3 
respectively, be approved.

Minutes of the Cabinet Meetings

37.  Cabinet Meeting - 16th May, 2018  (Pages 221 - 224)

38.  Cabinet Meeting - 30th May, 2018  (Pages 225 - 228)

39.  Cabinet Meeting - 13th June, 2018  (Pages 229 - 234)



40.  Cabinet Meeting - 2nd July, 2018  (Pages 235 - 236)

(NB. No Cabinet decisions have been called in from these meetings)

Schedule of Declarations - copy attached

Diana Terris
Chief Executive

Wednesday, 18 July 2018



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the 
Executive Director of Core Services

FULL COUNCIL – 26th July 2018

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017 / 18

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To consider and approve the Annual Governance Statement for 2017 / 18, attached as Appendix 
One to this report.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Full Council are asked to consider and approve the Annual Governance Statement for 
2017/18.

3. Background

3.1 The process and guidance that underpins the Annual Governance Review (AGR) for 2017 / 18 was 
considered by the Audit Committee on 17th January 2018, and the Committee Members were given 
the opportunity to comment on these arrangements prior to the AGR commencing with officers.

3.2 The draft Annual Governance Statement was considered by the Audit Committee on 6th June 2018.

4. The Annual Governance Statement 2017 / 18

4.1 The AGS is attached as Appendix One to this report. The statement outlines the following:

i. The purpose of the Governance Framework;
ii. The Governance and Internal Control Framework;
iii. The process of annually reviewing the effectiveness of the Governance and Internal Control 

Framework; and,
iv. Identifying development and improvement opportunities arising from the Annual Governance 

Review, to be addressed in 2018 / 19.

5. Review Process

5.1 The AGS is an important document as it is one form of providing assurances to residents and other 
stakeholders, including the Councils partners, that its decision making processes and procedures 
have integrity.

5.2 In order to ensure the AGS Action Plan contain relevant and significant governance issues, the 
following criteria have been applied when considering and determining if an issue is significant:

 It has seriously prejudiced or prevented the achievement of the Authority’s objectives; 
 It has resulted in the need to seek additional funding to allow it to be resolved, or has 

resulted in significant diversion of resources from another aspect of the business;
 It has led to a material impact in the accounts;
 It is identified in the Head of Internal Audit’s report;

Page 7

Item 6



2

 The Authority requires progress / action reports;
 It has attracted media or public attention and has seriously affected the reputation of the 

Authority; and / or,
 It has resulted in formal action by the Treasurer or Monitoring Officer.

5.3. An action plan has been prepared to capture the issues raised throughout the review process. This 
document will form the basis for Audit Committee monitoring throughout the year. The action plan is 
attached as Appendix One to the AGS itself. An update of the action plan will be reported to the 
Audit Committee throughout the year ahead.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising through the preparation and publication of the
Council’s Annual Governance Statement.

6.2 However, the draft statement includes an assessment as to the extent to which the Council’s 
financial and other internal control related procedures are being complied with.

7. Risk Management Considerations

7.1 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy forms one of the key elements of the Council’s Internal
Control Framework.

8. Consultations

8.1 The statement was developed through a comprehensive evaluation process which has included 
input from the Council’s Corporate Assurance Group and the Council’s Senior Management Team 
(SMT).

9. List of Appendices

9.1 Appendix One: Annual Governance Statement 2017 / 18 plus 2018 / 19 Action Plan

10. Background Papers

10.1 Previous Audit Committee reports covering the monitoring of the 2017 / 18 AGS Action Plan, the 
Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance and the Council’s Annual Governance Review 
Process 2016 / 17.

Contact Officer: Risk and Governance Manager
Telephone: 01226 77 3119
Date: 17th July 2018

 

Page 8



3

B A R N S L E Y  M E T R O P O L I T A N  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017 / 18

1. Scope of Responsibility

1.1 Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and all relevant standards, and that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for.

1.2 The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of 
economy, effectiveness and efficiency.

1.3 In discharging this overall requirement, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, 
which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

1.4 The council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent 
with the principles of the CIPFA / SOLACE framework detailed in their report ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government (2016 Edition)’ insofar as the Council will:

Principle A. Behave with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and 
respect the rule of law;

Principle B. Ensure openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;

Principle C. Define outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental 
benefits;

Principle D. Determine the intervention necessary to optimise the achievement of intended 
outcomes;

Principle E. Develop the entities capacity, including the capacity of its leadership and the 
individuals within it;

Principle F. Manage risk and performance through robust internal controls and strong public 
financial management; and,

Principle G. Implementing good practice in transparency, reporting and audit to deliver 
effective accountability.

1.5 A copy of the Councils recently revised Local Code of Corporate Governance can be found on the 
Councils Document Store. This document was considered and approved by the Councils Audit 
Committee at their meeting dated 17th January 2018.

2. Purpose of the Governance Framework

2.1 The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the 
Council is directed and controlled. It also includes the activities through which it is accountable to, 

Page 9

http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s29203/Annual%20Governance%20Review%20Process%20201718.pdf


4

engages with and leads the community. It enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its 
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, 
cost effective services.

2.2 The system of governance and internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risks relating to the failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurances regarding overall effectiveness.  The system of governance and internal control is 
based on an ongoing process of risk review, designed to identify and prioritise risks to the 
achievement Council policies, aims and objectives and to evaluate the likelihood and potential 
impact of those risks being realised. It is then a case of managing and mitigating risks to reasonable 
levels in an efficient, effective and economic manner.

3. The Governance Framework

3.1 The scope of the governance and internal control framework spans the whole range of Council 
activities. The following sections consider the various main components of the Councils governance 
framework and the activities within each of them. Within the Annual Governance Statement, job 
roles, titles and organisational structures reflect the Councils arrangements during 2017 / 18.

Page 10



5

4. Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and 
respecting the rule of law.

4.1 Behaving with Integrity

4.1.1 Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council (BMBC) has developed an organisational culture that is 
based on the principles of the ‘Future Council’. The journey towards Future Council began in 2013, 
and is intended to shape the organisation into a customer focused, modern, efficient and business 
minded Council. 

4.1.2 Since 2013 there has been large scale innovation and improvements in the ways the Council works. 
This includes communities changing, with more people getting involved and helping in their local 
areas. Organisationally, we are stronger, more customer focused and more sustainable in the face 
of increasing pressures and reducing budgets.  

4.1.3 In the next few years the Council will focus on long term issues including driving growth, helping the 
people most in need and helping local communities to thrive. This focus on long term planning will 
assist the Council in understanding and respond to future challenges, such as: 

 Driving growth – investments to support changes and growth in high priority areas like our 
town centre development and motorway junction business parks;

 Early help - giving people the help they need as early as possible and supporting 
communities and residents to do more for themselves;

 Communities working together – recognising our community assets when we plan, design 
and deliver;

 Brexit - making the most of Brexit and managing any challenges;
 Technology – a digitally confident council and community, maximising the opportunities that 

technology brings; and,
 Improvement and growth fund – driving change through investment and innovation.

4.1.4 Although financial austerity is very much a challenge for the Council, the opportunities to grow, to do 
things differently and to use new technology are really positive. The Council is tighter, stronger and 
more efficient, and these plans will ensure the Council continues with the progress that has already 
made in creating a thriving and vibrant economy, helping people to achieve their potential and 
developing strong, resilient communities.

  
4.1.5 There are a number of activities that the Council continues to focus on the assist in changing the 

way we work:

 Clear Vision and Values – we have developed these together and they define what we are 
trying to achieve in our communities and for our customers; 

 Customer Focus – we will understand all of our customer needs, and put them at the heart 
of everything we do;

 Commercial and Business Acumen – we will focus on outcomes and making every penny 
count, removing bureaucracy and running the organisation really well for our customers and 
residents;

 Efficient Delivery of Projects and Programmes – we have strengthened and standardised 
our approach to and we are better at working together to ensure accountability and value for 
money;

Page 11

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/future-council/future-council-2020/


6

 Innovative and Managed Risk Taking – we will remove barriers to change, encourage, 
support and empower our employees to develop great new ideas and implement 
improvements;

 Learning Organisation – we will invest in our employees, recognise success and 
achievement and become stronger from our mistakes;

 Leaders at every Level – we will have leaders at every level of the organisation who are 
highly skilled, and able to inspire and empower their teams to respond effectively to local 
needs;

 Flexible Workforce – we will ensure our employees are healthy, agile, skilled and flexible 
so that we can continue to meet our customers changing needs;

 Working with our Partners, Communities and Residents – we will work better together to 
identify and meet local needs by joining up our work, and playing to our different strengths;

 Enabling Organisation – we will enable our partners, communities and residents to do 
more for themselves, rather than stepping in where we are not needed or where others can 
do something better than we can.

4.1.6 The Councils four main values, detailed in the Councils Performance Management Arrangements 
are as follows:

 We are Proud;

 We are Honest;

 We will be Excellent; and,

 We are a Team.

4.1.7 BMBC has a Whistleblowing Policy which forms an element of the Councils Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption arrangements.  The Whistleblowing Policy is supported by two senior managers who are 
designated contact officers. The Councils Audit Committee oversees the effectiveness of these 
arrangements on a regular basis. The Councils Internal Audit Section, as well as having a role in 
investigating matters brought to its attention also takes the lead in promoting preventative 
measures.

4.2 Demonstrating a strong commitment to Ethical Values

4.2.1 BMBC has a Member Panel in place to consider any allegations of misconduct, where the 
Monitoring Officer determines the need to undertake a formal investigation. The Monitoring Officer 
exercises their judgement in consultation with three independent persons who have been appointed 
as part of the Localism Act. This panel comprises three Elected Members chosen from those 
Members who comprise the Appeals, Awards and Standards Panel by the Monitoring officer, in 
consultation with the Chairperson of the Panel. The majority of members are selected from a 
political group different to that of the member who is the subject of the complaint.

4.2.2 The Council has developed and adopted formal Codes of Conduct which define the standards for 
both personal and professional behaviour for Elected Members and officers. Formal induction 
training packages have been developed for Members and officers that include mandatory training 
regarding areas such as information governance and financial and procurement responsibilities. 
Both Elected Members and officers are required to register relevant interests as required by law, 
and by the relevant Code of Conduct. The Council maintains a Register of Councillor Interests, as 
Councillors are obliged to keep their registration up to date and inform the Monitoring Officer of any 

Page 12

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-performance/how-we-measure-our-performance/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/advice-benefits-and-council-tax/council-tax/benefit-fraud/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/advice-benefits-and-council-tax/council-tax/benefit-fraud/
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=219
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34252/Role%20and%20Functions%20of%20Head%20of%20Paid%20Service%20Monitoring%20Officer%20and%20Chief%20Finance%20Officer.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=259
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s29541/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Elected%20Members.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34251/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20all%20Employees.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1


7

changes within 28 days of the relevant event. The need for disclosure of any conflicts of interest is a 
standard agenda items at all Council meetings. Standing Orders have been amended to require a 
member to withdraw where they have a disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by law.

4.3 Respecting the Rule of Law

4.3.1 The Council has designated the Executive Director of Core Services as the Monitoring Officer. It is 
the function of the Monitoring Officer to ensure compliance with established policies, procedures, 
laws and regulations and to oversee its arrangements in respect of ethical standards complaints.

4.3.2 The Executive Director of Core services attends, or is represented by a senior lawyer at all meetings 
of the Cabinet and Council. A senior lawyer is always in attendance at meetings of the Planning 
Regulation Board and Licensing Regulatory Board and as a clerk to any Appeal meetings.

4.3.3 All decision making reports take account of a number of control factors, including risks, legal 
considerations and financial, policy and performance implications. The Councils Senior 
Management Team (SMT) reviews all significant reports prior to them being included on the Cabinet 
agenda and discusses forthcoming Cabinet agenda a week prior to the meeting to address any 
particular issues arising or outstanding in respect of the specific report on the agenda. Any 
decisions taken by Cabinet members under their delegated powers are subject to prior scrutiny by 
SMT.

4.3.4 All Cabinet decisions are subject to scrutiny by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

4.3.5 All documents that require execution by the Executive Director of Core Services require evidence of 
appropriate authority; either via a decision made by an Elected Member or delegated approval prior 
to being executed.

4.3.6 Legal implications regarding consultation and statutory quality obligations are addressed specifically 
as part of the Councils budget setting process. The Monitoring Officer and the Service Director 
(Finance) who acts as the Section 151 Officer are aware of the statutory duties to report in respect 
of concerns and unauthorised activity or expenditure and consult with each other periodically in 
relation to their complementary statutory roles.

4.3.7 There is a periodic review of decision making and ‘authority to act’ through the role of the Internal 
Audit and where appropriate, by external regulators such as the Information Commissioner, the 
Surveillance Commissioner and the Local Government Ombudsman.

Page 13

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/business-information/tenders-and-contracts/procurement-policies/
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=135
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=133
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=136
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=136
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=220
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-management-team/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-management-team/
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=224
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/6030/roles-functions-head-of-paid-service-monitoring-officer-and-chief-finance-officer.pdf
https://ico.org.uk/
https://www.ipco.org.uk/
https://www.lgo.org.uk/


8

5. Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

5.1 Openness

5.1.1 The Council Constitution sets out how the Council operates regarding how decisions are made and 
the procedures that are followed to ensure that these rules are efficient, effective, transparent and 
accountable to local people. The Constitution sets out rules governing the manner in which the 
Council conducts its business.

5.1.2 The constitution includes the Scheme of Delegation whereby functions and decision making 
responsibilities are allocated between the Full Council, the Cabinet, individual Cabinet Members, 
Regulatory Boards, Committees and officers.

5.1.3 The Councils Officer Code of Conduct and Member Code of Conduct encourages the effective 
transaction of business by setting out the respective roles of members and officers and provides 
guidelines for good working relationships between them. 

5.1.4 A limited number of items of business, such as approving the level of Council Tax must be approved 
by the Full Council. For other decisions, the Leader and Cabinet Members hold decision making 
powers through the Cabinet where each Member of the Cabinet holds a portfolio which supports the 
priorities and structures of Future Council.

5.1.5 In order to comply with the Governments Local Government Transparency Code we make sure that 
local people can see and access data regarding:

 How we spend our money;
 How we use Council assets; 
 How we make decisions; and,
 Those issues that are important to local people.

5.2 Engaging comprehensively with Institutional Stakeholders

5.2.1 When working in partnership with others, the existence of sound governance arrangements helps to 
ensure that shared goals are achieved and resources are controlled in an effective manner.

5.2.2 The Local Strategic Partnership, One Barnsley has benefitted from two key partnership bodies, the 
Health and Wellbeing Board (which has focused on the delivery health and wellbeing strategies) 
and the Barnsley Economic Partnership (which has focused on the delivery of economic and 
regeneration strategies). The emphasis for these partnership arrangements has been to ensure 
partner agencies actively contribute towards, and are responsible for the delivery of shared 
outcomes for Barnsley, rather than servicing and attending meetings.

5.2.3 Council officers and Councillors are nominated as Council representatives within or when dealing 
with significant partnering organisations. Partners are encouraged where appropriate to align their 
objectives with the Councils ambitions to ensure a robust contribution to the delivery of high quality, 
efficient and effective services that are in accordance with the arrangements of the Council.

5.2.4 A practical Partnership Governance Framework has been designed to assist Partnership Lead 
Officers provide suitable assurances that the partnership is making a valuable contribution to the 
Council’s objectives and priorities, and is a well governed and controlled relationship. The 
development of this document has been driven by the outcomes of previous Annual Governance 

Page 14

http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13273
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD250&ID=250&RPID=1966266
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgExecPostDetails.aspx?ID=149
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/future-council/future-council-2020/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=143
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/mgOutsideBodyDetails.aspx?ID=299


9

Reviews and is intended to recognise the role and responsibilities of Service Directors (where 
relevant) in terms of their accountabilities as part of normal working practices, where the 
requirement for a useable and proportionate framework is required. 

5.2.5 The Sheffield City Region (SCR) benefits from its own governance arrangements that are supported 
by BMBC. Internal control support functions such as meetings administration, human resourcing, 
health and safety and internal audit are delivered to the SCR via a service level agreement.

5.3 Engaging with individual Citizens and Service Users more effectively

5.3.1 All Councillors must be accountable to their communities for the decisions that they have taken and 
the rationale behind them. Barnsley Council is subject to external review through external auditing 
of financial statements and performance management outcomes against national standards and 
targets.

5.3.2 Councillors and officers are both subject to code of conducts. Additionally, where maladministration 
may have occurred, the aggrieved person may wish to appeal through their local Councillor or 
directly to the Local Government Ombudsman.

5.3.3 The Council has numerous arrangements in place to communicate with its customers and wider 
stakeholders, including the use of social email such as Facebook and Twitter.  The Area Council 
and Ward Alliance arrangements also encourage community involvement, engagement and 
participation.

5.3.4 Whilst the journey to become a more customer focused, modern, efficient and business minded 
Council began in 2013 with the inception of the ‘Future Council’ model, there has been significant 
progress made in 2017 / 18 in terms of the delivery of new, improved ways of working, which are 
detailed in the Councils Corporate Plan 2017 – 2020. These include:

 A genuine focus on customers by putting them at the heart of what we do;
 A re-shaped organisation, designed to deliver what we have promised;
 New, innovative ways of working that deliver sustainable services; and,
 More people getting involved locally, making their communities stronger.

Page 15

https://sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/
https://www.facebook.com/BarnsleyCouncil/
https://twitter.com/BarnsleyCouncil?ref_src=twsrc%5Egoogle%7Ctwcamp%5Eserp%7Ctwgr%5Eauthor
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-corporate-plan/


10

6. Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental 
benefits.

6.1 Defining outcomes

6.1.1 The Council has identified the following priorities or outcomes, which are detailed in the Corporate 
Plan 2017 – 2020:

 Thriving and Vibrant Economy:
We are investing to build Barnsleys economy to achieve the following outcomes:
 Create more and better jobs and good business growth;
 Increase skills to get more people working;
 Develop a vibrant Town Centre;
 Strengthen our visitor economy; and,
 Create more and better housing.

 People Achieving their Potential:
We are creating a healthier, safer and better educated population to achieve the following 
outcomes:
 Every child attends a good school and is successful in learning and work;
 Reducing demand through access to early help;
 Children and adults are safe from harm; and,
 People are healthier, happier, independent and active.

 Strong and Resilient Communities:
We are helping people get the most out of where they live now and in the future to achieve 
the following outcomes:
 People volunteering and contributing towards stronger communities;
 Protecting the Borough for future generations by recycling and using renewable 

energy; and,
 Customers can contact us easily and use more services online.

6.1.2 The progress made towards these outcomes are detailed in the Council’s Performance 
Management reports which include a ‘RAG’ rating against each outcome, and a detailed narrative 
against each individual area of activity.

6.1.3 The Councils Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) supports the delivery of the Councils key 
outcomes and underpins the development of individual business and service delivery plans, and is 
currently designed to ensure the sustainable delivery of services to 2020. The MTFS identifies a 
number of key assumptions and constraints that are regularly tested to ensure they remain robust 
and accurate. Each Business Plan also considers issues such as finances, workforce and equalities 
to ensure appropriate risks are identified and mitigated to acceptable levels. Under Section 25 of the 
Local Government Act 2003 the Council is required to report on the robustness of estimates made 
for the purposes of setting budgets, and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, which is 
discharged via the annual reporting of the Councils Statement of Accounts.

 
6.1.4 The MTFS also includes a brief section which considers the financial implications relating to 

relationships with key partners.

Page 16

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/7751/corporate-plan-report-q3-2017-18.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/7751/corporate-plan-report-q3-2017-18.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s32326/201819%20Budget%20Setting%20and%20Minimum%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20-%20Update.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-performance/annual-accounts/


11

6.2 Sustainable Economic, Social and Environmental Benefits

6.2.1 The Council ensures that it considers the impact of its decisions in terms of economic, social and 
environmental consequences and requires all decision making reports to include an appropriate 
analysis of issues such as financial implications, health and safety, consultation, implications for 
local people / service user, risk management, equality and inclusion and social inclusion. Reports 
are also required to provide assurances regarding the impact the decision may have on the 
Councils Corporate Plan and Performance Management arrangements.

6.2.2 The Council has an Equality and Diversity Policy which sets out the Councils commitment, together 
with the specific responsibilities of employees, managers and Elected Members in implementing the 
policy and meeting our Public Sector Equality duties. Furthermore, the Councils Equality Scheme 
sets out how the policy and Public sector Equality duties are put into practice.

Page 17

http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s11360/Report%20Writing%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/accessibility/equality-and-diversity/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/equality-act-2010-guidance
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/5980/equality-scheme-2012-15.pdf


12

7. Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of 
intended outcomes.

7.1 Determining Outcomes

7.1.1 The Council ensures its decision makers are able to make informed and evidence-based decisions 
through the development of objective decision making reports that include an analysis of available 
options (including a ‘preferred’ option) and considers the potential financial, resource and risk 
implications of any decisions that are to be made.

7.1.2 In order to honour its commitment to seek feedback and opinion from its stakeholders, the Council 
has a dedicated ‘Tell us what you Think’ campaign, which is designed to elicit feedback relating to a 
number of Council services. The Council values feedback from out stakeholders and considers all 
comments and suggestions that have been made.

7.2 Planning Interventions

7.2.1 In terms of strategic planning, the Council has benefitted from two thematic Boards, which have 
been comprised of partners from across the Borough who have an interest in delivering the 
outcomes associated with the thematic Board:

 Health and Wellbeing Board – Terms of reference included agreeing Health and Wellbeing 
related strategies and working with all relevant organisations to join up health and social 
care across the Borough. The Board was made up of Elected Members and officers of the 
Council, representatives from Barnsleys Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and other 
health providers, as well as the local HealthWatch, which represents the interests of patients 
and service users. Representatives from other organisations that have an impact on Health 
and Wellbeing, such as South Yorkshire Police have also attended these meetings; and,

 Barnsley Economic Partnership – The Barnsley Economic Partnership (BEP) brought 
together a group of high levels influential people from the public and private sectors with the 
skills and experience to assist with the delivery of the Jobs and Business Plan for Barnsley. 
The BEP looked to contribute towards the rebalancing of the economy by stimulating private 
sector job growth through enterprise, business growth and inward investment.

 
7.2.2 The effectiveness of interventions is considered and assessed as part of the Councils Performance 

Management arrangements. Performance Reports include a brief narrative relating to the activities 
and outputs of the Health and Wellbeing Board and BEP.

7.3 Optimising the achievement of Intended Outcomes

7.3.1 The Councils activities are considered at a strategic level through the development of the Councils 
MTFS and complementary Service and Financial planning arrangements. These set out the context 
in which the Council operates in terms of significant financial pressures arising from ongoing 
austerity measures and changes to local government funding arrangements. They also attempt to 
ensure that the activities of the Council and its key partners are aligned and that appropriate 
resources are in place to enable the delivery of intended outcomes.

7.3.2 The Council has developed an Efficiency Plan which seeks to outline the framework that is in place 
to ensure that it is a self-sustaining, evolving organisation that will deliver against the MTFS, in spite 
of reducing resources. This is complemented by the Councils Future Council 2020 Plan which has 

Page 18

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/5023/jobs-and-business-plan-2014-2017.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?Id=835
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/future-council/future-council-2020/


13

set out the journey towards a more modern, efficient and business minded organisation through 
planned change, improvement and growth. In response to austerity measures, the Council has 
made £87M efficiency savings up to 2017. Over the next three years the Council has £15M more 
efficiencies to realise and an income target of £36M to achieve by 2020. In order to maintain a 
balanced , sustainable budget in the context of these challenges and to achieve our Future Council 
aspirations we have developed a Commercial Strategy.

7.3.3 The Council procures a variety of goods and services in accordance with EU, UK and local 
regulations, which are set out in the Councils Procurement Policies.

7.3.4 In terms of social value the Council has developed a policy / statement during 2017 / 18 which will 
be launched across the organisation during 2018 / 19. It is envisaged that Social Value will be 
embedded into the procurement process and evaluation. 

Page 19

https://homel.barnsley.gov.uk/Finance/Pages/Commercial-strategy.aspx
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/business-information/tenders-and-contracts/procurement-policies/


14

8. Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and 
individuals within it.

8.1 Developing Organisational Capacity

8.1.1   The Organisational Improvement Strategy 2017-2020 sets out plans for the future to ensure that the 
Council is efficient, effective and in the best position possible to support the achievement of its 
priorities and to meet customer needs and expectations.  Building on progress and improvements 
already made as a result of the implementation of the Future Council Strategy 2014-2017, the new 
strategy is built around our ten One Council priorities and focuses on four key areas of 
improvement.  These areas of improvement will enable us to continue to drive forward changes at a 
pace to ensure we meet the demands required of a modern Council.  The areas of improvement 
are:

 Culture and behaviour change – Continue to build and develop a healthy and positive 
organisational culture to ensure we are a customer focused, modern, efficient and business 
minded Future Council;

 Efficient and effective processes and technology – Ensure our processes and 
procedures are reflective of a modern Council and provide efficiency and value for money as 
well as supporting creativity and innovation.  Provide reliable and efficient technology to 
mobilise our workforce and members and enable better and more efficient ways of working; 

 Agile, healthy and engaged workforce – Ensure our workforce is healthy, resilient and 
able to work flexibly to meet the needs and expectations of our customers.  Ensure our 
employees and members are engaged, motivated, empowered, able to share ideas and get 
involved in decision making to shape the future organisation; and,

 Developing the skills of our workforce and Elected Members – Ensure that our 
employees, members and wider workforce take ownership for their own learning and 
development and have the right skills, knowledge and behaviours to perform effectively in 
their role, to support achievement of our priorities and plans and to meet our customers’ 
needs and expectations.

8.1.2   Performance is monitored by the Organisational Improvement Board against the One Council 
priorities to ensure we are making sufficient progress and improvements.

8.1.3 A number of service areas make use of benchmarking opportunities to measure performance and 
consider and compare outputs and outcomes against resource inputs such as financial and human 
resources to ensure the Council is delivering efficient and effective value for money services.

8.2 Developing the Capability of the Organisations Leadership and other Individuals

8.2.1   A robust performance framework has been developed aligned to the priorities and outcomes 
included in our Corporate Plan. Performance for all areas of the Council is measured on a quarterly 
basis and progress reported into Cabinet. Areas of performance are subject to further scrutiny 
through the Councils Overview and Scrutiny Commission.

8.2.2    Individuals are able to identify how they contribute to the council’s priorities and objectives through 
business plans, team plans and individual performance objectives set during the annual 
Performance Development Review (PDR) process. Progress against these objectives are reviewed 

Page 20

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/4264/corporate-plan-2017-20.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/4264/corporate-plan-2017-20.pdf


15

regularly throughout the year at one-to-one and supervision meetings and quarterly against the 
performance framework. Personal development requirements are also identified and discussed at 
PDR, one-to-one and / or supervision meetings to ensure individuals are able to achieve their 
potential and contribute to the delivery of the Councils priorities.

8.2.3   The Barnsley Leadership Programme continues to develop the leadership skills and behaviours of 
Council leaders with over 450 completing the programme to-date and a further 165 due to complete 
this year/early next year. The programme is linked to the Chartered Management Institute 
Certificate in Leadership and Management enabling employees to formalise their skills with an 
accredited professional qualification if they wish to do so.

8.2.6    A corporate development offer has been available to all employees to develop their skills for now 
and the future. Key focus areas for this development include developing digital skills, commercial 
awareness and a practical approach to using coaching conversations to support and encourage 
people to be the best that they can be.

8.2.7    Effective two-way communication between employees and the organisation is enabled through 
regular activities including employee surveys and employee engagement events 
(‘Talkabouts’). These provide employees with an opportunity to raise concerns, share ideas and get 
involved with decision making and improvements to shape the future organisation.

8.2.8 A Corporate Health and Safety Committee, chaired by the Head of Corporate Health, Safety and 
Emergency Resilience is in place and includes membership from a number of employee 
representatives. The committee meets on a regular basis, and includes within its terms of reference 
the following activities:

 Consideration of accident and incident statistics;
 Consideration of occupational health statistics;
 Health and Safety Audit Reports;
 The development, introduction and monitoring of health and safety management systems;
 The effectiveness of health and safety training; and,
 The adequacy of safety and health communication and publicity within the workplace.

Page 21



16

9. Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 
public financial management.

9.1 Managing Risk

9.1.1 The Councils Risk Management Framework (RMF) positions risk management as not being about 
eliminating risk, or being risk averse, but about being aware and managing acceptable levels of risk 
in the pursuit of agreed objectives. The RMF includes the Policy Objectives Statement and the Risk 
Management Strategy, which sets out how the Council will seek to embed this approach to risk into 
its normal business activities through the ongoing development of a positive risk management 
culture. The RMF, including the Policy Objective Statement and the Risk Management Strategy are 
key elements in the implementation of good governance arrangements and form key elements of 
the Councils own Annual Governance Review (AGR) process.

9.1.2 The Councils Strategic Risk Register (SRR) is intended to be a robust and dynamic document that 
sets out the culture and tone for risk management across and throughout the Council. The 
engagement of SMT in the risk management process through their ownership and review of the 
SRR demonstrates a strong commitment to lead and champion risk management ‘from the top’ and 
to further reinforce the continuing development of a positive risk management culture. The risks in 
the SRR are owned by SMT, with the management of individual risks being allocated to a Risk 
Manager (being a member of SMT), and measures to mitigate risks are allocated to Risk Mitigation 
Action Managers (being those senior managers best placed to take responsibility to drive the 
implementation of those actions). The SRR is subject to regular six-monthly review, the outcomes of 
which are reported to the Audit Committee, and subsequently, Cabinet.

9.1.3 Individual Business Units benefit from maintaining Operational Risk Registers (ORR) which relate to 
the key risks to the provision of Council services. These risk registers are aligned to individual 
Business Unit Business Plans. Service Directors are asked to review these risk registers on a bi-
annual basis, and following each review there is an expectation that ‘red’ risks (in terms of ‘current’ 
and ‘target’ risk assessments) are escalated to Business Unit Management Teams for further 
consideration.

9.1.4 Risk management is an essential part of the Councils decision making report structure, and it is 
expected that all decision making reports include a section on the risk implications of the decision in 
hand.

9.2 Managing Performance

9.2.1 The Council measures its performance against the key priorities and outcomes included in the 
Corporate Plan 2018 – 2020. To assess progress and performance against these priorities and 
outcomes, along with performance against individual service objectives, a performance 
management framework has been developed which consists of three elements:

1. Corporate Plan Priorities;
2. Corporate Health of the Organisation; and,
3. Directorate Performance.

9.2.2 Each quarter, the Council produces a performance report, summarising the performance against the 
priorities and outcomes.

Page 22

http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s19511/Risk%20Management%20Framework%20Review.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s27987/Strategic%20Risk%20Register%20-%20Full%20Review%202017.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/7751/corporate-plan-report-q3-2017-18.pdf


17

9.2.3 Through effective contract management, the Council is also able to identify and assess the 
performance of its partners and contractual relationships.

9.3 Effective Overview and Scrutiny

9.3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) is responsible for reviewing and challenging the 
decisions made by the Councils Cabinet and Executive Officers. The committee meets once per 
month and consists of 26 Councillors, 3 members of the public (referred to as co-opted members) 
and a Parent Governor Representative. It monitors the work and performance of the Council as well 
as other organisations such as local healthcare providers, to ensure the effective delivery of local 
services and that appropriate safeguarding arrangements are in place to protect vulnerable adults 
and children in the Borough. The Committee also sets up smaller ‘Task and Finish’ groups, which 
supports the work of the Committee by undertaking more detailed investigations on specific topics.

9.4 Robust Internal Control

9.4.1 The Councils system of internal controls are designed to support the achievement of corporate 
objectives and outcomes whilst ensuring that there is an appropriate level of compliance in terms of 
laws, regulations and internal arrangements. The internal control framework acts as robust control 
measure against risks such as loss of assets, fraud, misuse of equipment and the misuse of data 
and information.

9.4.2 The Council benefits from a suite of policies in respect of counter fraud and corruption activities, 
including a Whistleblowing Policy, anti-Money Laundering Policy and an anti-Bribery Policy.

9.4.3 The Councils Audit Committee is made up of four Elected Members and five independent people, 
who are not councillors. It ensures that the Council is complying with it rules and regulations for 
governance and finance, including the value for money of Council services.

9.5 Managing Data

9.5.1   The Council has information governance accountabilities that are required to be in place in 
accordance with legislation and accreditation standards such as the Information Governance toolkit 
and Public Services Network accreditation. The Information Governance Toolkit is in use by the 
Council and is an online self-assessment tool used for publishing the standards of practice 
organisations must comply with regarding information governance. 

9.5.2   Information Governance arrangements within the Council are based on the 8 Data Protection 
Principles and these are overseen by the Councils Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO), which is 
a role undertaken by the Executive Director of Core Services. The SIRO also chairs the Councils 
Information Governance Board, which takes the lead in the development of policies, procedures, 
training arrangements and lessons learned from previous information governance incidents.

9.5.3   The Council is increasingly managing, storing and maintaining personal data and information as 
part of the delivery of services. With data held in a vast array of places and transferring between 
supply chain partners, it becomes susceptible to loss, protection and privacy risks. As a result, the 
Council has in place information sharing protocols and agreements that partners are required to 
endorse prior to any information being shared with them.

9.5.4   The Council responds to a significant number of information access requests as a result of the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Environmental Information regulation 2004. Furthermore, 

Page 23

http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?AIId=9615
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/data-protection-principles/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/data-protection-principles/


18

a number of requests for information are received as a result of subject access requests as part of 
the Data Protection Act 1998.

9.5.5   During October 2017, the Council welcomed a consensual audit of its processing of personal data 
by the Information Commissioners Office (ICO), who recognised the strong leadership and good 
practice the Council has embedded.  In particular, the ICO cited the excellent online training 
provision, comprehensive case management system for processing Freedom of Information 
requests and the Councils Records Management base, Shortwood, which was identified as having 
very well established processes for managing paper records.  In total, 110 recommendations were 
made for the Council to act upon, with the majority being classed as medium or low priority. An 
action plan was developed by the Council and is facilitated by Internal Audit, the Information 
Governance Board and the Audit Committee.

9.5.6    In preparation for the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR), which are new regulations that 
come into effect on the 25th May 2018 (alongside a new UK Data Protection Act which completely 
replaces the existing Data Protection Legislation in the UK), the Council has been preparing during 
2017 / 18 to ensure that it specifically addresses:

 The individual rights of our customers;
 The changes to accountability and governance surrounding information management;
 The appointment of a Data Protection Officer;
 Processes relating to breach notifications;
 Reviewing and updating policies; and,
 Rolling out training and awareness to all network users.

9.6 Strong Public Financial Management

9.6.1 The Council has a pragmatic approach to the management of finances and endeavours to ensure 
that value for money outcomes are obtained through the spending of public money. This approach 
is intended to support the achievement of short term operational performance, alongside longer 
term strategic outcomes. Strategies including the Councils Value for Money and Commercial 
strategy underpin both long and short term objectives.

 
9.6.2 The Councils Service Director (Finance) acts as the Section 151 officer, and ensures that the 

Council benefits from robust financial advice and is compliant in terms of its accounting and 
fiduciary responsibilities. This includes ensuring that financial management is embedded within the 
annual Business and Service Planning processes which includes the control and mitigation of 
financial risk.

Page 24

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/individual-rights/right-of-access/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-performance/value-for-money/


19

10. Principle G: Implementing good practices in Transparency, Reporting and Audit to deliver 
Effective Accountability.

10.1 Implementing good practice in Transparency

10.1.1 The Councils commitment to be a customer focused organisation that puts the customer at the 
heart of everything we do is underpinned by ensuing that any information that is published for 
stakeholders is done so in a manner that is accessible and transparent. Information published on 
the Councils website conforms with branding and accessibility requirements.

10.1.2 The Council is required to publish information as part of the Local Government Transparency Code 
2015, which has been designed to make sure that local people can now see and access data about 
subject such as:

 How the Council spends its money;
 How Council assets are used; 
 How the Council make decisions; and, 
 Issues important to local people.

10.1.3 The Council benefits from a Social Media policy which aims to maximise positive engagement with 
stakeholders by the Council and individual officers, whilst protecting its own reputation and ensuring 
compliance with relevant standards and regulations.

10.2 Implementing Good Practice in Reporting  

10.2.1 It is important for the Council to be able to demonstrate that it has been able to deliver on its 
priorities and ambitions and that it has been able to deliver value for money outcomes. This is 
achieved through the publication of Performance Reports.

10.2.2 Performance reporting is complemented by the Councils Statement of Accounts report, which is 
prepared and published in accordance with legislative requirements and the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. The Annual Statement of Accounts report is 
made available for local electors, stakeholders and other interested parties to inspect.

10.2.3 There is a legal responsibility to undertake (at least annually) a full review of the Councils own 
internal control and corporate governance arrangement, and details the outcomes and findings of 
that review in its own Annual Governance Statement. This is complemented by an improvement 
Action Plan that is monitored by the Councils Audit Committee.

10.3 Assurance and Effective Accountability

10.3.1 It is important that the Council is challenged, audited and reviewed both internally and externally to 
ensure that Council services, priorities and outcomes are making a positive impact on the Borough. 
Following such reviews, the Council ensures recommendations and improvements that have been 
identified are translated into operational actions that are achievable, measurable and have suitable 
accountability built into them. Where appropriate, Elected Member engagement can provide clear 
oversight on the recommended actions, and their consequential outcome or output.

10.3.2 In order to deliver the Councils own vision and values, it is important that partnership working is 
carried out in a way that ensures robust governance arrangements are in place in terms of finance, 
resources and risk. A practical Partnership Governance Framework has been designed to assist 

Page 25

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/accessibility/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/information-we-publish/local-government-transparency-code/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/media-and-advertising/barnsley-council-social-media-acceptable-use-policy/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-performance/annual-accounts/
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/c/code-of-practice-on-local-authority-accounting-in-the-united-kingdom-201617-book
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/c/code-of-practice-on-local-authority-accounting-in-the-united-kingdom-201617-book
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/standards-for-the-way-we-work/
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s29256/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%20Action%20plan%20201718.pdf
http://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s29256/Annual%20Governance%20Statement%20Action%20plan%20201718.pdf


20

Partnership Lead Officers provide suitable assurances that the partnership is making a valuable 
contribution to the Council’s objectives and priorities, and is a well governed and controlled 
relationship.

Page 26



21

11. Review of the Effectiveness of the Governance Framework

11.1 Annual Governance Review 

11.1.1 Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council has responsibility for conducting (at least annually) a review 
of the effectiveness of its governance framework, systems of internal control and risk management 
arrangements.  The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of senior managers within the 
Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment, the Head of Internal Audits (HoIA) annual report and also by the comments made by 
external auditors and other regulators or inspectors.

11.2 Senior Management Team

11.2.1 The Councils SMT are responsible for ensuring compliance with, as well as improvement against 
the governance, risk and internal control framework. As part of this function, each member of SMT 
is provided with details of their Directorates assurance information for the year. This assurance 
information includes:

1. Significant and Fundamental Internal Audit recommendations that have been made to 
individual Business Units within the Directorate;

2. Significant and Fundamental Internal Audit recommendations that have been identified 
following ‘themed’ audits; and,

3. Other Sources of Assurance information which has been sourced from Internal Control and 
Governance lead officers.

11.2.2 Following receipt of this information by each individual Service Director, each SMT member is then 
asked to provide assurances regarding the overall governance arrangements for their Directorate.

11.2.3 This information is then evaluated and where appropriate included in the Annual Governance 
Statement Action Plan.

11.3 Internal Control Arrangements

11.3.1 The Council has adopted a comprehensive set of internal policies and procedures that govern key 
aspects of its operational, as part of the drive to develop high quality local public services. 
Collectively, these are referred to as the Internal Control Framework.

11.3.2 Each of these policies, plans and procedures has a senior lead officer with overall responsibility for 
their maintenance and application.

11.3.3 Each element that makes up the Internal Control Framework is subject to cyclical, risk informed 
reviews by the Councils Internal Audit Section.

11.4 Internal Audit

11.4.1 The HoIA is responsible for providing assurances as to the robustness of the Councils internal 
control arrangement to the Audit Committee. An annual report on Internal Audit activity and 
performance is also presented. In terms of the 2017 / 18 report, which the Audit Committee will have 
considered as a draft at their meeting dated 6th June 2018, the HoIA gave a controls assurance 

Page 27



22

opinion which reflected that systems concerning internal controls were adequate and that no 
fundamental breakdowns of any such systems had occurred. Whilst the overall opinion is positive, 
there are some key issues arising from Internal Audit work in the year that senior management 
should consider. In general terms these continue to relate to the challenges in moving to Future 
Council in terms of changed structures, new and changed systems, increasing workloads, all of 
which have had an impact on the organisations capacity to maintain reasonable and effective 
controls in some areas of activity.

11.4.2 It is recognised that the Future Council approach has required a change in risk appetite and that 
there is a natural period during which new operational arrangements will embed. This has been 
openly acknowledged and again discussed with senior management during the year but it is 
nevertheless important that during 2017/18 senior managers remain alert to, and focussed on, 
maintaining an appropriate, risk-based and effective framework of controls. The audit work 
undertaken and planned for the current year has sought to take into account the change in risk 
appetite necessary to embrace and implement such significant change and achieve financial 
savings. Although the overall assurance opinion is adequate, it is essential that senior management 
retain a focus on embedding new operational and governance arrangements. This is reflected in the 
fact that 50% of the completed audits resulted in a substantial or adequate assurance opinion which 
is a decrease from 2016/17. However, if we include the 2017/18 Internal Audit reviews that are 
substantially complete, as at 25th May, all have an indicative opinion of at least adequate, this 
would increase to 60%. With regards to the implementation of agreed management actions only 
37% were implemented by the original date set by management.

11.4.3 The role of Internal Audit within the governance, risk and internal control framework is to operate 
both independently and objectively in reviewing and reporting on the effectiveness of the Annual 
Governance Review process and the Corporate Risk Management framework. This work has been 
undertaken by a Principal Auditor reporting directly to the Executive Director of Core services in 
order to preserve that independence.

11.5 Strategic Risk Management

11.5.1 During 2017 / 18, the Risk and Governance Manager has supported (and where appropriate 
challenged) the management and development of the Councils SRR, and has prepared a number of 
reports to SMT, Audit Committee and Cabinet regarding the outcomes of the bi-annual reviews of 
the SRR. Work has also included the promotion and embedding of good risk management practice 
throughout the Council and its partners.

11.6 External Audit, Assessment and Inspection

11.6.1 Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council is subject to external assessment and regulation by auditors 
and service inspectorates such as OFSTED and the CQC. Services are responsible for ensuring 
that relevant findings from external audit or inspection activity informs the annual governance review 
which in turns underpins the production of the Annual Governance Statement.

11.6.2 In summary, the following principle sources of evidenced were considered when carrying out this 
review:

 Assurances provided by Service Directors and Executive Directors regarding the overall 
governance arrangements for Business Units and Directorates;

 Internal Audit Annual Report;
 Risk Management Annual Report;

Page 28



23

 The Annual Audit Letter;
 Key issues arising from the Annual Corporate Health and Safety Annual Report;
 The Local Government Ombudsman Annual Monitoring Report regarding complaints 

handled by BMBC;
 The independent Internal Audit annual review of Corporate Risk Management arrangements 

and the annual review of Annual Governance Arrangements;
 A review of the action taken and progress made in relation to the issues raised in the 2016 / 

17 Annual Governance Statement and Associated Improvement Action Plan.

12. Significant Governance Issues

12.1 Only the more significant and strategic governance and internal control issues should be included in 
the AGS. The following criteria have been applied when considering and determining if an issue is 
significant:

 It has seriously prejudiced or prevented the achievement of the Authority’s objectives; 
 It has resulted in the need to seek additional funding to allow it to be resolved, or has 

resulted in significant diversion of resources from another aspect of the business;
 It has led to a material impact in the accounts;
 It is identified in the Head of Internal Audit’s report;
 The Authority requires progress / action reports;
 It has attracted media or public attention and has seriously affected the reputation of the 

Authority; and / or,
 It has resulted in formal action by the Treasurer or Monitoring Officer.

12.2 The annual review of the Councils governance, risk and internal control arrangements in place for 
2017 / 18 has identified issues relating to:

 The delivery of actions identified by the Information Commissioners Office as part of the 
Councils consensual audit in 2017 (action 3); and,

 The monitoring of the implementation and embedding of effective compliance arrangements 
in respect of the General Data Protection Regulations 2018.

12.3 The review has confirmed that the general level of compliance with the Councils governance and 
internal control framework remains robust and effective.

12.4 The review process has taken into account the action taken against control issues on previous 
Annual Governance Statements.

12.5 The Action Plan to be monitored during 2018 / 19 is comprised of the issues that have been carried 
forward from previous years, along with issues identified from the 2017 / 18 review.

13. Statement by the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive

13.1 We are satisfied that the comprehensive review process undertaken has identified the relevant 
areas for attention over the forthcoming year. The Action Plan put in place will be monitored by the 
Councils Audit Committee will (when implemented) further enhance the Councils governance, risk 
and internal control framework.

Page 29



24

Councillor Sir Stephen Houghton CBE
Leader of Barnsley MBC

Diana Terris
Chief Executive of Barnsley MBC

Date: Date:

Page 30



25

14. Glossary

CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
SOLACE – Society of Local Authority Chief Executives
BMBC – Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
SMT – Senior Management Team
SCR – Sheffield City Region
ICO – Information Commissioners Office
MTFS – Medium Term Financial Strategy
H&WB – Health and Wellbeing Board
BEP – Barnsley Economic Partnership
CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group
P&DR – Performance and Development Review
RMF – Risk Management Framework
SRR – Strategic Risk Register
ORR – Operation Risk Register
OSC – Overview and Scrutiny Commission
SIRO – Senior Information Risk Owner
GDPR – General Data Protection Regulations
AGS – Annual Governance Statement
AGR – Annual Governance Review
HoIA – Head of Internal Audit
OFSTED – Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills
CQC – Care Quality Commission

Page 31



26

Page 32



27

Appendix One: Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 2017 / 18

Ref Annual Governance Statement Action Responsible Executive 
Director Timescales Current Position – Action Taken / Planned

1 To further develop and embed a practical 
framework to assist on the effective 
governance and control of the Council’s 
partnerships, contracts and general 
relationships with external organisations.
This has increased significance in the 
context of the Future Council 
programme.

(Carried forward from 2016 / 17)

Executive Director, Core 
Services

Revised to 
30/09/2018

(Audit 
Committee 

Meeting 
19/09/2018)

December 2017:
Targeted correspondence was sent to relevant Service
Directors in October 2017.
Subsequently, the Risk and Governance Manager has met 
with a number of Service Directors and Risk Owners to 
consider partnership risks. The majority of Business Units 
now have risks regarding specific partnerships included 
within their Operational Risk Registers.
Further work during the remainder of the financial year will 
focus on ensuring the remaining risk registers are updated to 
reflect partnership risk.

July 2018:
Analysis relating to overall compliance with the 
Framework will be undertaken, and reported to the Audit 
Committee at their meeting dated 19/09/2018.

2 Internal Audit Annual Report:
A corporate issue relating to non-
compliance with Contract Procedure 
Rules and the overall adequacy of 
Contract Management Arrangements

(Carried forward from 2016 / 17) Executive Director, Core 
Services

Revised to 
30/09/2018

December 2017:

Non-compliance with CPR:

 The Strategic Procurement Team continue to track and 
challenge waivers on an ongoing basis. The team also 
provides information on waivers to key stakeholders on 
a monthly basis;

 The ‘Document Review’ is now complete and a new set 
of standardised procurement processes, documentation
and guidance is available via SharePoint for staff to 
utilise when procuring at all levels of expenditure;

 A review of the Contract Procedure Rules is also 
underway which is planned for completion by end 

P
age 33



28

Ref Annual Governance Statement Action Responsible Executive 
Director Timescales Current Position – Action Taken / Planned

March 2018.
 All waivers over £100,000 require the Monitoring Officer 

and S151 Officer approval.

Adequacy of Contract Management Activity:

 A scoping paper to review contract management activity 
was approved by SMT in December 2017. Activity will 
now be undertaken by the Strategic Procurement Team 
during 2018 to establish the ‘as is’ situation whilst also 
developing a new ‘to be’ approach with a view to 
Council wide adoption.

July 2018:
 The ‘Non-Compliance with CPR’ activity is now 

closed, with the exception of the action relating to 
the review of CPRs, which is completed and is now 
going through an approval process.

 The contract management review was initiated in 
January and is ongoing with a planned completion 
by end September. A session to present an update 
to SMT is scheduled for 31st July. This session will 
present the findings of the ‘As Is’ approach to 
contract management within the council currently 
and also give an indication of recommendations for 
the ‘To Be’ solution going forward.

P
age 34



29

Ref Annual Governance Statement Action Responsible Executive 
Director Timescales Current Position – Action Taken / Planned

3 Following a consensual audit from the 
Information Commissioners Officer (ICO) 
in October 2017, a total of 110 
recommendations were made for the 
Council to act on (the majority of actions 
being medium or low priority). 

Executive Director, 
Communities 31/12/2018

July 2018:
The current status of the actions identified by the ICO is 
detailed below:

Area Total Completed In 
Progress

Not 
started

Training and 
Awareness 25 13 11 1

Records 
Management 48 29 10 9

FoI / EiR 31 25 6 0
Total 104 67 27 10

(A full analysis and action plan has been developed and is 
available upon request)

4 Monitoring the implementation and 
embedding of effective compliance 
arrangements in respect of the General 
Data Protection Regulations 2018.

Executive Director, Core 
Services 31/03/2019

July 2018:
The Councils compliance with the Data Protection Act 
(DPA) 2018 and the General Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR) will be monitored through the Information 
Governance Board alongside other areas of information 
governance and management.

The Council’s Data Protection Officer (DPO) will report 
to the Board, providing assurances regarding 
compliance based on a programme of independent 
review work. The DPO will also report periodically to 
SMT and will provide the Audit Committee with 
assurance reports.

It is the responsibility of all senior managers to ensure 
the personal data they use in the delivery of services is 

P
age 35



30

Ref Annual Governance Statement Action Responsible Executive 
Director Timescales Current Position – Action Taken / Planned

maintained in compliance with the Council’s policies, 
the DPA 2018 and GDPR. The DPO provides 
independent advice and assurance regarding that 
compliance.   

P
age 36



MEETING: Full Council
DATE: Friday, 18 May 2018
TIME: 6.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present The Mayor (Councillor S. Green)

Central Ward - Councillors D. Birkinshaw, Bruff and M. Dyson

Cudworth Ward - Councillors Hayward, Houghton CBE and 
C. Wraith MBE

Darfield Ward - Councillors Markham and Saunders

Darton East Ward - Councillors Charlesworth, Miller and Spence

Darton West Ward - Councillors Burgess, Cave and Howard

Dearne North Ward - Councillors Gardiner and Phillips

Dearne South Ward - Councillors Sixsmith MBE

Dodworth Ward - Councillors P. Birkinshaw, Riggs and Wright

Hoyland Milton Ward - Councillors Franklin, Shepherd and Stowe

Kingstone Ward - Councillors Mitchell and Williams

Monk Bretton Ward - Councillors Richardson and Sheard

North East Ward - Councillors Ennis, Hampson and Higginbottom

Old Town Ward - Councillors Lofts and Pickering

Penistone East Ward - Councillors Hand-Davis and Wilson

Penistone West Ward - Councillors David Griffin and Kitching

Rockingham Ward - Councillors Andrews BEM, Lamb and Sumner

Royston Ward - Councillors Cheetham, Clements and Makinson

St. Helen’s Ward - Councillors Leech, Platts and Tattersall

Stairfoot Ward - Councillors Bowler, K. Dyson and W. Johnson

Wombwell Ward - Councillors Frost and Daniel Griffin

Worsbrough Ward - Councillors G. Carr, Clarke and Pourali

1. Election of Mayor for the Municipal Year 2018/19 

Page 37

Item 7



2

Moved by Councillor Sheard – Seconded by Councillor Richardson; and

RESOLVED that Councillor S Green be and is hereby elected Mayor of the Borough 
for the ensuing Municipal Year (2018/19).

2. Mayor's Declaration 

Councillor S Green, having first made and subscribed the declaration prescribed by 
law, took his seat as Mayor accordingly and returned thanks for his election.

3. Thanks to the retiring Mayor 

Moved by Councillor Higginbottom – Seconded by Councillor Hampson; and

RESOVED that the best thanks of the Council be given to Councillor J Ennis for the 
manner in which he has discharged his duties appertaining to the Office of Mayor 
and also to Mrs M Ennis for her services as Mayoress.

4. Presentation to the Retiring Mayor 

The Mayor presented to Councillor J Ennis and to Mrs M Ennis replicas of the 
medallions attached to their respective Chains of Office as Mayor and Mayoress for 
the year 2017/18 in recognition of the Council’s appreciation of the services rendered 
by them to the Borough during this period.

5. Election of Deputy Mayor for the Municipal Year 2018/19 

Moved by Councillor Saunders – Seconded by Councillor Shepherd; and 

RESOLVED that Councillor P Markham be and is hereby elected as Deputy Mayor of 
the Borough for the ensuing Municipal Year (2018/19).

6. Deputy Mayor's Declaration 

Councillor P Markham having first made and subscribed the declaration prescribed 
by law, took her seat as Deputy Mayor.

7. Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

(a) Appointment of Leader

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Andrews BEM; and 

RESOLVED that Councillor Sir Steve Houghton, CBE be confirmed as the Executive 
Leader of the Council for a fixed term of four years until the Annual Council meeting 
2022.

The Leader responded to the confirmation of his appointment by stating that it was a 
privilege and an honour to be the Leader of the Council for the next four years.  The 
previous four years had been some of the most difficult in the Council's history but 
the support of Members of the Council as well as staff, who had continued to work 
under difficult circumstances, had ensured that the success of the Council had 

Page 38



3

continued.  The Leader commented in particular that it was particularly pleasing that 
all Members of the Council were prepared to work collaboratively for the benefit of 
the Borough.

(b) Appointment of Cabinet Members, Cabinet Support Members and Member 
Community Cohesion Champion

RESOLVED that the appointment by the Leader, in accordance with the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in health Act 2007, of the following Cabinet 
Members, Cabinet Support Members and Community Cohesion Champion be noted:

Portfolio Cabinet Member Cabinet Support 
Member

Deputy Leader Councillor Andrews 
BEM

-

Without Portfolio Councillor Howard Councillor Daniel Griffin

Core Councillor Gardiner Councillor Franklin

Communities Councillor Platts Councillor Pourali

Place Councillor Miller Councillor Frost

People (Safeguarding) Councillor Bruff Councillor Saunders

People (Achieving 
Potential)

Councillor Cheetham Councillor Tattersall

Member Community 
Cohesion Champion

Councillor K Dyson

8. Appointment of Chair Persons of Area Councils 

RESOLVED that the appointment by the Leader of the folowing Members of Chair 
Persons of the Area Council’s be noted:

Area Council Chairperson

Central Area Council Councillor Riggs
Dearne Area Council Councillor Noble
North Area Council Councillor Leech
North East Area Council Councillor Hayward
Penistone Area Council Councillor Barnard
South Area Council Councillor Stowe

9. Allocation of Seats on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Regulatory 
Boards 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

Page 39



4

RESOLVED the allocation of seats on the Overview and Scrutiny Coommittee and 
Regulatory Boards, having been reviewed in accordance with Section 15 of the Local 
Governments and Housing Act 1989, be allocated to the Political Groups on the 
basis as set out in Section 6 of the report now submitted.

10. Appointment of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee be constituted as follows for 
the ensuing year:-

Councillors Bowler, Carr, Charlesworth, Clarke, Clements, Ennis, Franklin, Frost, 
Gollick, Daniel Griffin, Hampson, Hand-Davis, Hayward, W Johnson, Makinson, 
Mitchell, Murray, Phillips, Pickering, Pourali, Sheard, Sixsmith, Tattersall, Williams, 
Wilson and Wright  together with Co-opted Members Ms P Gould and Ms K Morritt 
(Parent Governor).

11. Appointment of Chairpersons of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the 
Scrutiny Task and Finish Group Leads 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the following Members be appointed as Chairpersons to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Statutory and Task and Finish Leads:-

Overview and Scrutiny Committee Councillor Ennis
Task and Finish Group 1 Councillor Charlesworth
Task and Finish Group 2 Councillor Carr
Task and Finish Group 3 Councillor Hand-Davis

12. Appointment of Regulatory Boards 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the Regulatory Boards be constituted as follows:-

Planning

Councillors D Birkinshaw, Coates, M Dyson, Franklin, Gollick, Dave Griffin, 
Hampson, Hand-Davis, Hayward, Higginbottom, Lamb, Leech, Makinson, Markham, 
Mitchell, Noble, Pickering, Richardson, Riggs, Saunders, Spence, Stowe, Tattersall, 
Wilson and R Wraith plus one vacancy

General Licensing (15 members of whom will form the Statutory Licensing 
Regulatory Board)

Councillors P Birkinshaw, Burgess, Cave, Cherryholme, Clarke, M Dyson, Ennis, 
Frost, Daniel Griffin, C Johnson, W Johnson, Lamb, Lofts, Markham, Millner, Murray, 
Richardson, Saunders, Shepherd, Sixsmith MBE, Stowe, Sumner, Tattersall, C 
Wraith MBE, Williams and Wilson

Page 40



5

Statutory Licensing

Councillors P Birkinshaw, Burgess, Cherryholme, Clarke, Daniel Griffin, W Johnson, 
Lamb, Lofts, Saunders, Shepherd, Sumner, Tattersall, Williams, Wilson and C Wraith 
MBE

Appeals, Awards and Standards

Councillors D Birkinshaw, P Birkinshaw, Bowler, Burgess, Cave, Charlesworth, 
Cherryholme, K Dyson, Dave Griffin, Higginbottom, C Johnson, Kitching, Leech, 
Lofts, Makinson, Millner, Noble, Phillips, Pourali, Saunders, Shepherd, Spence, 
Sumner, Tattersall, Williams and Wright  together with Messrs S Carvell, M Moore 
and D Waxman as Independent persons for the purposes of the relevant provision of 
the Local Government Act 2000 as amended by the Localism Act 2011 with regard to 
the investigation of ethical standards complaints.  The Independent Persons to be 
appointed until such time as a further recruitment exercise is completed to seek 
new/replacement Members.  

(Note:  a recruitment exercise to seek the appointment of Independent Members is 
currently being undertaken)

13. Appointment of Chairpersons of Regulatory Boards 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the following Members be appointed as Chairperson of the 
Regulatory Boards as indicated until the next Annual Council meeting:- 

Planning Regulatory Councillor D Birkinshaw
General Licensing Regulatory Councillor C Wraith MBE
Statutory Licensing Regulatory Councillor C Wraith MBE
Appeals, Awards and Standards Councillor Shepherd

14. Appointment of Audit Committee 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and 

RESOLVED that Audit Committee be constituted as follows for the ensuing Municipal 
Year:-

Councillors Barnard, Clements, Lofts and Richardson together with co-opted 
members Ms K Armitage, and Ms D Brown and Mr S Gill, Mr P Johnson and Mr M 
Marks.

15. Appointment of Chairpersons and Vice-Chairpersons of Audit Committee 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and 

RESOLVED that Councillor Richardson be appointed Chairperson and one member 
from the co-opted members as Vice-Chairperson of the Audit Committee until the 
next Annual Council meeting.

Page 41



6

16. Appointment of Joint Employees Consultative Committee 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED  that the Joint Employees Consultative Committee for the ensuing year 
comprise Councillors Andrews, P Birkinshaw, Bruff, Cheetham, Gardiner, Houghton, 
Howard, Miller, Platts and Wilson.

17. Appointment of Children's Homes Visiting Panel 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the Children’s Homes Visiting Panel for the ensuing year comprise 
Councillors Carr, Frost, Millner, Phillips, Sheard, Tattersall and Williams.

18. Appointment of Member Development Working Party 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and 

RESOLVED that the Member Development Working Party for the ensuing year 
comprise Councillors Barnard, Cave, Daniel Griffin, Howard, Kitching, Lofts, 
Richardson, Riggs, Tattersall and Williams.

19. Appointment of Fostering Panel 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that Councillor Coates be appointed to the Fostering Panel for the 
ensuing year.

20. Appointment of Adoption Panel 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that nominations be sought to fill this vacancy with a further report being 
submitted to a future Council meeting.

21. Appointment of Corporate Parenting Panel 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED  that the Corporate Parenting Panel for the ensuing year comprise the 
Cabinet Spokesperson and Cabinet Support Member for People (Safeguarding) 
together with Councillors Carr, Coates, C Johnson, Shepherd, Sixsmith MBE, 
Tattersall, Williams and Wilson.

22. Appointment of Armed Forces Champion 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and 

RESOLVED that Councillor Hayward be appointed as the Armed Forces Champion 
for the ensuing year.

Page 42



7

23. Constitution of Ward Alliances and Area Councils and Appointment of Joint 
Authority Representatives etc. 

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the Ward Alliances and Area Councils as detailed below be 
established for the ensuing Municipal Year:

(a) Ward Alliances*

Each Ward Alliance to comprise all Members of the relevant Wards:

Central
Cudworth
Darfield
Darton East
Darton West
Dearne North
Dearne South
Dodworth
Hoyland Milton
Kingstone
Monk Bretton
North East
Old Town
Penistone East
Penistone West
Rockingham
Royston
St Helen’s
Stairfoot
Wombwell
Worsbrough

*Note: Ward Alliances also comprise Community Representatives.

Area Councils

Each Area Council to comprise all Members from the relevant Wards based on the 
following groupings:

 Central Area Council – Central, Dodworth, Kingstone, Stairfoot and 
Worsbrough

 Dearne Area Council – Dearne North and Dearne South
 North Area Council – Darton East, Darton West, St Helen’s and Old Town
 North East Area Council  - Cudworth, Monk Bretton, North East and Royston
 Penistone Area Council – Penistone East and Penistone West
 South Area Council – Darfield, Hoyland Milton, Rockingham and Wombwell

(b) Joint Committees and Bodies:

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

Page 43



8

RESOLVED that the representatives on the following Joint Committees and Bodies 
for the ensuing Municipal Year:

South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Councillors Lamb (Section 41) and Burgess

South Yorkshire Pensions Authority

Councillors Stowe (Section 41) and R Wraith

Sheffield City Region Combined Authority

Leader and Deputy Leader (Substitute) with the Cabinet Spokesperson for 
Core Services (Rotational Member)

South Yorkshire City Region Combined Authority Audit Committee and Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee

Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee and one Labour vacancy

(c) Outside Bodies for the ensuing year:-

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the following appointments be made to the Outside Bodies 
indicated for the ensuing Municipal Year:-

Barnsley Citizens Advice Bureau Trustee Board

Councillor Hayward and Richardson (Substitute)

Cooper Art Gallery

Councillors Burgess, D Birkinshaw and Richardson

Joint Advisory Committee for the South Yorkshire Archaeology Service

Councillors Franklin and Richardson

South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Leeds City Region Advisory Partnership Committee

Leader

Page 44



9

Local Government Association General Assembly

Leader, Deputy Leader, Cabinet Spokesperson without Portfolio and Councillor 
Hand-Davis

Yorkshire and Humber (Local Authorities) Employers Association

Cabinet Spokesperson for Core Services

Rural Assembly

Councillors Hand-Davis and Miller

Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Partnership Board

Leader and Deputy Leader (Substitute)

South Yorkshire Joint Advisory Committee on Archives Service

Councillors Franklins and Richardson

South Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel

Councillors Frost and M Dyson and Councillor Tattersall (Substitute)

South Yorkshire Sub Regional Migration Group

Cabinet Spokesperson for Communities

South Yorkshire Trading Standards Committee

Councillors Howard, Miller and Gardiner (Substitute)

The Industrial Communities Alliance

Councillors Franklin, Shepherd and Cheetham (Substitute)

Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation Management Committee

Councillors Barnard and Gardiner

(d) Vacancies on the following outside bodies

Moved by Councillor Howard – Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the following appointments be made to fill vacancies on the Bodies 
indicated:-

Barnsley Health and Wellbeing of Children in Care Forum

Cabinet Spokesperson for People (Safeguarding)

Page 45



10

Welcome to Yorkshire

Cabinet Support Member for Place

Environmental Protection UK

Councillor Lofts

George Beaumont Foundation

Councillor Spence

Shaw Lands Trust

Councillors D Birkinshaw, Hayward and Mitchell together with Mr S Henshaw and 
Mr T Sheard plus one vacancy

Schools Forum

Councillors Millner and one Labour vacancy

24. Terms of Reference of the Full Council, Regulatory Boards and Committees 
and Functions Delegated to Officers 

Moved by Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE – Seconded by Councillor Andrews 
BEM; and

RESOLVED that the Terms of Reference of the Full Council, Regulatory Boards and 
Committees and Functions Delegated to Officers as outlined in the document now 
submitted be approved.

25. Council Timetable 2018/19 

Moved by Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE – Seconded by Councillor Andrews 
BEM; and 

RESOLVED:

(i) that ordinary meetings of the Council for the Municipal Year 2018/19 b held on 
the following Thursdays commencing at 10.30 am:-

Thursday 24th May, 2018
Thursday 26th July, 2018 (including accounts)
Thursday 27th September, 2018
Thursday 29th November, 2018
Thursday 7th February, 2019 (including HRA)
Thursday 28th February, 2019 (Budget meeting)
Thursday 7th March, 2019 (provisional Budget meeting to be cancelled 
if budget approved on the 28th February, 2019)
Thursday 4th April, 2018

(ii) that the next Annual Meeting be held on Friday 17th May, 2019 at 6.00 pm; 
and

Page 46



11

(iii) that the report of the Executive Director Core Services seeking to confirm the 
dates for the remaining meetings shown in the Council Calendar for 2018/19, 
now submitted, be adopted.

………………………………………………..
Chair

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Full Council
DATE: Thursday, 24 May 2018
TIME: 10.30 am
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present The Mayor (Councillor S. Green)

Central Ward - Councillors D. Birkinshaw and Bruff

Cudworth Ward - Councillors Hayward, Houghton CBE and 
C. Wraith MBE

Darfield Ward - Councillors Markham and Saunders

Darton East Ward - Councillors Miller and Spence

Darton West Ward - Councillors Burgess and Cave

Dearne North Ward - Councillors Gardiner, Gollick and Phillips

Dearne South Ward - Councillors C. Johnson

Dodworth Ward - Councillors P. Birkinshaw, Riggs and Wright

Hoyland Milton Ward - Councillors Franklin, Shepherd and Stowe

Kingstone Ward - Councillors Mitchell and Williams

Monk Bretton Ward - Councillors Richardson and Sheard

North East Ward - Councillors Ennis and Hampson

Old Town Ward - Councillors Lofts and Pickering

Penistone East Ward - Councillors Barnard, Hand-Davis and Wilson

Penistone West Ward - Councillors David Griffin, Kitching and Millner

Rockingham Ward - Councillors Andrews BEM, Lamb and Sumner

Royston Ward - Councillors Cheetham, Clements and Makinson

St. Helen’s Ward - Councillors Leech, Platts and Tattersall

Stairfoot Ward - Councillors Bowler and W. Johnson

Wombwell Ward - Councillors Frost, Daniel Griffin and R. Wraith

Worsbrough Ward - Councillors G. Carr, Clarke and Pourali

Page 49



2

26. Declarations of Interests 

There were no declarations of non-pecuniary interest from Members in respect of 
items on the agenda.

27. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 29th March, 2018 were taken as read and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

28. Communications 

(a) Yorkshire Property Awards

The Executive Director Core Service announced that Barnsley was the winner of the 
Industrial Deal of the Year at the highly prestigious Yorkshire Property Awards 2018.  
The Gateway 36 scheme, developed in partnership with Harworth Group PLC and 
Knight Frank property agents, was highly praised by the private sector panel.  The 
scheme had resulted in significant inward investment to Barnsley which WAS the 
highest for the Sheffield City Region and followED the successful delivery of the 
council’s property investment fund. 

Many thanks were given to the team involved in the scheme and special mention 
went to Paul Clifford, Shaun Higginbottom, Tim Hartley (who were in the Chamber), 
and also to Sarah Whittaker and Paul Johnson.

The Mayor and Members of the Council expressed their congratulations to all 
concerned in the usual manner.

(b) Best address data in Yorkshire and the Humber

The Executive Director Core Services announced that Steve Snell, a member of the 
Business Improvement and Intelligence team, received an Gold Performance 
Award at the GeoPlace Exemplar Awards for Best Address Data in the Yorkshire and 
Humber region. Congratulations were offered to Steve and his team.

The Mayor and Members of the Council expressed their thanks to all involved in 
the usual manner.

(c) I Know I Can (IKIC) Awards

The Executive Director Core Services announced that the awards, sponsored by the 
Council, had been held the previous evening.  At the start of the academic year, young 
people were challenged to develop their ideas into reality, starting their own 
businesses. 80 teams across primary and secondary schools took part, with 20 
making it through to the final stage.  The awards celebrated their achievements and 
the winners received their awards from Rose Dyson, a student from Horizon School 
who won the award three years ago and has since set up her own cosmetic business 
which last year made £65,000 while she was still studying for her A levels. 

Page 50



3

Kasey’s Kakes from Kirk Balk Academy won the best final report, and The Ellis 
Primary School with their The Wood Workshop won the best primary school 
business.

Thanks were given to Richard Shaw and his team in employment and skills for 
facilitating the awards.

The Mayor and Members of the Council expressed their thanks in the usual 
manner.

29. Questions by Elected Members 

The Executive Director, Core Services reported that he had received the following 
question from Councillor Kitching in accordance with Standing Order No. 11:-
 
‘On May 16th the news broke that Home-Start South Yorkshire had suddenly 
collapsed, with services supporting vulnerable families stopping from May 31st.  
Please can you confirm the details of relevant meetings that you and your colleagues 
have attended since that date?’

Councillor Bruff responded as follows:-

People Directorate currently commissions Homestart South Yorkshire to provide our 
Independent Visitor Scheme for children in the care of the local authority. 

Under the duties of the Children Act (1989) , the local authority is required to ensure 
that children and young people in the looked after system have access to an 
Independent Visitor, who is a volunteer available to befriend the child and offer 
contact with a trusted adult, outside of the care system. Homestart is commissioned 
to recruit, vet, train and support volunteers and to liaise with Children’s Social Care to 
ensure the offer of an Independent Volunteer is matched to children in care as 
appropriate, particularly those likely to have limited, if any, contact with their birth 
family. 

The value of the contract is £40,000 per annum and was due to expire on 30th 
September 2018.

With the planned end of the contract approaching and to ensure the most effective 
delivery of the service, commissioners had already begun to explore alternative ways 
of providing this vital service for some of the most vulnerable children in our care.

To this end, a model of delivery is being developed that will see delivery of the 
service brought ‘in-house’ to the Council. This proposal is subject to the necessary 
approvals but the liquidation of Homestart South Yorkshire has had the effect of 
bringing forward these plans.

Since the announcement of the liquidation on 15th May, repeated attempts to contact 
Homestart have been made by People Directorate commissioning staff. To date, 
there has been no response from any Homestart representative. We will continue to 
press to ensure details of volunteers are passed to us so that they can be supported 
to transfer to the new service and continue to visit the children and young people with 
whom they have built relationships. However, due to the lack of response to date 

Page 51



4

from Homestart South Yorkshire, there have been no meetings held yet between the 
organisation and People Directorate representatives.

Other smaller value contracts are in place with Homestart through Area Councils, 
and discussions between Area Officers and colleagues in finance have taken place 
to try to ensure that no service users are left without service.  

The situation in no way reflects the performance of staff, and it was unfortunate that 
the funding has been withdrawn from this organisation and many other small 
organisations.

Councillor Kitchen asked a supplementary question:- ‘ Is Councillor Bruff confident 
that the family services can step up to meet need, and what plans are in place to do 
so?’

Councillor Bruff responded to say that she was confident that the needs of residents 
will be met by the service, but no detail could currently be given as plans were still in 
development. 

30. Questions relating to Joint Authority, Police and Crime Panel and Combined 
Authority Business 

The Executive Director Core Services reported that he had received no questions 
from Elected Members in accordance with Standing Order No. 12.

31. South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority - 19th February, 2018 

RESOLVED that the minutes be noted.

32. South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority - 9th April, 2018 (Draft) 

RESOLVED that the minutes be noted.

33. Sheffield City Region Combined Authority - 9th March, 2018 (Draft) 

RESOLVED that the minutes be noted.

34. South Yorkshire Pensions Authority - 15th March 2018 (Draft) 

RESOLVED that the minutes be noted.

35. Police and Crime Panel - 20th April, 2018 (Draft) 

RESOLVED that the minutes be noted.

36. Planning Regulatory Board - 20th March, 2018 

Moved by Councillor D. Birkinshaw - Seconded by Councillor R. Wraith; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Planning Regulatory Board held on 20th March, 2018 be received.

37. Audit Committee - 21st March, 2018 

Page 52



5

Moved by Councillor Richardson - Seconded by Councillor Clements; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Audit Committee held on 21st March, 2018 be received.

38. Planning Regulatory Board - 17th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor D. Birkinshaw - Seconded by Councillor R Wraith; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Planning Regulatory Board held on 17th April, 2018 be

39. Audit Committee - 18th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Richardson - Seconded by Councillor Clements; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Audit Committee held on 18th April, 2018 be received.

40. General Licensing Regulatory Board - 25th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor C. Wraith, MBE – Seconded by Councillor Tattersall; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
General Licensing Regulatory Board meeting held on the 25th April, 2018 be 
received.

41. Statutory Licensing Regulatory Board - 25th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor C. Wraith, MBE – Seconded by Councillor Tattersall; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Statutory Licensing Regulatory Board meeting held on the 25th April, 2018 be 
received.

42. General Licensing Panel - Various 

Moved by Councillor C. Wraith, MBE – Seconded by Councillor Spence; and

RESOLVED that the details of the General Licencing Regulatory Board Panels held 
in the last cycle of meetings, together with their decisions, be received.

43. Appeals, Awards and Standards - Various 

Moved by Councillor Shepherd– Seconded by Councillor Makinson; and

RESOLVED that the details of the various Appeals, Awards and Standards 
Regulatory Board Panels held in the last cycle of meetings together with their 
decisions be received.

44. Health and Wellbeing Board - 3rd April, 2018 

Page 53



6

Moved by Councillor Sir Stephen Houghton, CBE – Seconded by Councillor Platts; 
and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Health and Well Being Board held on 3rd April, 2018 be received.

45. Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 28th March, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Ennis – Seconded by Councillor W. Johnson; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 28th March, 2018 be received.

46. Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 24th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Ennis – Seconded by Councillor W. Johnson; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 24th April, 2018 be received.

47. Central Area Council - 12th March, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Riggs - Seconded by Councillor Pourali; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Central Area Council held on 12th March, 2018 be received.

48. North Area Council - 19th March, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Leech– Seconded by Councillor Platts; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
North Area Council held on 19th March, 2018 be received.

49. North East Area Council - 29th March, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Hayward – Seconded by Councillor C. Wraith MBE; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
North East Area Council held on 29th March,2018 be received.

50. Penistone Area Council - 5th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Barnard – Seconded by Councillor Dave Griffin; and

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
Penistone Area Council held on 5th April, 2018 be received.

51. South Area Council - 27th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Stowe - Seconded by Councillor Franklin; and

Page 54



7

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the proceedings of the 
South Area Council held on 27th April, 2018 be received.

52. Appointment of Data Protection Officer 

Moved by Councillor Platts - Seconded by Councillor Pourali; and

RESOLVED that the Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud be designated 
as the Data Protection Officer as required in accordance with the General Data 
Protection Regulations.

53. Community Governance Review 2017/18 - Draft Proposals 

Moved by Councillor Andrews BEM - Seconded by Councillor Daniel Griffin; and

RESOLVED:-
(i) That the outcome of the Community Governance Review set out in 

Appendix 1 be received, and the draft proposals as summarised in 
paragraphs 4.2 and 4.3 of the report be approved for publication;

(ii) That comments on the draft proposals be sought over a four week period 
commencing on 4th June, 2018;

(iii) That, in the event that no significant comments are received in respect of 
the proposals, the Executive Director Core Service be authorised to issue 
an order to implement them with effect from 2nd May, 2019.

54. Cabinet - 21st March, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Sir Stephen Houghton, CBE – Seconded by Councillor Andrews 
BEM; and 

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the Cabinet Meeting 
held on 21st March, 2018 be received.

55. Cabinet - 4th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Sir Stephen Houghton, CBE – Seconded by Councillor Andrews 
BEM; and 

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the Cabinet Meeting 
held on 4th April, 2018 be received.

56. Cabinet - 18th April, 2018 

Moved by Councillor Sir Stephen Houghton, CBE – Seconded by Councillor Andrews 
BEM; and 

RESOLVED that the minutes as printed and now submitted of the Cabinet Meeting 
held on 18th April, 2018 be received.

57. South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority Representation 

Moved by Councillor Daniel Griffin - Seconded by Councillor Shepherd; and

Page 55



8

RESOLVED that the resignation of Councillor Burgess from the Fire and Rescue 
Authority, with effect from 25th June, 2018, be noted and that Councillor Clements be 
appointed as representative on the body with effect from that date.

………………………………………………..
Chair

Page 56



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL – ANNUAL MEETING

IN MEETING ROOM 11, TOWN HALL, CHURCH STREET, BARNSLEY, S70 2TA

4 JUNE 2018

PRESENT: Councillor A Khayum (Sheffield City Council) (Chair)

Councillor S Sansome (Rotherham MBC) (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: B Cutts (Rotherham MBC), R Frost 
(Barnsley MBC), B Johnson (Sheffield City Council), 
M O'Rourke (Sheffield CC), J Otten (Sheffield City Council), 
S Wilkinson (Doncaster MBC) and D Nevett (Doncaster MBC)

Independent Co-opted Members: Mr A Carter and Mr S Chu

Dr A Billings (South Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner), M Buttery (Office of the South Yorkshire 
Police and Crime Commissioner), M Clements (Office of the 
South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner) and 
F Topliss (Office of the South Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner)

Officers: D Cutting, M McCarthy, L Noble and M McCoole 
(Barnsley MBC)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Dyson 
(Barnsley MBC) and A Shirt (Barnsley MBC)

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR 

RESOLVED – That Members agreed:-

i) Councillor Khayum be appointed as Chair to the Police and Crime Panel for 
the ensuing municipal year.

ii) Councillor Sampson be appointed as Vice Chair to the Police and Crime 
Panel for the ensuing municipal year.

2 MEMBERSHIP OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 2018-19 

A report of the Service Director, Legal and Governance was presented to inform of 
the membership of the Panel for the municipal year 2018-19.

Page 57

Item 11



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

Councillor Khayum welcomed the new Members to the meeting and introductions 
were made.  On behalf of the Panel, he expressed his gratitude to 
Councillors Dunn, Griffin, Sixsmith, Hughes and Mirfin-Boukouris who had served 
on the Panel during the 2017-18 municipal year.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the membership of the Police and Crime Panel 
2018-19.

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were noted as above.  

4 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None.

5 URGENT ITEMS 

None.

6 ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

None.

7 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS IN RELATION TO 
ANY ITEM OF BUSINESS ON THE AGENDA 

None.

8 PUBLIC QUESTIONS:- 

8A TO THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

None.

8B TO THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

None.

9 QUESTIONS FROM POLICE AND CRIME PANEL MEMBERS TO THE POLICE 
AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

In accordance with Procedure Rule 11 (General Questions from Members of the 
Panel), the following questions had been submitted:- 

Received from Councillor Otten

1. “Is it the policy of SYP to report victims of crime or witnesses who report 
these crimes to the police to the Home Office for immigration enforcement? 

Page 58



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

2. Now that Leveson part 2 is off, what steps have you taken or will you take to 
satisfy yourself that any improper dealings between members of the press and 
officers of SYP will be properly dealt with?” 

Response

D Cutting stated that he had provided Councillor Otten with a written response (by 
e-mail on 21st May) setting out the reasons that the questions had not been 
included on today’s agenda.  He apologised for the oversight in not processing the 
questions in the appropriate manner, and which had prevented all Members of the 
Panel from having sight of the questions.  D Cutting suggested that the questions 
be put to the Commissioner, in order for him to provide Councillor Otten with a 
written response.

10 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 20 APRIL 2018 

A Carter requested that the minutes be amended to indicate that he was one of a 
number of representatives of the Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector in 
Sheffield, serving on the Sheffield Safer and Sustainable Communities Partnership 
Board.

Councillor Wilkinson referred to the shared learning from Rotherham MBC in 
relation to taxi licensing arrangements.  She reiterated her concern that licensed 
taxi drivers from other Districts, whose vetting processes may not be as 
vigorous as those undertaken within South Yorkshire, were permitted to work in 
South Yorkshire.

Councillor Frost highlighted that he was a member of BMBC’s Licensing Panel 
which worked closely with its counterpart panels within South Yorkshire; rigorous 
policies were in place to prevent taxi drivers from working across Districts without 
due registration.

Councillor Cutts referred to a number of taxi licenses which had been refused for 
not meeting the common standard, particularly within the Rotherham area.

Councillor Khayum stated that this was a matter for the licensing departments 
within the relevant local authorities, and not for the Panel or the Commissioner.

RESOLVED – That subject to the above requested amendment, the minutes of the 
Police and Crime Panel held on 20 April 2018 be agreed and signed by the Chair 
as a correct record.

11 ANNUAL REPORT (POLICE AND CRIME PANEL) 2017-18 

L Noble presented the Annual Report (Police and Crime Panel) 2017-18, which 
was the first Annual Report prepared by BMBC as host for the Panel.  The report 
demonstrated that the Panel had made improvements in the way it carried out its 
role, and she thanked Members both past and present, and the OPCC for the 
support provided.

Page 59



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

Members were requested to provide comments on the contents of the 
Annual Report to L Noble by 15 June 2018; following which design work would be 
undertaken in-house for inclusion on the PCP website.

L Noble sought the Panel’s authorisation to print 300 copies of the Annual Report 
for circulation to all South Yorkshire Councillors, MPs and Town and Parish 
Councils.  This is something that West Yorkshire PCP have trialled to raise the 
profile of Police and Crime Panels and it had been extremely successful.

Councillor Khayum thanked those Members that had already provided comments 
on the Annual Report.  He agreed that printed copies of the Annual Report would 
help to raise the profile of the Panel.  He sought the Panel’s approval to allocate 
funding for printed copies of the Annual Report.

L Noble stated that she would inform the Panel of the total printing cost of the 
Annual Report, and it may be appropriate to review the effectiveness of this spend 
during the year (prior to the production of the 2018-19 Annual Report).

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Agreed to provide L Noble with comments on the Annual Report by                     
15 June 2018.

ii) Agreed to allocate funding for printed copies of the Annual Report.

12 ENGAGEMENT ACTIVITY - FEEDBACK ON TRUST AND CONFIDENCE 

A report of the Commissioner was presented to provide Members with an overview 
of the results of an independent assessment of the levels of trust and confidence in 
South Yorkshire Police (SYP).

An independent survey had been carried out between October and 
December 2017, by SMSR Ltd, an independent research organisation, to obtain the 
views of hard-to-reach communities in South Yorkshire; over 4,400 face-to-face 
surveys had been undertaken.  F Topliss provided the Panel with a summary of the 
key headlines arising from the outcome of the survey, which had demonstrated that 
the communities across South Yorkshire had a high level of trust and confidence in 
SYP, and that residents were generally satisfied with the service received from 
SYP.

A 12-week engagement improvement plan had commenced across the Districts as 
a result of the surveys, to include PACT meetings and to improve marketing on the 
SYP website and social media.  Over 10,000 individuals had signed up to receive 
the SYP community alerts, and PCSOs would undertake greater visible 
engagement.  Each District would produce a report upon conclusion of the 12-week 
engagement improvement plan.

Councillor Wilkinson requested a definition of BAME, as referred to within the 
report, as she felt it did not adequately cover the Eastern European communities.

Page 60



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

F Topliss agreed to provide Members with a definition.

Councillor Cutts referred to the survey comparisons which had indicated that young 
people were more satisfied with SYP in comparison to the elderly.

F Topliss highlighted that the survey was undertaken on the basis of trust and 
confidence, and not necessarily on the levels of crime.

The Commissioner stated that the survey was currently utilised to establish a 
baseline for the residents in South Yorkshire.  A total of 5 murders had been 
encountered within South Yorkshire over the past 21 days, which was 
unprecedented; SYP had reacted very quickly to the incidents. 

Councillor Otten referred to an incident that had occurred outside of 
South Yorkshire, involving a female of ethnic minority who had been raped.  She 
had reported the incident to the local police, but she had then been detained 
on immigration grounds.  He queried whether this would happen within 
South Yorkshire.

The Commissioner stated that each case had to be taken on its own merit and dealt 
with accordingly.  He had no reason to suspect that SYP, who are in dialogue with 
a whole host of agencies, did not deal with victims of crimes in an appropriate way.

Councillor Sansome queried the measures that would be taken to increase the 
public’s confidence in the SYP Neighbourhood Policing Teams.  He requested that 
a report be submitted to the Panel in relation to the outcomes of neighbourhood 
policing initiatives.

F Topliss stated that the survey had been carried out at the point when SYP had 
moved into the embedding process around neighbourhood policing.

S Chu felt that it was a very positive report, which highlighted the public’s trust and 
confidence in SYP, in comparison to the way in which SYP had been portrayed 
within the national media.  He was encouraged to learn that black and ethnic 
minority approval of SYP was high in particular to ‘stop and search’.
 
RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the contents of the report.

ii) Be provided with the definition of BAME used in the survey.

iii) Noted that a report be submitted to a future Panel meeting in relation to the 
outcomes of neighbourhood policing.

13 ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE 

A report of the Police and Crime Commissioner was presented to provide Members 
with research material on artificial intelligence in policing.

Page 61



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

A Carter thanked the Commissioner for the report submitted, following his request 
at the last Panel meeting for Members to be kept appraised of any ongoing 
developments on the impact of South Yorkshire, and in any other areas where 
artificial intelligence was being trialled.  He was surprised to learn from the report 
that SYP currently had no plans to introduce artificial intelligence, and he 
suggested the need for SYP to be conscious of the new technologies being 
deployed globally.  He considered that it was important for Members to be made 
aware of any issues arising via regular reports to the Panel at 6 monthly intervals.

The Commissioner stated that SYP was currently considering artificial intelligence, 
but that there were no firm plans for implementation; any matters of interest would 
be brought to the Panel’s attention.

Councillor Wilkinson queried how confident the Commissioner was that SYP 
officers were fully conversant and competent in the use of the technology 
associated with artificial intelligence gathering.  She highlighted the importance for 
officers to input data correctly when determining whether to retain an individual 
within the custody suite, based upon the likelihood of an individual reoffending.

The Commissioner referred to the large amount of work to be undertaken to ensure 
that officers were fully conversant in this area.  Durham Constabulary had 
introduced an artificial intelligence system within their custody suite, which enabled 
a Custody Sergeant to swiftly make a decision as whether to retain an individual.

M Buttery suggested that it would be helpful to define within the report, to be 
presented to the Panel in 6 months’ time, the areas that SYP was working towards, 
the technology being utilised for analysis and the task of replacing human 
judgement.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the contents of the report and commented on any matters arising.

ii) Noted that a report on artificial intelligence (and wider technology utilised by 
SY Police) would be presented to the Panel in 6 months’ time.

14 ATLAS COURT/CONTACT MANAGEMENT:  PROGRESS UPDATE 

Members noted a reported increase in the performance and morale of SYP officers 
at the Atlas Court call centre over the last 6 months.  The Royal College of Policing 
staff were helping in progressing the Wellbeing Plan; all outstanding vacancies had 
been filled, and the SYP officers that had been drafted in to cover those vacancies 
within the scheme had now ceased.

The Connect System, the internal communication system, had been implemented 
at Atlas Court before the end of December 2017 and was embedding and operating 
successfully.  The majority of training for Smart Contact had now been completed.  

Page 62



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

The Commissioner provided SYP call handling data to Members; it was envisaged 
that a replacement 101 system would be implemented shortly.  Positive feedback 
had been reported in relation to the latest inspection on crime data and the integrity 
of calls listened to.  The increased demands on the police service nationally 
continued to be a significant issue.

Councillor Sansome requested the OPCC Communications Team provide a briefing 
note to the local authorities to explain the delay in implementing the replacement 
101 system.  He offered his assistance to the OPCC on the matter.

RESOLVED – That Members noted:-

i) The verbal update.

ii) That the OPCC Communications Team would provide a briefing note to each 
of the four local authorities in relation to the delay in implementing the 
replacement 101 system.

15 PCC GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

A report of the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) was submitted to provide 
Members with information on the PCC’s governance arrangements.  In the Summer 
of 2016, the PCC’s Chief Executive and Solicitor had initiated a review of the PCC’s 
arrangements in respect of the governance (holding to account) of South Yorkshire 
Police.

Councillor Sansome expressed concern that the report did not include any narrative 
regarding the actions implemented on the closure and timescale of issues.

M Buttery stated that the Governance Action Plan was published with the 
Statement of Accounts each year and had been drafted for sign-off by the 
Commissioner; she would provide Members with a copy of the document.

Councillor Sansome queried the benefits that the Public Accountability Board (PAB) 
provided in holding the Chief Constable and SYP to account, and the potential 
duplication / overlap with the work of this Panel.  He requested that Members be 
provided with a briefing note on the benefits of the PAB.

The Commissioner stated that the PAB provided an opportunity for major issues to 
be raised with SYP and himself in the public arena; following which a document 
detailing pertinent information from the meeting would be published on the SYP 
website.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the contents of the report.

ii) Be provided with the draft Governance Action Plan.

Page 63



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

iii) Be provided with a briefing note advising of the benefits of the                                
Public Accountability Board (PAB).

16 RULES OF PROCEDURE - SUGGESTED AMENDMENTS 

A report of the Solicitor/Panel Legal Adviser was submitted to provide Members 
with suggested revisions to the Rules of Procedure, which were kept under review 
and were last updated and approved by the Panel on 29 September 2017.  
Members recalled the informal reflection and work planning session that had been 
facilitated by Frontline Consulting on 18 April 2018, which had provided helpful 
suggestions by building on best practice from other Panels.

Members reviewed the Rules of Procedure, and a number of additional 
amendments were identified at paragraph 11.

Councillor Wilkinson queried how items for inclusion onto the Panel’s work 
programme were determined.

L Noble commented that since BMBC had taken on support for the Panel, the work 
programme had become a standard agenda item.  Members were able to suggest 
items for the inclusion onto the work programme, which would be discussed with 
the Chair and Vice Chair at the agenda planning sessions with the PCC.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the report.

ii) Approved the amendments to the Panel’s Rules of Procedure (as detailed in 
paragraphs 5 – 12 of the report now submitted) with immediate effect.

Councillors Otten and Cutts voted against the decision

iii) Agreed to amend the Panel’s agenda for future meetings with immediate 
effect.

17 DECISION LOG (PCC) 

A report was presented to provide Members with information on the decisions taken 
by the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) since the last Panel meeting.

A Carter had recently attended a Sheffield Safer and Sustainable Community 
Partnership Board meeting which had discussed the proposed community grant 
funding allocations.  He made a plea for a slightly larger funding allocation to be 
made available to the third sector organisations, in particular to those organisations 
that provided services through the community grant scheme to support the work of 
the PCC and the SYP.

Page 64



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

The Commissioner stated that over £1m of funding would be provided to the third 
sector organisations from the OPCC; any increase in the level of funding would 
impact upon the SYP budget.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the contents of the report and commented on 
any matters arising.

18 FEEDBACK FROM Y&H REGIONAL NETWORK MEETING, 23 MAY 2018 

On behalf of the Panel, Councillor Sansome and L Noble had attended the 
inaugural meeting of the Yorkshire and Humberside Regional Network Meeting held 
on 23 May 2018, which had been facilitated by Frontline Consulting.

The meeting had provided a good opportunity to pick up on best practice, and it 
had identified that all Police and Crime Commissioners shared the same concerns 
and issues.  L Noble would provide Members with the minutes of the meeting.  She 
suggested that an Independent Member should attend the next Yorkshire and 
Humberside Regional Network Meeting in September 2018, together with 
Councillor Sansome and herself.  The Network provided for a maximum of three 
attendees per Panel. 

Members noted the update in respect of the recently established 
National Association of Police and Crime Panels.  An inaugural meeting had been 
held in March 2018, with the next meeting scheduled in the Autumn as part of the 
National PCPs Conference in Warwick.

The work of this body would complement the National Association of Police and 
Crime Commissioners which was the national body that supported the 
Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs), and other local policing bodies across 
England and Wales, to provide national leadership and influence change in the 
policing and criminal justice landscape.  

Councillor Sansome said that North Yorkshire PCP, and West Yorkshire PCP had 
both invited the HMICFRS to attend an informal Panel meeting to elaborate on 
inspection reports.  He felt that this could be something South Yorkshire might 
replicate, although there would need to be clear parameters to invite the HMICFRS.  

The Y&H Network had also noted that the consistent membership of 
West Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel was a clear benefit, and that they 
worked collectively on the agenda and reports before them to hold the 
Police and Crime Commissioner to account, without becoming involved in any side 
issues. This resulted in positive meetings with the Panel fulfilling its role.

Councillor Sansome suggested that links be strengthened with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees at the four local authorities to ensure there is no duplication.  
In addition, at the conclusion of each West Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel 
meeting, Members held an informal de-brief in relation to what had gone well / not 
so well, and he asked Members to give that some consideration.  

Page 65



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

Another area of best practice from West Yorkshire PCP was the issuing of a press 
release after each meeting – depending on the issues discussed.  This also served 
to raise the profile of the Panel.  Councillor Sansome suggested that this Panel 
should give further consideration to adopting this practice.

Councillor Khayum thanked Councillor Sansome and L Noble for their attendance 
at the meetings.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the verbal update.

ii) Be provided with the minutes of the inaugural meeting of the                            
Yorkshire and Humberside Regional Network Meeting held on 23 May 2018.

19 LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT  - UPDATE 

L Noble stated that at the start of each municipal year, she would email newly 
appointed Members on the Panel, to arrange an Induction and to discuss any 
learning and development requirements to assist them in their role.  Existing 
Members will also be given the same opportunity, and the outcomes will help to 
formulate the 2018-19 Learning and Development Schedule.  

RESOLVED – That:-

i) Contact would be made with the newly appointed Members on the Panel to 
arrange Induction and to identify any learning and development requirements.

ii) Existing Members would also be provided with the same opportunity.

20 WORK PROGRAMME 

Members considered the 2018/19 Work Programme.

L Noble informed Members of a proposal to align the work of the Commissioner’s 
Public Accountability Board with the work of the Panel to ensure the reports 
submitted are timely. She reiterated that Members wishing to suggest items for the 
work programme should do so via herself, and these would be considered by the 
Chair and Vice-Chair at their pre-agenda planning meetings with the PCC.

Councillor Wilkinson referred to the ‘Inspire to Change’ leaflet that had been 
provided to Members, together with the app that SYP was developing with an 
outside partner for victims of domestic abuse.  She queried whether the Panel 
could review the success of both programmes after they had run for a period of 
6 - 9 months, to ascertain whether there had been a reduction in the number of 
domestic violence cases, and to determine whether a reference to domestic 
violence could be included within the Police and Crime Plan.

Page 66



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
ANNUAL MEETING

4/06/18

L Noble would discuss the matter further with the Police and Crime Commissioner.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the contents of the 2018/19 Work Programme.

ii) Officers would discuss with the PCC whether a report reviewing the success 
of programmes aimed at reducing domestic abuse could be submitted to the 
Panel.  

21 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

RESOLVED – That the next meeting of the Panel will be held on 
Monday 2 July 2018, at 1.00 pm in Room 11 at the Town Hall, Church Street, 
Barnsley, S70 2TA.

CHAIR

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

IN MEETING ROOM 11, SECOND FLOOR, TOWN HALL, CHURCH STREET, 
BARNSLEY, S70 2TA

2 JULY 2018

PRESENT: Councillor A Khayum (Sheffield City Council) (Chair)

Councillor S Sansome (Rotherham MBC) (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: B Cutts (Rotherham MBC), M Dyson (Barnsley 
MBC), R Frost (Barnsley MBC), D Nevett (Doncaster MBC), 
B Johnson (Sheffield City Council), J Otten (Sheffield City 
Council) and S Wilkinson (Doncaster MBC)

Independent Co-opted Members: Mr A Carter and Mr S Chu

Dr A Billings (South Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner), M Buttery (OPCC), M Carroll (OPCC), 
M Clements (OPCC) and F Topliss (OPCC)

Officers: D Cutting, M McCarthy, L Noble and C Tyler 
(Barnsley MBC)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor 
M O'Rourke (Sheffield CC), Councillor C McGuinness 
(Doncaster MBC) and A Frosdick (Barnsley MBC)

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were noted as above.  

2 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None.  

3 URGENT ITEMS 

None. 

4 ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

None.  

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS IN RELATION TO 
ANY ITEM OF BUSINESS ON THE AGENDA 

Page 69

Item 12



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

None.  

6 PUBLIC QUESTIONS:- 

7 TO THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER 

There were no public questions to the Police and Crime Commissioner.

Cllr Sansome referred to an ‘Abuse of position’ statement on HMICFRS website in 
respect of South Yorkshire Police in a letter to the Chief Constable dated 5th 
October 2017).   The letter stated that ‘… no information was provided that allowed 
us to assess your progress’.

Cllr Sansome had raised this issue several meetings prior and the HMICFRS 
document had not been mentioned by the PCC.  Additionally, given the high profile 
CSE in Rotherham, Cllr Sansome felt it odd that the letter should have been sent to 
the Chief Constable given the number of South Yorkshire officers involved in the 
CSE cases; is this a potential conflict of interest?   

Cllr Sansome asked the PCC if all information had now been made available to the 
HMICFRS.
 
Given the recent incidences across South Yorkshire, Cllr Sansome asked the 
Commissioner for information regarding what is being done to tackle knife crime in 
the county.

The Commissioner informed the Panel that knife crime is a matter regularly 
discussed at his regular meetings with the Chief Constable. 

The Commissioner informed the Panel of the various initiatives underway to try and 
address knife crime and to help try to understand what the underlying reasons 
might be for the increase in knife crime related incidents, noting this isn’t unique to 
South Yorkshire and appears to be an increasing issue nationally and 
internationally.

The Commissioner cited the potential statistical relationship between ‘Stop and 
Search’ policies and the reduction of instances of knife crime, and noted the 
reintroduction of proportionate and fair ‘Stop and Search’ activities will hopefully 
have a positive effect in this area.

Cllr Sansome asked whether current plans and policies were appropriate to 
address the return to the community of those convicted of knife and gun crimes. 

The Commissioner provided the Panel with examples of the current policies in 
place, noting where these policies are designed to avoid the prevalence of further 
issues, such as proactive measures to avoid the further criminalisation of young 
people.

Cllr Sansome asked whether the Panel might receive an update paper on 
Neighbourhood Policing at a future meeting.

Page 70



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

It was noted this is already included on the Panel’s work programme and would be 
received in the autumn.

Cllr Sansome noted there was a request at the previous meeting for an update 
briefing in relation to the delays in implementing the replacement for the 101 
system and asked when this would be made available.  A note had been provided 
to Members, but this had not been circulated to the four local authorities as the 
Panel had requested.  

The Commissioner summarised the significant amount of work and sensitivities 
involved in this project and noted one strand of work was looking at the best way to 
provide appropriate updates to the various stakeholders.

Cllr Sansome suggested that the people of South Yorkshire had already made a 
judgement that 101 ‘isn’t for them’, and this is evidenced by the high proportion of 
calls that are received by the 999 number instead of 101.

The Commissioner suggested demand for support from both numbers has risen 
exponentially and questioned whether more needed to be done to understand 
whether this is a consequence of a reduction in opportunities to contact other public 
services by telephone. 

The Commissioner confirmed the new 101 system would be ‘state of the art’ and 
would help the call handlers continue to deliver the best service possible. 

It was confirmed that no date for the introduction of the new system had been fixed 
due to the ongoing determination of complex legal and sensitive issues. The 
Commissioner stressed the importance of getting the new system right prior to its 
introduction.

The Commissioner thanked Cllr Sansome for his recent morale boosting visit to 
Atlas Court, and noted that a date was being sought for a wider Panel visit during 
July / August.

Cllr Sansome asked whether HMICFRS should  be asked to help scrutinise the new 
IT system to assure its capability. The Commissioner confirmed this was something 
that could be looked at.

Cllr Sansome asked whether the OPCC governance structure and further 
information regarding the role and remit of the Public Accountability Board (PAB) 
could be provided. Members were advised this information had been provided via a 
separate e-mail, and also included in the briefing for the meeting.

Cllr Sansome referred to the lack of elected representatives on PAB – other than 
the PCC - and whether this meant the Board was not effectively accountable to the 
people of South Yorkshire, whereas the Panel is. The Commissioner noted the role 
of PAB is essentially to enable him to hold the force to account, and the 
membership of PAB (with additional public and press attendance) and its subsidiary 
committees are structured to enable this function to be effectively discharged. The 
Commissioner noted that the Chairs of other Panels and Boards within his 

Page 71



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

governance structure are appointed following open and transparent recruitment 
processes.

M Buttery reminded Members of the differences between the statutory 
responsibilities of the Panel and the operational responsibilities of PAB, and 
commented on how the work of the two bodies are timed and co-ordinated to 
ensure the Commissioner holds the force to account and the Panel can 
subsequently hold the Commissioner to account.

Cllr Cutts noted he had raised a sensitive matter with the Commissioner two 
months ago and had not yet received a satisfactory response. The Commissioner 
advised Cllr Cutts that he needed to provide further information so the matter could 
be investigated further.

RESOLVED:-

i) That the PCC would investigate the possibility of the HMICFRS providing 
independent assurance around the IT system to support the 101 service.

8 TO THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 

There were no public questions to the Police and Crime Panel.

Cllr Cutts suggested there had been little time to read the draft minutes of the 
previous meeting and asked whether the reason was one of late circulation. 
However, it was suggested the reason for the apparent reduction in time was due 
to a shorter than usual time period between meetings. Members were assured 
officers will make all attempts to ensure draft minutes of meetings are provided as 
soon after the Panel meetings as possible.

The Chair noted past discussions around the appropriate protocol for receiving and 
addressing Members’ questions and asked whether the changes to the Rules of 
Procedure were now too restrictive.   He noted that the Monitoring Officer had 
provided Cllr Otten with a comprehensive response to his concerns, and the 
suggestion is that a slight change to the Rules of Procedure could be made to 
clarify the situation.

D Cutting indicated a report on this matter would be presented to the next meeting 
for Members’ consideration.

Cllr Otten suggested there was a lack of clarity regarding whose responsibility it 
was to determine if a question to the Commissioner would be deemed ‘appropriate’. 
D Cutting suggested this was the responsibility of the Panel.  Cllr Otten suggested 
he had not come across a Committee operating in that vein before. L Noble 
reiterated that advice had been sought from the Monitoring Officer, which 
suggested a minor change (for clarity) to the Rules of Procedure, but ultimately it is 
for the Panel to decide whether questions are relevant to the statutory functions of 
the Panel.  It is for the Panel to decide on the advice of either the Monitoring Officer 
or the Panel’s Legal Adviser. It is hoped the minor amendment to the Rules of 
Procedure would satisfy Members whilst focussing the Panel’s agenda on their 

Page 72



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

statutory role.  Cllr Wilkinson asked if the agendas for future Panel meetings could 
be timed to avoid the risk of over-run.

RESOLVED:- 

i) That the Panel would receive a report at the September meeting with further 
suggested amendments to the Rules of Procedure to address questions to the 
PCC.

ii) That officers investigate the possibility of timed agendas.

9 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 4 JUNE 2018 

Matters arising were addressed in the previous two agenda items, and through the 
Panel’s Decision Log.

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Police and Crime 
Panel held on 4 June 2018 be agreed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

10 ANNUAL REPORT (OPCC) 

Members were presented with the Annual Report (Police and Crime Panel) 2017/18 
and reminded of the Commissioner’s statutory responsibility to provide such a 
report.

It was noted this was the 4th such report presented by the Commissioner.

The Commissioner advised Members of the substantive inclusions in the report 
relating to his three over-riding priorities for the force and eight associated 
requirements of the Chief Constable.

Cllr Wilkinson asked whether the priorities and requirements were supported by 
monitored performance indicators. The Commissioner noted this was the case and 
informed Members there were various sources of information used to help quantify 
the delivery of the priorities and requirements. It was confirmed this information was 
available on the Commissioner’s website.

The Commissioner informed Members the Annual Report is the overall general 
review of progress and noted more detailed information could be provided on 
specific areas as required.

Cllr Sansome suggested there were some gaps in the hate crime and domestic 
abuse data for Rotherham. The Commissioner confirmed this matter would be 
looked into.

Cllr Cutts raised a question regarding the cost of running fire engines. However, it 
was suggested that questions of this nature should be received by the SY Fire 
Authority or the Public Accountability Board.

Cllr Frost) noted the ‘required improvements’ commented on in the report and 
asked whether the levy increase was helping to achieve these improvements. The 

Page 73



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

Commissioner suggested the responsibility to achieve the required improvements 
lies with the Chief Constable.

A Carter confirmed he was reasonably happy with the report and suggested this 
represents a generally improving picture across many areas and provides insight 
into how policing affects the lives of individuals.

A Carter commented on the excellent work the YOYO initiative is having on 
protecting younger people and asked whether a similar initiative could be 
introduced to help support the county’s older residents. 

The Commissioner said the requirement to help protect older residents against a 
number of crimes had been recognised and noted a joint initiative with the Fire 
Service to help tackle crime in areas of the county where older residents might be 
particularly at risk.

It was noted there are sessions held at Lifewise for older people to learn more 
about how they can protect themselves from becoming victims of crime.

Members were informed the YOYO initiative had been recommissioned for 
September and a report would be brought back to the Panel in due course 
regarding its effectiveness. An opportunity to sit in on a YOYO session was offered 
to the Members and duly welcomed.

RESOLVED:-

i) That the Annual Report (Police and Crime Panel) 2017/18 be noted

ii) That comments on the Annual Report would be provided to the OPCC by 9th 
July 2018.

iii) That the data in respect of hate crime and domestic abuse for Rotherham be 
checked.

iv) That a report on the effectiveness of the YOYO initiative be included on the 
Panel’s work programme.

11 COMMISSIONING BUDGET 

It is a statutory responsibility of the Commissioner to assure the maintenance of 
effective police finances, and a report was received to provide Members of the 
Panel with information on the Police and Crime Commissioner’s Commissioning 
Budget.

The report set out key components (Victim of Crime Fund, Community Grant Fund, 
Partnership Fund, Community Safety Fund and Priority response Fund) which 
make up the commissioning budget and information on the performance monitoring 
arrangements in place to ensure these components contribute to the delivery of the 
Police and Crime Plan outcomes.

Page 74



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

It was noted all project proposals need to set out how they will contribute to these 
outcomes when they are submitted, and also comment on how they will contribute 
to the 13 strands of vulnerability.

Members were advised as to the Commissioning Strategy’s principles by which the 
Commissioner and his team aim to identify and secure the right services to deliver 
the Police & Crime Plan outcomes.

Cllr Sansome asked if the project proposers’ expectations in respect of subsequent 
years funding was proactively managed when bids are submitted. It was confirmed 
this is the case and proposers are clearly informed how much they are guaranteed 
to receive and over what time period.

It was noted the components are managed as rolling programmes. Unsuccessful 
bids are given feedback and the opportunity to reapply after 3 months.

Members were advised of an innovative partnership with local newspapers to help 
promote funding opportunities to harder to reach community groups. It was 
confirmed there are a number of safeguards associated with this approach and 
each local allocation is overseen by a multi-agency panel who consider what grants 
should be awarded. 

Members were advised that cross checks are undertaken between the funds to 
avoid instances of double funding.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the contents of the report and commented on 
any matters arising.

12 POLICE AND PARTNERS PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ARRANGEMENTS 

A report of the Police and Crime Commissioner was submitted to provide Members 
of the Panel with details of the Commissioner’s proposed Police and Partners 
Performance Monitoring Framework.

Members noted that, when finalised, the Framework would help the Commissioner 
and stakeholders to assess whether the outcomes in the refreshed Police and 
Crime Plan are being achieved.

It was noted the framework has been developed with the input of all partners, and 
the expectation that those partners will adhere to agreed expectations around the 
quality and consistency of the performance data being received.

It was confirmed quarterly reports (with ‘RAG’ ratings and narrative) will be taken to 
PAB and all progress will be kept under review to enable potential improvements to 
be incorporated.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the arrangements being proposed.

Page 75



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

ii) Suggested any amendments that the Panel would wish to be made to the 
Framework, which would support their work

13 JOINT INDEPENDENT AUDIT COMMITTEE - UPDATE 

The Panel was presented with a copy of the Police and Crime Commissioner and 
Chief Constable’s  Joint Independent Audit Committee (JIAC) Annual Report.

Cllr Otten suggested the report focused too heavily on process and did not provide 
enough proposals or recommendations. The Commissioner cited the case studies 
included in the report as a means to address this suggestion but felt the subject 
matter somewhat limits what else can be provided.

It was noted that update reports from JIAC will be received by PAB by exception.

It was noted that officers from the OPCC and JAGU are discussing how risk 
management might be reported to the Panel.

RESOLVED - that the Panel receives the JIAC Annual Report

14 PCC DECISIONS 

A report of the Police and Crime Commissioner was presented to provide Members 
of the Panel with information on the decisions taken by the Commissioner since the 
last meeting.  

RESOLVED – That Members noted the contents of the report and commented on 
any matters arising.  

15 COMPLAINTS UPDATE 

Members were reminded that they had previously agreed to receive a six-monthly 
update on its role in dealing with complaints against the PCC.  

Members were informed there had been no reports within the last six months.  

RESOLVED – That Members noted the verbal update.  

16 LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT - UPDATE 

L Noble reminded Members that they had been offered a Development Discussion 
by email on 11 June 2018. To date, two responses had been received, with the 
offer remaining open.

In relation to proposed Learning and Development, Members were informed of the 
following opportunities and details of Members’ attendance at each event.

LGA PCP Workshop – 11th July 2018

 The Chair, Vice-Chair, Alan Carter and Linda Noble will be attending the 
LGA’s Annual PCP Workshop in London on 11th July.

Page 76



SOUTH YORKSHIRE POLICE & CRIME PANEL
2/07/18

 Feedback will be provided after the meeting, and formally at the Panel 
meeting in September.

Early Autumn 2018

 It is hoped to work with Frontline Consulting over the Summer to put together 
a session for Members around their proactive scrutiny and support role.

18th Criminal Justice Management Conference - 19th September

 Councillor Sansome will be attending this event in London and will provide 
feedback to the Panel.

Annual PCP Conference – 12th November 2018

 The Chair, Vice-Chair, Steve Chu, David Cutting and Linda Noble will be 
attending Frontline Consulting’s Annual PCP Conference in Warwick.

 Feedback will be provided after the event and formally at the Panel meeting in 
December.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the update.

17 WORK PROGRAMME 

Members considered the 2018/19 Work Programme and were reminded that they 
could submit issues for the Work Programme that fall within the Panel’s statutory 
role in supporting and / or holding the Commissioner to account.  

All issues would be given full consideration by the Chair, Vice-Chair and 
Commissioner at the pre-agenda planning meetings.  

RESOLVED – That Members noted the contents of the 2018/19 Work Programme.  

18 DATE AND TIME OF THE NEXT MEETING 

RESOLVED – That the next meeting of the Panel will be held on Monday 3 
September 2018, at 1:00 pm in Meeting Room 11, Town Hall, Church Street, 
Barnsley.  

CHAIR

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH YORKSHIRE PENSIONS AUTHORITY – ANNUAL MEETING

7 JUNE 2018

PRESENT: Councillor S Ellis (Chair)
Councillor M Stowe (Vice-Chair)
Councillors:  A Bainbridge, S Cox, A Hurst, J Mounsey, A Teal, 
A Sangar, I Saunders and R Wraith

Trade Unions:  N Doolan-Hamer (Unison), D Patterson (UNITE) 
and G Warwick (GMB)

Officers:  A Frosdick (Monitoring Officer), J Bailey (Head of 
Pensions Administration), G Graham (Fund Director) and 
M McCoole (Senior Democratic Services Officer)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor S Durant, 
Councillor K Wyatt, N Copley and M McCarthy

1 APPOINTMENT OF THE CHAIR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Sue Ellis be appointed as Chair of the Authority for the 
forthcoming year.

2 APPOINTMENT OF THE VICE-CHAIR FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 

RESOLVED – That Councillor Mick Stowe be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Authority 
for the forthcoming year.

3 MEMBERSHIP OF THE AUTHORITY 

A report of the Clerk on the membership of the Authority was presented.  The current 
membership was noted as:-

Barnsley
Councillors

Doncaster
Councillors

Rotherham
Councillors

Sheffield
Councillors

M Stowe
R Wraith

S Durant 
J Mounsey 
S Cox

S Ellis 
K Wyatt

A Bainbridge
A Hurst
A Sangar
I Saunders
A Teal

Councillor Ellis expressed her gratitude to Councillors Harpham, Sykes, Hussain and 
Richardson, who had served on the Authority during the 2017-18 municipal year; a letter 
of thanks would be sent to those Members on behalf of the Authority.  Councillor Ellis 
welcomed Councillor Stowe back onto the Authority, together with Councillors 
Bainbridge, Hurst and Teal.  She thanked Councillor Wraith for the invaluable 
experience that he had provided as Vice-Chair to the Authority during the 2017-18 
municipal year.

Page 79

Item 13



Pensions Authority Annual Meeting:  Thursday 7 June 2018

RESOLVED – That Members noted:-

i) The contents of the report.

ii) A letter of thanks would be sent on behalf of the Authority to Councillors Harpham, 
Sykes, Hussain and Richardson, who had served on the Authority during the 2017-
18 municipal year.

4 QUESTIONS IN MEETINGS OF DISTRICT COUNCILS 

A report of the Clerk was submitted to consider the appointment of representatives of 
the Authority to answer questions raised in meetings of the District Councils and to 
feedback District Council pension issues at each meeting of the Pensions Authority.

The appointments and substitutes for 2018/19 were noted as follows:-

Council Spokesperson Substitute

Barnsley MBC Cllr M Stowe Cllr R Wraith
Doncaster MBC Cllr J Mounsey Cllr S Durant
Rotherham MBC Cllr S Ellis Cllr K Wyatt
Sheffield CC Cllr I Saunders Vacancy

It was decided, as not all of the Sheffield City Council Members were in attendance, that 
the appointment of a Section 41 substitute Member would be notified to the next 
Authority meeting.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

(i) Agreed the Section 41 appointments to the Authority, as detailed above.

(ii) Noted that the appointment of a Sheffield City Council Section 41 substitute 
Member would be notified to the next Authority meeting.

5 APPOINTMENT OF BOARD AND COMMITTEES 

A report of the Clerk was presented to consider the appointment of Boards, Committee 
and Chairs for 2018/19.

Membership was confirmed as:-

Corporate Planning & 
Governance Board

Investment Board Management 
Committee

7 members 7 members Section 41 
Members

Cllr M Stowe
(Chair)

Cllr S Ellis
(Chair)

Cllr M Stowe 
Cllr R Wraith (Sub)

Cllr S Ellis
(Vice-Chair)

Cllr M Stowe
(Vice-Chair)

Cllr J Mounsey
Cllr S Durant (Sub)

Page 80



Pensions Authority Annual Meeting:  Thursday 7 June 2018

Cllr S Durant Cllr S Cox Cllr S Ellis
Cllr K Wyatt (Sub)

Cllr A Hurst Vacancy Cllr I Saunders
Vacancy (Sub)

Cllr A Bainbridge Cllr J Mounsey
Vacancy Cllr A Sangar
Cllr K Wyatt Cllr I Saunders
And three trades unions 
representatives

And three trades 
unions representatives

Nominations were received for Councillors Teal or Wraith to be appointed onto the 
Investment Board.  Councillor Ellis suggested that the matter be left in abeyance, whilst 
A Frosdick consulted relevant Members further.  Members endorsed the principle that 
due consideration be given to the need for representation on the Investment Board to 
reflect the political proportionality of the membership of the Authority.  The outstanding 
vacancy on the Investment Board and the Corporate Planning and Governance Board 
would be determined in due course in the light of that further consultation and if 
necessary the issue would be considered further by the Authority at its next meeting.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Agreed the Terms of Reference and membership of the Boards and Management 
Committee and their Chairs for 2018/19.

ii) That there be further consultations with relevant members having due regard to 
the principle of political proportionality in relation to the vacancy on the Investment 
Board.

iii) Noted that the outstanding vacancy on the Investment Board and the Corporate 
Planning and Governance Board would be determined in due course.

CHAIR

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH YORKSHIRE PENSIONS AUTHORITY

ORDINARY MEETING

7 JUNE 2018

PRESENT: Councillor S Ellis (Chair)
Councillor M Stowe (Vice-Chair)
Councillors:  A Bainbridge, S Cox, A Hurst, J Mounsey, 
A Sangar, I Saunders, A Teal and R Wraith

Trade Unions:  N Doolan-Hamer (Unison), D Patterson 
(UNITE) and G Warwick (GMB)

Officers:  J Bailey (Head of Pensions Administration), 
A Frosdick (Monitoring Officer), G Graham (Fund Director) and 
M McCoole (Senior Democratic Services Officer)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor S Durant, 
Councillor K Wyatt, N Copley and M McCarthy

1 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were noted as above.

2 LOYAL SERVICE AWARDS 

The Authority expressed its thanks to Melanie Dassow and Cath Lyman who had met 
the criteria for loyal service awards but were unable to be present today.

Councillor Ellis noted that at the end of June 2018 the Authority’s Investment Team 
would transfer to BCPP. She expressed her thanks and appreciation to the Team for 
their work over many years and considered that they embodied the ethos of the public 
sector at its best, with impeccable investment knowledge and skills.

Councillor Ellis presented awards to celebrate the service of the Investment Team to 
the Authority to Sharon Smith, Jane Firth, Ross Martin, Kevin Palmer, Shaun Lovett, 
Peter Turnor and Myles Andrews.

3 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Councillor Ellis informed Members that the new mobile webcasting equipment would be 
trialled at today’s meeting.  She introduced Jason Bailey, Head of Pensions 
Administration to the meeting.

J Bailey had recently joined the Authority after working at Surrey and East Sussex 
County Council Partnership for the past 15 years, with a total of 25 years’ experience in 
local government pensions.  He was delighted to head up the very professional and 
dedicated administration team in South Yorkshire.

Page 83

Item 14



Pensions Authority Ordinary Meeting Thursday 7 June 2018

4 URGENT ITEMS 

None.

5 ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

None.

6 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None.

7 MINUTES OF THE AUTHORITY MEETING HELD ON 15 MARCH 2018 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Authority meeting held on 15 March 2018 be 
agreed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

8 MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PLANNING AND GOVERNANCE BOARD HELD 
ON 15 FEBRUARY 2018 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Planning and 
Governance Board held on 15 February 2018 be noted.

9 MINUTES OF THE INVESTMENT BOARD HELD ON 8 MARCH 2018 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Investment Board held on 8 March 
2018 be noted.

10 MINUTES OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD HELD ON 18 JANUARY 2018 

At the Local Pension Board Meeting held on 15 March 2018, G Boyington had stepped 
down as Chair and a Member of the Board.

Councillor Ellis expressed her thanks, on behalf of the Authority, to G Boyington, who 
had been incredibly diligent and astute as a Member of the Board since its inception; a 
letter of thanks would be sent to G Boyington on behalf of the Authority.

Councillor Wraith echoed Councillor Ellis’ sentiments, and he expressed his best wishes 
to G Boyington in his retirement.

Councillor Stowe expressed his thanks, both personally and professionally, to G 
Boyington, and he wished him well in his retirement.

RESOLVED – That:-

i) The minutes of the meeting of the Local Pension Board held on 18 January 2018 
be noted.

ii) A letter of thanks to be sent to G Boyington, on behalf of the Authority.

Page 84



Pensions Authority Ordinary Meeting Thursday 7 June 2018

11 MINUTES OF THE LOCAL PENSION BOARD HELD ON 15 MARCH 2018 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Local Pension Board held on 15 
March 2018 be noted.

12 WORK PROGRAMME 

The Authority considered its Work Programme to 22 November 2018.

Councillor Ellis informed the new Members onto the Authority that the Work Programme 
formed a standard agenda item.  Members were permitted to make suggestions for 
inclusion onto the Work Programme and to raise any issues discussed at their 
respective local authorities.  Work would commence to refresh the Investment Strategy; 
Members would be invited to a seminar and workshop which would be held in 
September 2018.

RESOLVED – That the Work Programme was noted.

13 SECTION 41 FEEDBACK FROM DISTRICT COUNCILS 

Councillor Ellis commented that RMBC welcomed the newly appointed G Graham and 
J Bailey onto the Authority.

14 COMPLIANCE WITH THE PRINCIPLES FOR INVESTMENT GOVERNANCE - SELF-
ASSESSMENT 

A report of the Clerk was presented to inform Members of the outcome of the self-
assessment against the Principles for Investment Governance.

In October 2011, Members had adopted a system of self-assessment and had agreed 
to use a template to gauge compliance.  Members had been issued with individual 
copies in January 2018, to be completed and returned at the end of the financial year 
(March 2018); 10 forms from the 12 forms issued had been returned.  In the main, the 
scores were either Very Good or Excellent and no areas of concern or development 
needs had been identified.

RESOLVED – That the Authority:-

i) Noted the contents of the report.

ii) Agreed to any development needs arising from the results.

15 MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 

A report of the Clerk was submitted to provide Members with a forward look at learning 
and development arrangements in 2018/19.  It was essential for every Member of a 
public authority to have continuous training and development.  The requirements had 
been formalised following the introduction of more demanding governance 
requirements over the last 10 years.

Induction training would be arranged for the most recently appointed Members within 4 
weeks of the Authority’s AGM, and individual training needs analysis questionnaires 

Page 85



Pensions Authority Ordinary Meeting Thursday 7 June 2018

would be completed for all Members, to ensure that specialist training could be arranged 
where necessary.

Councillor Ellis reminded the new Members of the expectation to complete the 
Fundamentals Training within their first year of appointment onto the Authority; the 2018 
programme would be made available shortly.

G Warwick referred to the long standing arrangement for Trades Union representatives 
to be invited to attend appropriate training.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Nominated and appointed Councillor Sangar as Lead Member for Learning and 
Development.

ii) Agreed to commit to a personal development review.

iii) Agreed an annual training plan which could be developed further over the year as 
required.

16 REFRESH OF THE CORPORATE PLANNING PROCESS 

A report of the Fund Director was presented to secure the agreement of Members to a 
refresh of the Authority’s Corporate Planning process for delivery from 2019/20.

Members noted the very significant changes for the Authority since the last update in 
2015, in terms of its senior management, the forthcoming transfer of staff and assets 
into the BCPP pooling structure, and the progress towards eliminating the deficit.  It was 
therefore considered an opportune time to reflect on the Authority’s objectives to ensure 
that key issues were focussed upon.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Approved the Corporate Planning framework set out in Appendix A to the report.

ii) Noted the process of stakeholder engagement around corporate priorities 
proposed over the remainder of the current year.

iii) Noted the timetable set out for producing the various ‘enabling’ strategies.

17 REVIEW OF CORPORATE SUBSCRIPTIONS 

A report of the Fund Director was presented to allow Members to consider the current 
corporate subscriptions and levies and to allow them to indicate whether they wished to 
renew and/or add additional subscriptions.

Councillor Ellis suggested that the Authority should subscribe to the Pensions and 
Lifetime Savings Association (formerly the National Association of Pension Funds), 
which provided access to a range of research and training events that were focused on 
particular groups e.g. elected members and pension investors.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

Page 86



Pensions Authority Ordinary Meeting Thursday 7 June 2018

i) Noted the current range of corporate subscriptions and levies.

ii) Did not consider that any of the Authority’s subscriptions should be terminated.

iii) Agreed to subscribe to the Pensions and Lifetime Savings Association (formerly 
the National Association of Pension Funds).

18 WORKFORCE ISSUES 

A report of the Fund Director was submitted to provide Members with information 
relating to the profile of the Authority’s workforce in order to initiate consideration of a 
range of workforce risks which faced the Authority and necessary mitigation issues, and 
to seek approval for the Authority’s Pay Policy Statement.

The profile of the Authority currently consisted of:-

 66% of the workforce was aged over 40, with 21% aged 55 or over.
 The average length of service within the Authority was 14.2 years.
 62% of the workforce consisted of females, with 38% males.
 Within the 25% of the highest paid roles, females represented 48.1% of the 

workforce.
 4.6% of the workforce had a disability.
 The Authority did not currently have any staff from BME backgrounds.

A Frosdick highlighted that the job evaluation methodology had limited the equal pay 
risk at the local authorities.

G Graham stated that the current principal risk in relation to the Authority’s workforce 
was the age profile which was irrespective of gender, although there was a tendency 
for women to retire earlier than men.  The average member of staff had worked for the 
Authority for 14 years, the majority of which were pensions administrators with extensive 
pensions knowledge.

It would be pertinent to invest in technology and to recruit a new younger workforce, to 
be trained and developed prior to the retirement of the existing staff members over the 
next few years, in order to eradicate the risk to the Authority.

Councillor Bainbridge queried whether there was an opportunity to recruit apprentices 
or work experience individuals to SYPA.

G Graham stated that consideration would be given to apprenticeships, which would 
help to address the imbalance of the age structure of the workforce.  It would though, 
also be necessary to recruit individuals mid-career who had the relevant experience, 
together with apprentices and school leavers.

J Bailey commented that historically, he was not aware that the Authority had widely 
offered work experience to those still at school, although he would look into the matter 
further; SYPA had a good connection with the schools and academies within South 
Yorkshire.

Page 87



Pensions Authority Ordinary Meeting Thursday 7 June 2018

Councillor Bainbridge queried, if apprentices were to be recruited to the Authority, 
whether a financial incentive could be implemented for travel to the workplace in 
Barnsley.

J Bailey referred to the Authority’s presence at the four local authorities; consideration 
would also be given to more agile working for the workforce in the future once the 
appropriate technology was in place.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the Workforce Profile set out in Appendix A to the report.

ii) Approved the Pay Policy Statement set out in Appendix B to the report.

iii) Approved the adding of workforce issues to the Authority’s risk register.

iv) Instructed the Fund Director to develop proposals to address the risks and issues 
arising from the information contained in the report for inclusion in the refreshed 
Corporate Strategy.

19 QUARTER FOUR PERFORMANCE SNAPSHOT REPORT 

The Authority was presented with the Quarter 4 Performance Snapshot Report for 
2017/18.  The report provided a summary of the various information and statistics 
previously considered by the Authority’s Boards.

G Graham reported an improvement on the Administration performance during the 
quarter.  It was noted that 29 new employer contacts had signed up to the Authority’s 
interactive facilities during the quarter, which equated to 468 employers that were now 
registered for EPIC.  Only 7 employers, which covered 114 active members, had not 
registered for EPIC.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the report.

20 POOLING UPDATE 

A report of the Fund Director was submitted to provide Members with an update on 
developments in the process of pooling the Authority’s investments within the Border to 
Coast Pensions Partnership (BCPP).

At the last Authority meeting, changes had been approved to the post-pooling structure, 
and the restructure process for the finance team had been completed without a negative 
impact on staff.  Sharon Smith had been assimilated into the new role of Head of 
Investment Strategy; the new role of Investment Analyst would be advertised shortly.  
TUPE transfer arrangements had been agreed for six of the Authority’s Investment staff 
to BCPP on 2 July 2018, to transfer on their current terms and conditions, and 
appropriate roles had been identified.  BCPP would relocate to their new offices at 
Toronto Square in central Leeds at the beginning of June 2018.

Page 88



Pensions Authority Ordinary Meeting Thursday 7 June 2018

It had been agreed, as a result of the TUPE process, that the Authority would continue 
to manage the emerging market equities until September 2018, to enable BCPP to have 
a full staffing resource in place to manage the assets.

Members’ attention was drawn to the proposals agreed at the last meeting of the BCPP 
Joint Committee and subsequent Board meeting, to appoint two ‘shareholder’ non-
executive directors.  Councillor Ellis sought Members’ nominations via email 
consultation; the job description and role profile would be recirculated to Members.

G Warwick highlighted the requirement for Trades Union representative involvement.
 
Councillor Ellis stated that she had been very pleased with the negotiations that had 
taken place in South Yorkshire, which had always involved Trades Union 
representation.  It was important that the public sector ethos was embedded within each 
stage of the BCPP.

Councillor Mounsey stated that it was vital to provide the four local authorities with an 
update position on the BCPP as soon as possible.

G Graham would arrange for the four local authorities to be provided with an update 
position; he had recently began to discuss BCPP with the S151 officers at the local 
authorities.  The BCPP Chief Executive and Chair would attend the Investment Board 
meeting on 21 June 2018, to update Members on the latest position.

Councillor Ellis suggested that a special S41 Briefing Note should be produced to 
provide a BCPP update to the four local authorities.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the contents of the report and the progress being made with the pooling 
process.

ii) Agreed that nominations in relation to the appointment of two ‘shareholder’ non-
executive directors onto the BCPP be made via email consultation.

iii) Noted that the job description and role profile for the BCPP ‘shareholder’ non-
executive directors would be recirculated to Members for consideration.

iv) Noted that a special S41 Briefing Note would be produced to provide a BCPP 
update to the four local authorities.

21 THE GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION 

A report of the Head of Pensions Administration was submitted to update Members on 
progress with the continuing project to ensure compliance with the General Data 
Protection Regulation (GDPR) which became operative from 25 May 2018.

It was noted that Rob Winter, Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud at BMBC 
had agreed to act as Data Protection Officer for the Authority.

A Frosdick made reference to a number of data sharing agreements that required 
updating for GDPR and where legal advice had been requested from BMBC.  These 

Page 89



Pensions Authority Ordinary Meeting Thursday 7 June 2018

were being worked through progressively to confirm compliance with the GDPR 
requirements.  It was envisaged that the exercise would be completed by the next 
Authority meeting in October 2018.

J Bailey reassured Members that the contracts for the main providers i.e. software 
provider print houses and actuaries, with which the Authority exchanged personal data, 
were already GDPR compliant.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the contents of the report.

CHAIR

Page 90



SHEFFIELD CITY REGION COMBINED AUTHORITY

THE AMP TECHNOLOGY CENTRE, WAVERLEY, ROTHERHAM, S60 5WG

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 JUNE 2018

PRESENT:

Mayor Dan Jarvis, Sheffield City Region (Chair)
 
Councillor Graham Baxter MBE, North East Derbyshire DC
Councillor Julie Dore, Sheffield CC
Councillor Tricia Gilby, Chesterfield BC
Councillor Simon Greaves, Bassetlaw DC
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE, Barnsley MBC
Mayor Ros Jones CBE, Doncaster MBC
Councillor Ann Syrett, Bolsover DC

Fiona Boden, SCR Exec Team
Huw Bowen, Chesterfield BC
Andrew Frosdick, Monitoring Officer
Mark Lynam, SCR Exec Team
Dave Smith, SCR Exec Team
Daniel Swaine, Bolsover DC / NE Derbyshire DC
Craig Tyler, Joint Authorities Governance Unit
Eugene Walker, S.151 Officer
Steve Davenport, SYPTE
Andrew Gates, SCR Exec Team
Jayne Hampshire, SCR Exec Team
Jeni Harvey, SCR Exec Team
James Henderson, Sheffield CC
Claire James, SCR Exec Team
Felix Kumi-Ampofo, SCR Exec Team
Christine Marriott, SCR Exec Team
Mel Dei Rossi, SCR Exec Team
Mike Thomas, SCC / SCR Exec Team

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor C Read, Councillor L Rose OBE, 
R Adams, S Kemp, J Mothersole, J Miller, N Taylor and D Terris

Page 91

Item 15



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

Chair's Introduction

The Chair welcomed Members, officers and the members of the public present to 
the first meeting of the SCR Mayoral Combined Authority and noted he was looking 
forward to working with everybody.

1 VOTING RIGHTS FOR NON-CONSTITUENT MEMBERS 

It was agreed there were no agenda items for which the non-Constituent Members 
should not have full voting rights.

2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 

The Chair proposed Cllr Chris Read (Rotherham MBC) be appointed Vice Chair of 
the Authority.

It was noted there would be a clear distinction between the role of the Vice Chair to 
the Authority, and any appointed Deputy Mayor, and confirmed the Vice Chair 
would not be taking on any mayoral duties.

It was confirmed this distinction would be set out in the revised SCR Constitution.

RESOLVED, that Cllr Chris Read be appointed Vice Chair of the SCR Combined 
Authority.

3 APPOINTMENT OF ROTATIONAL MEMBERS FOR 2018/19 

A report was received to inform the Authority of the second rotational Member 
appointments, required to ensure the Authority has a majority of constituent 
Members.

RESOLVED, that the Authority notes the appointment of Cllr Joe Blackham 
(Doncaster MBC) and Cllr Denise Lelliott (Rotherham MBC) as the second 
rotational Members for the 2018/19 municipal year.

4 APPOINTMENT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND INDEPENDENT 
PERSONS 

A report was received to request the Authority notes the elected Member 
appointments to the SCR Audit Committee and to invite consideration of matters 
regarding the appointment of Independent Persons to the Committee.

The Authority was reminded of the requirement for the Audit Committee to maintain 
political balance based on the proportionality of the SCR’s constituent area. It was 
therefore noted an additional seat on the Committee was to be afforded to a Liberal 
Democratic member and officers would be making provision for an appointment in 
due course.

Members were reminded of the statutory requirement to appoint at least one 
Independent Person to the Audit Committee and advised of the process undertaken 
to identify potential candidates in compliance with relevant guidance on this matter.

Page 92



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

Members were asked to approve a proposal to remunerate the Independent 
Persons at a rate of £312.50 per meeting to cover for preparatory time, travelling 
time and meeting time. In consideration, the Authority determined to remunerate 
Independent Members on an annual basis, rather than a per-meeting basis, based 
on the assumption of 4 meetings per year and therefore totalling £1,250 per 
annum.

RESOLVED, that the Authority:

1. Approves the elected Member appointments to the SCR Audit Committee.

2. Approves the appointment of a further member(s) to achieve political balance.

3. Approves the appointment of Angela Marshall and Rhys Jarvis as the 
Independent Persons to the SCR Audit Committee, and the remuneration of 
£1,250 per annum, based on the assumption of 4 meetings per year.

5 APPOINTMENT OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND 
CHAIRING ARRANGEMENTS 

A report was received to request the Authority notes the elected Member 
appointments to the SCR Overview and Scrutiny Committee, to request the 
Authority determines a preference for an “independent” or “appropriate” Chair of the 
Committee and to note the requirement to appoint an additional Member(s) to 
maintain political balance.

The Authority was reminded of the requirement for the Audit Committee to maintain 
political balance based on the proportionality of the SCR’s constituent area. It was 
therefore noted an additional seat on the Committee was to be afforded to a Liberal 
Democratic member and officers would be making provision for an appointment in 
due course.

In consideration of chairing arrangements, the Authority expressed a preference for 
the appointment of an “appropriate” Chair, that being a sitting councillor 
representative of a different political party to the Mayor.

Members thanks the outgoing Chair, Cllr John Shephard for chairing the Committee 
since its inception.

Members were informed a Member had expressed a willingness in-principle to 
consider taking on the Chair of the Committee. 

RESOLVED, that the Authority:

1. Determines a preference for the appointment of an appropriate Chair of the 
SCR Overview and Scrutiny Committee and instructs officers to make 
provision for this decision in accordance with relevant legislation.

2. Approves the Overview and Scrutiny Committee membership for 2018/19

Page 93



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

3. Approves the appointment of a further member(s) to achieve political balance.

6 APPOINTMENT OF DATA PROTECTION OFFICER 

A report was received to remind the Authority that as per the General Data 
Protection Regulation (GDPR) which came into force on 25th May 2018, there is a 
requirement to formally appoint a Data Protection Officer.

RESOLVED, that the Authority appoints Stephen Davenport, Principal Solicitor and 
Secretary of South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive as an Officer of the 
Combined Authority and designate him the SCR Mayoral Combined Authority Data 
Protection Officer in accordance with the requirements of Article 37 of the General 
Data Protection Regulations.

7 REVIEW OF TFN NOMINATIONS 

A report was received recommending the appointment of the Mayor as the SCR’s 
representative on the Transport for the North (TfN) Board.

Cllr Dore suggested it was critical the Mayor takes on this role given TfN’s new 
statutory body status and the need to ensure the best interests of the region are 
appropriately represented.

Cllr Greaves requested the importance of TfN and its plans to the SCR’s non-
Constituent area not be forgotten.

RESOLVED, that the Authority:

1. Appoints the SCR Mayor to the position of TfN Board member for Sheffield 
City Region.

2. Notes the nomination of a substitute representative is to be determined upon 
the conclusion of a review into governance and lead member responsibilities.

8 APOLOGIES 

Apologies were noted as above.

9 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None.

10 URGENT ITEMS 

None.

11 ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

RESOLVED – that item 27 (Item 19 Appendix – Inward Investor) be received in the 
absence of the public and press,

Page 94



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS IN RELATION TO 
ANY ITEM OF BUSINESS ON THE AGENDA 

As Leaders of their respective Local Authorities, Cllr Dore and Mayor Jones 
declared interests in the schemes to be considered at item 19 and 27 and took no 
part in the debate in respect of these items.

13 REPORTS FROM AND QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS 

None received.

14 RECEIPT OF PETITIONS 

The Authority was advised of the receipt of a 30 signature petition from Mr Adam 
Allcroft. It was noted Mr Allcroft is petitioning for the introduction of a bus service 
from Chapeltown to Meadowhall via Ecclesfield on the grounds that many residents 
of North Sheffield are unable to access Meadowhall directly by bus for work and 
leisure purposes.

RESOLVED, that the Authority directs officers of SYPTE to respond to Mr Allcroft 
on its behalf.

15 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

The Authority was advised of the receipt of 2 public questions.

From Mr Nigel Slack - What progress has been made in bringing Barnsley & 
Doncaster Councils back to supporting the deal currently on the table, before 
progressing any potential 'One Yorkshire' proposals? In particular, what 
meetings has the Mayor held with the Leaders of the four Constituent 
Authorities with respect to this issue?

Responding to this question, the Chair noted he has held regular meetings with the 
Leaders to discuss matters regarding devolution. The Chair noted that, as 
referenced in his election manifesto, he views devolution to be a process not an 
event and will therefore continue to work closely with the Leaders of South 
Yorkshire and further afield to make the most of the opportunities devolution 
affords.

From Cllr Chris Furness - Combined Authority Scrutiny and Audit committee 
meeting are webcast live, so shouldn’t the Combined Authority meetings also 
be webcast Live?

Responding to this question, the Chair emphasised the importance of transparency 
in the decision making process, but noted the established venue for Combined 
Authority meetings doesn’t have the equipment installed to facilitate this service. It 
was confirmed the potential for webcasting Combined Authority meetings would be 
looked at carefully going forward.

Page 95



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

16 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 9TH MARCH 

RESOLVED, that the minutes of the meeting held on 9th March are agreed to be an 
accurate record of the meeting.

17 CONSTITUTION 

A report was received requesting approval of the amendments to the SCR CA 
Constitution to reflect the change required following the election of the Mayor and 
to reflect legislative changes since the last constitution was approved.

The Authority was informed further amendments were to be incorporated in respect 
of; clarification of the separation of the SCR Authority Vice Chair and SCR Deputy 
Mayor appointments, the “appropriate” chairing of the SCR Scrutiny and Overview 
Committee, remuneration of Independent Persons appointed to the SCR Audit 
Committee, clarification of the procedural rules around the receipt of public 
questions, and the renaming of the Audit Committee to the Audit and Standards 
Committee.

RESOLVED, that the Authority approves the revised Constitution, subject to the 
inclusion of the above amendments.

18 LGF CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 OUTTURN POSITION 

A paper was presented to provide the Authority with an update on the 2017/18 LGF 
programme outturn position.

It was reported the final outturn position for 2017/18 was expenditure of £78.2m 
against an indicative funding allocation of £78.19m when the budget was set in 
March 2017. However, the actual grant allocation from the MHCLG (Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government) received in April 2017 was £86.9m, 
a difference of £8.9m. There has therefore been an underspend of £8.66m against 
the increased 2017/18 grant allocation.

It was noted the outturn position therefore equates to 100% of the indicative 
allocation and 90% of the actual allocation. Discussions are continuing with 
MHCLG regarding the spend profile of the additional 2017/18 grant allocation as 
the programme profile requires this funding in 2019/20.

The Authority was advised that slippage against delivery milestones has been a 
continued feature of the LGF programme to date. Resource intensive mitigations 
have had to be implemented in each of the previous two years to ensure no loss of 
funding to the LEP programme. It was therefore suggested the challenge for the 
final three years of the programme is ensuring delivery of schemes to achieve the 
outputs and outcomes the LEP agreed as part of the growth deal.

It was noted the grant determination letter has been received for 2018/19. This sets 
the budget at £42.5m grant, and is 100% of the expected in year allocation.

The Members reasserted comments that MCHLG’s awarding of budgetary 
allocations one year at a time is not a sensible way to manage a capital programme 

Page 96



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

and longer term settlements, and a longer term approach (i.e. two year approach) 
to carrying over underspend, are needed.

RESOLVED, that the Authority notes the 2017/18 LGF capital programme outturn 
position.

19 LGF CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND APPROVALS 

In line with the approved Assurance Framework, a paper was tabled presenting the 
LGF Financial Approvals which have progressed through the appraisal process.

RESOLVED, that the Authority:

1. Approves the Infrastructure projects subject to the conditions set out in the 
report 

a) Inward Investor - £4.1m (See item 27) 
b) DMBC Quality Streets - £1.35m
c) SCC Upper Don Valley Flood Alleviation Scheme - £3.46m

2. Notes the changes approved using the delegated authority to the Head of 
Paid Service and Section 73 Officer in conjunction with the Chair of the MCA 
to maximise the outturn spend position at year end to mitigate against any 
potential loss of funding, in relation to FARRRS, the STEP programme and 
the M1 J36 (Hoyland) project.

3. Approves the delegation of authority to the Head of Paid of Service, in 
conjunction with the Section 73 Officer, to enter into the contractual 
arrangements required as a result of the above approvals.

20 CA REVENUE BUDGET, CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND TREASURY OUTTURN 
REPORT 

A report was received to provide the outturn position for the revenue budgets and 
capital programme of the Sheffield City Region (SCR) Mayoral Combined Authority 
(MCA) for the financial year 2017/18. 

It was noted this position will help to inform the process of business planning for 
2019/20 and beyond.

Members requested additional information to help explain the 3 revenue budget 
referenced in the report. 

RESOLVED, that the Authority:

1. Notes the 2017/18 outturn position (which is subject to external audit) for the 
Mayoral Combined Authority’s revenue budget and capital programme, 
including the reserves statement.

2. Approves the 3 revenue programme variations as summarised in the report, 
noting additional supporting information will be provided.

Page 97



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

3. Notes that the level and accounting for reserves (including the PTE 
revaluation reserve) will be reviewed as part of the MTFS refresh which will be 
presented to the MCA at its July meeting

4. Approves the carry forward of £1.510m of underspend to provide funding for 
the Integrated Transport Block projects listed in the report and notes that the 
reported over-programming of £724k will be managed out during the year

21 CA BROAD STREET WEST ASSET 

A report was received to outline the work required to Broad Street West (BSW) to 
improve public accessibility, security and compliance of the Mayoral Combined 
Authority (MCA) building to ensure the building meets local authority standards and 
addresses security issues following a recent inspection.

RESOLVED, that the Authority notes the scheme, rationale and cost plan for the 
proposed improvement works to Broad Street West (BSW) and approves the 
progression of works.

22 DELEGATED AUTHORITY REPORT 

Provided for information.

23 RESOLUTION RECORD – TRANSPORT EXECUTIVE BOARD 

RESOLVED, that the decisions and recommendations contained within the report 
are duly endorsed.

24 RESOLUTION RECORD – HOUSING & INFRASTRUCTURE EXECUTIVE BOARD 

RESOLVED, that the decisions and recommendations contained within the report 
are duly endorsed.

25 RESOLUTION RECORD – BUSINESS GROWTH EXECUTIVE BOARD 

RESOLVED, that the decisions and recommendations contained within the report 
are duly endorsed.

26 RESOLUTION RECORD – SKILLS EXECUTIVE BOARD 

RESOLVED, that the decisions and recommendations contained within the report 
are duly endorsed.

27 PAPER 19 - APPENDIX A - INWARD INVESTOR 

The Authority was presented with information supplementary to that presented at 
item 19.

RESOLVED, that the Authority approves the award of £4.1m for the Inward Investor 
project for Business Investment Fund (BIF) funding noting that the agreed payment 
profile for the 50% repayable element will be formalised following this decision.

Page 98



SCR Combined Authority
11/06/18

CHAIR

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH YORKSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

ANNUAL MEETING

25 JUNE 2018

PRESENT: Councillor C Lamb (Chair)

Councillors:  A Atkin, M Clements, S Ayris, T Hussain, 
R Taylor, C Ross, T Damms, P Haith, C Hogarth, C Ransome, 
J Satur and Dr A Billings

CFO J Courtney, QFSM, DCFO M Blunden, ACFO A Johnson, 
S Booth and R Brason (South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 
Service)

D Terris, N Copley, A Frosdick, L Noble, D Cutting, A Hunt and 
M McCoole (Barnsley MBC)

M Buttery (Office of the South Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner)

Apologies for absence were received from A Brown and 
M McCarthy

1 TO APPOINT THE CHAIR OF THE AUTHORITY FOR THE ENSUING YEAR 

RESOLVED – That Members agreed Councillor Lamb be appointed as Chair of the 
Authority for the ensuing year.

2 TO APPOINT THE VICE-CHAIR FOR THE AUTHORITY FOR THE ENSUING 
YEAR 

RESOLVED – That Members agreed Councillor Atkin be appointed as Vice-Chair 
of the Authority for the ensuing year.

3 CHAIR'S REMARKS 

Members noted that the new mobile webcast facility was now operational.  A 
recording of the meetings held today would be uploaded onto the Authority’s 
website immediately afterwards.

Councillor Ayris requested that Members be provided with a link to the webcasts of 
the meetings held today.

Page 101

Item 16



Fire and Rescue Authority Annual Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Councillor Lamb gave thanks to Councillors Burgess, Buckley, Maroof and 
Rosling-Josephs who had served on the Authority during the 2017-18 municipal 
year.  He expressed his gratitude to Councillor Burgess, for her efforts during her 
time as Chair, and to ensure that the Authority had taken significant steps forwards 
in terms of its governance responsibilities.  He expressed his congratulations to 
Councillor Buckley who had become Mayor of RMBC; a letter of thanks would be 
sent to those Members on behalf of the Authority.  He welcomed the new Members 
- Councillors Ross, Hussain and Taylor to the Authority.
 
Dr Billings also expressed his thanks to Councillor Burgess, who had been 
instrumental in establishing and developing the collaboration between the Service 
and South Yorkshire Police (SYP).

RESOLVED – That Members be provided with a link to the webcasts of the 
meetings held today.

4 MEMBERSHIP OF THE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY 

A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was presented informing 
Members of the membership of the Authority as notified by the District Councils:-

Barnsley Councillors C Lamb and M Clements

Doncaster Councillors C Hogarth, P Haith and C Ransome 

Rotherham Councillors A Atkin and R Taylor 

Sheffield Councillors S Ayris, T Damms, T Hussain, C Ross and J Satur 

PCC* Dr A Billings - South Yorkshire Police & Crime Commissioner

*At the Authority meeting held on 13 February 2017, it was agreed that the 
South Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner would become a Member of the 
Fire and Rescue Authority with full voting rights.  

RESOLVED – That Members note the membership of the Authority as notified by 
the District Councils. 

5 AUTHORITY GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was submitted seeking 
appointment to the Authority’s Committees and Boards, and also the appointment 
of Chairs and Vice-Chairs of the Committees (other than the Appeals and 
Standards Committee).

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Approved the meeting structure as detailed below:-

Page 102



Fire and Rescue Authority Annual Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Committee/ Working Party Members
Audit and Governance Committee Cllr P Haith (Chair)

Cllr S Ayris
Cllr T Damms
Cllr C Ransome 
Cllr T Hussain
Cllr R Taylor

3 Independent 
Members:-             
Mrs A Bingham 
Mr C Pilkington             
Mrs N Wright

Appointments Committee Cllr A Atkin
Cllr T Damms
Cllr P Haith
Cllr C Ransome
Cllr J Satur  
Cllr C Lamb

Appeals and Standards Committee Cllr S Ayris
Cllr M Clements
Cllr C Hogarth
Cllr C Ross
Cllr T Hussain
Cllr R Taylor

Principal Officers Review 
Committee A 

Cllr C Ransome
Cllr A Atkin (sub)

Cllr P Haith
Cllr J Satur (sub)

Cllr M Clements
Cllr T Hussain

Principal Officers Review 
Committee B

Cllr A Atkin 
Cllr S Ayris (sub)

Cllr C Hogarth
(sub) Cllr J Satur

Cllr C Ross
Cllr P Haith (sub) 

Page 103



Fire and Rescue Authority Annual Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Principal Officers Review 
Committee C

Cllr S Ayris 
Cllr A Atkin (sub)

Cllr C Lamb
(sub) Cllr R Taylor

Cllr J Satur 
Cllr C Ransome (sub)

Performance and Scrutiny Board (Chair) Cllr T Damms
Cllr S Ayris
Cllr M Clements
Cllr C Ross
Cllr C Hogarth
Cllr C Ransome 
Cllr J Satur

Stakeholder Planning Board All FRA Members 
Cllr J Satur (Chair) 

Corporate Advisory Group All FRA Members
(No Chair required)

Joint Liaison Forum (JLF) All FRA Members 

ii) Noted the terms of reference of the Committees as set out in Appendices A to 
H of the report.

iii) Appointed Members to Committees and Boards where vacancies exist.

iv) Appointed the Chair and Vice-Chair (if required) of each Committee and 
Board (other than the Appeals and Standards Committee).

6 FUTURE MEETING DATES 2018/19 

A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was presented setting out a 
schedule of meeting dates for the Authority in 2018/19.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Agreed the current governance framework of 8 meetings per year for FRA and 
6 meetings of Audit and Governance Committee underpinned by the Appeals 
and Standards Committee, Appointments Committee and the two Boards 
(Stakeholder Planning and Performance and Scrutiny).

ii) Approved the suggested schedule of meeting dates for 2018/19 as set out 
below:-

Page 104



Fire and Rescue Authority Annual Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Fire and Rescue 
Authority

Audit & Governance 
Committee

Performance & 
Scrutiny Board

Stakeholder 
Planning Board

25 June 2018*
(Annual & Ordinary)

25 June 2018* 
(Extra Ordinary)

23 July 2018* 23 July 2018* 12 July 2018* 11 July 2018*

17 September 2018* 17 September 2018* September 2018** 19 September 2018*
15 October 2018*
26 November 2018* 26 November 2018* November 2018** 28 November 2018*

 
14 January 2019 14 January 2019
11 February 2019

18 March 2019 March 2019** March 2019**
8 April 2019

13 May 2019
24 June 2019
(Annual & Ordinary)

24 June 2019
(Extra Ordinary – To 
approve the accounts)

June 2019** June 2019**

22 July 2019 22 July 2019

16 September 2019 16 September 2019 September 2019** September 2019**
14 October 2019
25 November 2019 25 November 2019 November 2019**

December 2019**

* Meeting dates already arranged  
**Meeting dates to be arranged

7 ARRANGEMENTS UNDER SECTION 41 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 
1985 

A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was submitted requesting the 
Authority to consider the appointments of District Council representatives under 
Section 41 of the Local Government Act 1985.

RESOLVED – That Members agreed the appointment of the following Members to 
answer questions at meetings of the constituent councils on the discharge of the 
functions of this Authority:-

Page 105



Fire and Rescue Authority Annual Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Authority Member Substitute

Barnsley Cllr C Lamb Cllr M Clements 

Doncaster Cllr P Haith Cllr C Hogarth

Rotherham Cllr A Atkin Cllr R Taylor

Sheffield Cllr J Satur Cllr T Damms

8 OUTSIDE BODIES 

A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was submitted requesting the 
Authority to consider whether or not it wished to re-affiliate to the various outside 
bodies listed in the report and, if it did, to consider representation of the Authority 
on outside bodies.

Councillor Ayris referred to the Local Government Association (LGA) subscription 
costs.  He requested the details of the number of Members that had attended the 
LGA Annual Fire Conference held in March 2018, and how many of those Members 
remained on the Authority.

L Noble would provide Members with the details of how many times Members had 
attended the LGA Fire Commission during the municipal year, together with 
attendance at the LGA Annual Fire Conference held in March 2018.

Councillor Atkin stated that Councillors Burgess, Damms, Clements and himself 
had attended the LGA Annual Fire Conference held in March 2018; all Members, 
including the opposition Members had been invited to the event.

Councillor Lamb referred to the Local Pension Board arrangements, and 
representation from the Scheme Manager.  Councillor Clements will take over this 
role from Councillor Atkin due to his significant experience of occupational pension 
schemes and its management.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Agreed to re-affiliate to the various outside bodies listed in the report.

ii) Agreed to appoint representatives to serve on the outside bodies listed in the 
report for 2018/19 and that, in accordance with Standing Order 24, the 
appointments continue until the next annual meeting of the Authority, or 
membership ceases:-

Page 106



Fire and Rescue Authority Annual Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Outside Body Member Representation
LGA General Assembly S41 Members
LGA Fire Commission Chair / Vice-Chair or their nominee

LGA Urban Commission Chair & Vice-Chair or their nominee
LGA Rural Commission Chair & Vice-Chair or their nominee

Association of Metropolitan Fire 
Authorities (AMFRA)

Chair & Vice-Chair

Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation 
(YPO)

Cllr Atkin

Yorkshire and Humberside 
Employers’ Organisation

Cllr Pat Haith

Community Safety Partnerships 
(or equivalent)

Section 41 Members

SSUK Board Section 41 Members
HOPE Board – Trustee Members Councillors A Atkin and S Ayris
Pensions:  National Scheme Advisory 
Board

Part of the Local Pension Board 
arrangements

iii) Agreed to learning and development to support Members on Outside Bodies 
as part of the 2018/19 Learning and Development Schedule.

iv) Agreed to be provided with the details of how many times Members had 
attended the LGA Fire Commission in the last municipal year.

v) Noted that Councillor Clements would represent the Authority (as Scheme 
Manager) on the Local Pension Board.

CHAIR

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH YORKSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE AUTHORITY

ORDINARY MEETING

25 JUNE 2018

PRESENT: Councillor C Lamb (Chair)
Councillor A Atkin (Vice-Chair)
Councillors:  S Ayris, M Clements, T Hussain, R Taylor, 
C Ross, T Damms, P Haith, C Hogarth, C Ransome, J Satur 
and Dr A Billings

CFO J Courtney, QFSM, DCFO M Blunden, ACFO A Johnson, 
S Booth and R Brason (South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 
Service)

D Terris, N Copley, A Frosdick, L Noble, D Cutting, A Hunt and 
M McCoole (Barnsley MBC)

M Buttery (Office of the South Yorkshire Police and Crime 
Commissioner)

Apologies for absence were received from A Brown and 
M McCarthy

1 APOLOGIES 

Apologies for absence were noted as above.

2 ANNOUNCEMENTS 

L Noble read out a response from Councillor Burgess to Councillor Brian Steele on 
23 April 2018, in relation to the 2nd pump position at Rotherham Fire Station.

3 URGENT ITEMS 

None.

4 ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE ABSENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

Councillor Ross queried the reason as to why agenda Item 25 entitled 
‘South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue’s Response to the Kerslake Report’ and agenda 
Item 26 entitled ‘Stronger Safer Communities Reserve – Project Funding’ would be 
considered in the absence of the public and press.

D Cutting stated that agenda Item 26 entitled ‘Stronger Safer Communities Reserve 
– Project Funding’ referred to an organisation that was in some financial difficulty.  
The Authority had been invited to reconsider the Stronger Safer Communities 
Reserve (SSCR) funding for that organisation.

Page 109

Item 17



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

A Frosdick commented that the reports had been submitted as potential items for 
consideration in the absence of the public and press; legislation required the 
Authority to consider whether such items should be considered in the private 
section of the meeting.  It was pertinent to ensure that relevant information was not 
disseminated to the press and public.  He sought Members’ approval for all three of 
the reports to be considered in the absence of the public and press.

RESOLVED – That Members agreed that agenda items 25, 26, and 27 would be 
considered in the absence of the public and press.
 
Councillors Ross, Ransome and Ayris voted against the decision.

5 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS IN RELATION TO 
ANY ITEM OF BUSINESS ON THE AGENDA 

None.

6 REPORTS BY MEMBERS 

On 27 April 2018, Councillor Satur had been part of a visit to Rivelin Fire Station 
with a group of individuals from the Burton Street Foundation.  The Burton Street 
Foundation had been based in Hillsborough, Sheffield for 20 years and supported 
adults with learning disabilities and a range of other complex needs; the 
organisation was highly regarded in Sheffield.  Without the organisation, which 
provided a wide range of day care opportunities, most of the individuals would lead 
very isolated lives within their homes or care homes.

Through the Stronger Safer Communities Reserve (SSCR), the Authority supported 
the organisation’s work to improve the safety and well-being of its clients and the 
fire station visit had been part of that learning.  Councillor Satur gave special thanks 
to the White Watch Crew and to Group Manager Trevor Bernard, who had provided 
the group with simple fire safety messages, a tour of the fire station, and ensured 
that everyone had been included and enjoyed the visit.  She requested Members to 
contact R Bywater if they required further details of the project or to arrange a visit 
to the Burton Street Foundation.

Councillor Lamb requested that the Authority’s thanks be conveyed to the Service’s 
staff.

Councillor Ransome referred to the Long Service and Good Conduct Awards 
Ceremony that she had attended together with Councillor Atkin on 30 May 2018 at 
Sheffield City Hall, at which CFO Courtney had given an inspirational talk.  She 
requested that the Authority’s thanks be conveyed to the firefighters and support 
staff who had received the awards.

Councillor Atkin requested that the Authority’s thanks also be conveyed to 
Station Manager Lorraine Smith who had received an MBE, in recognition of her 
work undertaken in the Control Room.  Councillor Atkin gave thanks to SYFR in 
respect of the video that had been produced by the Service’s female staff and their 

Page 110



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

children as part of the International Women’s Day, which had won two national 
awards.

Councillors Atkin and Taylor had recently attended a Middle Managers Meeting, 
which had focussed on support workers. 

7 RECEIPT OF PETITIONS 

None.

8 TO RECEIVE ANY QUESTIONS OR COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC, 
OR COMMUNICATIONS SUBMITTED BY THE CHAIR OR THE CLERK AND TO 
PASS SUCH RESOLUTIONS THEREON AS THE STANDING ORDERS PERMIT 
AND AS MAY BE DEEMED EXPEDIENT. 

None.

9 MINUTES OF THE AUTHORITY MEETING HELD ON 9 APRIL 2018 

Councillor Ayris thanked the officers concerned for the information that 
had been provided to Members separately to the minutes.  He queried whether 
Councillor Lamb would continue with the current frequency of the 
Corporate Advisory Group (CAG) meetings.  He considered that many issues had 
been diverted to CAG rather than being discussed at a public meeting.

Councillor Lamb stated that in light of the Authority’s heavy Work Programme for 
the year and the approaching HMICFRS Inspection, that it would be necessary for 
Members to have a good understanding on a number of issues when making 
decisions on behalf of the residents of South Yorkshire.  He did not consider that a 
public meeting was the correct arena to discuss some of those issues in detail, but 
he did consider that the frequency of CAG meetings was appropriate 
(approximately every six weeks).  He stipulated that the CAG meetings should not 
be a means by which anyone could side step the democracy of the Authority, and 
that where appropriate, items and matters discussed at CAG meetings would be 
presented to the Authority for determination.

Councillor Ransome stated that the CAG meetings were not minuted.  She queried 
how those Members that had been unable to attend a CAG meeting could ascertain 
the outcomes from a meeting.

L Noble highlighted that notes of the CAG meetings were taken, and that these 
notes, together with any presentations, were circulated to Members after the 
meeting.

Councillor Ayris queried whether the cost of the legal proceedings, in relation to the 
judicial review requested from the Fire Brigades Union against the Authority for the 
continuance of using Close Proximity Crewing (CPC), was still anticipated to be 
£800k, and which budget heading the costs would be allocated from.  He also 
queried when a report would be presented to the Authority.

Page 111



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

A Frosdick referred to the various aspects within the litigation which related to the 
proceedings and the judicial review.  He would provide Members with details of the 
precise costing, which was less than anticipated.

DCFO Blunden stated that CFO Courtney and himself would discuss the outcome 
of the judicial review and the impact on the Service; it would be necessary for 
Members to have an in-depth understanding of the issue.  It was anticipated that a 
report including timelines would be provided to the next Authority meeting.

Councillor Ayris referred to the appointment of the Independent Member to the 
Audit and Governance Committee.  He considered that it was inappropriate for the 
minutes to refer to the individual appointed.

L Noble provided reassurance that the applicant’s references had been received 
prior to including her name in the minutes.

A Frosdick stated that consideration would be given to anonymising the applicant in 
any future appointment process.

Councillor Haith queried the reason why the Property and Procurement Service 
update and GDPR update had not been included on the Audit and Governance 
Committee agenda for the meeting to be held today.

L Noble stated that this Audit and Governance Committee meeting was an 
extra-ordinary meeting; the Property and Procurement Service update and GDPR 
update would be presented to the July 2018 Audit and Governance Committee 
meeting.

Councillor Ransome referred to Councillor Ayris’ proposal, which had not been 
seconded, that the Service Level Agreement (SLA) for the provision of the 
Authority’s services for 2018/19 onwards should be put out to tender.  She put 
forward the suggestion that the SLA should go out to tender.

A Frosdick stated that such a resolution could not be moved at today’s meeting.  
Members could move a motion, if they considered that it was inappropriate for 
BMBC to continue to service the Authority; a longstanding contractual agreement 
had been made between the four district councils for BMBC to service the 
Authority.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Would be provided with details of the precise costing in relation to the judicial 
review on Close Proximity Crewing (CPC).

ii) Noted that it was anticipated that a report including timelines on the outcome 
of the judicial review would be presented to the next Authority meeting. 

iii) Noted that consideration would be given to anonymising future applicants 
appointed as co-opted members.

Page 112



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

iv) Agreed that the minutes of the Authority meeting held on 9 April 2018 be 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.

10 PROGRESS REPORT ON IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PROCUREMENT AND 
PROPERTY FUNCTIONS 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive was presented providing 
Members with a further update on the progress to improve both the Procurement 
and Property Service functions within SYFR.  Members had been presented with a 
revised improvement plan and regular bi-monthly reports, since June 2017, in order 
to keep abreast of the progress being made.

Members noted the significant progress made, and which continued to be made on 
improving and developing the Procurement and Property Services.  KPMG LLP, 
SYFR’s external auditors, had gained sufficient audit assurances, and were now 
minded to remove the Adverse VFM Conclusion for Procurement Practices, and to 
provide SYFR with an Unqualified Opinion for the 2017/18 financial year.  The 
outcome would be known by the Audit and Governance Committee meeting 
scheduled in July 2018.

The Director of Support Services thanked R Winter and the Internal Audit Team, 
BMBC for the tremendous amount of work undertaken.

Councillor Ayris queried the rationale behind the Procurement Services restructure, 
from an operational point of view.

The Director of Support Services commented that, from the outset, SYFR had 
stated the necessity for excellent leadership.  It had been the view of the 
Interim Head of Procurement Services and his own, that the expertise to lead the 
team was not in place.  The job descriptions within the Procurement Services had 
been revised to ensure that each post followed and mirrored best practice 
standards, and the team had been restructured to provide for a category 
management approach to procurement.  This would provide for two category 
managers i.e. a senior category manager to take on the responsibility for SYFR’s 
supplies and services, and the second senior category manager to oversee the 
ICT and Estates Departments.  The structure of the team would consist of the 
Head of Procurement Services, two category managers, a buyer, a business 
support administrative officer and store keepers; the cost was within the current 
budget.
 
Councillor Ross queried how it would be determined whether a market supplement 
would be offered to the Head of Procurement Services post which would be 
externally advertised.  He also queried whether provision had been made within the 
budget for the Head of Facilities Management post.

The Director of Support Services commented that, over the last 12 months, SYFR 
had informed Members that if recruitment to the Head of Procurement Services 
post was unsuccessful, then there was a likelihood to offer a market supplement, in 
order to attract the right candidate to enable the Procurement Services to continue 
to improve.  In relation to the Head of Facilities Management position, SYFR 
envisaged the achievement of a significant facilities management contract which 

Page 113



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

could lead to one provider within the market to provide a hard and soft Facilities 
Management.  It was the intention to create a joint Head of Facilities Management 
post at SYFR and SYP to ensure that the correct person was in place to manage 
the potentially significant long term contracts, to ensure good commercial value and 
satisfactory services for SYFR firefighters and stations, which was within the 
budget.

Councillor Lamb gave thanks, on behalf of Members, to all SYFR staff that had 
been involved in the work undertaken.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the contents of the report.

ii) Endorsed the positive improvements made over the last 12 months and the 
contribution made to this achievement by both procurement staff and internal 
audit that is likely to lead to an Unqualified VFM Conclusion from the external 
auditors.

iii) Expected a further and final report in September 2018 that would anticipate 
Procurement Services reverting to “business-as-usual” having implemented all 
the necessary improvements and satisfied subsequent audit assessments.

11 REVIEW OF MEMBERS' ALLOWANCE SCHEME 

A report of the Clerk was presented to provide Members with a summary of the 
Independent Review of Members’ Allowances undertaken by Dr Declan Hall Ph.D, 
who had undertaken the previous reviews on behalf of the Authority.  It was best 
practice to review the Members’ Allowance Scheme every four years, and had last 
been reviewed in 2014.

Councillor Ayris queried whether the format adopted was compatible with other 
constituent authorities.

L Noble highlighted that Dr Hall undertook a considerable amount of benchmarking 
across other Fire and Rescue Authorities, and local authorities, and this was 
detailed within the appendices to his report.

Dr Billings stated that he would not be taking the Basic Allowance as recommended 
within the report.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the conclusions of the Independent Review of Members’ Allowances at 
Appendix A to the report.

ii) Accepted the recommendations made as set out in paragraph 7 i) – viii) and 
at pages 2 and 3 of the Review report at Appendix A to the report.

iii) Approved the increases with effect from 25 June 2018.

Page 114



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

iv) Approved the amendments to the Members’ Allowance Scheme as set out in 
the report.

12 SYFR PEOPLE STRATEGY 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive was submitted providing 
Members with an update on the SYFR People Strategy which needed to be 
refreshed and developed to explain the steps to be taken in supporting the people 
of South Yorkshire between now and 2022.

Councillor Haith requested that a glossary of terms be included within the SYFR 
People Strategy document.  She queried the lessons learnt from the previous 
SYFR People Strategy.

DCFO Blunden confirmed that a glossary of terms would be included within the 
SYFR People Strategy document.  Improvements had been made to the current 
Strategy to ensure that the document was easier to read and contained only a small 
number of strategic aims, which had been embedded into everything at SYFR.

Councillor Ransome queried whether the trades unions had any involvement in the 
SYFR People Strategy.

DCFO Blunden stated that all of the SYFR documents were subject to consultation 
with all SYFR staff, including workforce representatives.

Councillor Ayris referred to a discussion at the Performance and Scrutiny Board 
meeting held in November 2017, in relation to the timescales and action points for 
implementation on the Thomas Review, in conjunction with the SYFR People 
Strategy; a request had been made to consider that those actions be ‘RAG’ rated.

DCFO Blunden stated that the progress report regarding the 43 recommendations 
against the Thomas Review had been submitted to the Performance and Scrutiny 
Board some 18 months ago.  He did not expect that the document presented to the 
Authority today would be ‘RAG’ rated, but he could provide the Board with a report 
which supported the SYFR People Strategy, if it was required.

Dr Billings suggested that reference be made within the Diversity section of the 
SYFR People Strategy, to indicate the proactivity with South Yorkshire Police 
(SYP). He requested that the statement made at page 8 of the SYFR People 
Strategy be revised, as this could be seen as ambiguous to other areas within the 
public service.

DCFO Blunden stated that SYFR was taking important steps in the way of 
increasing its diversity, particularly at firefighter level.  He would clarify the 
statement at page 8 of the SYFR People Strategy.
 
RESOLVED – That Members noted:-

i) The contents of the report.

ii) That a glossary of terms to be included within the SYFR People Strategy.

Page 115



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

iii) That amendments would be made to the statement made at page 8 of the 
SYFR People Strategy to better reflect the Authority’s/Service’s objectives.

13 MEMBER LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT - REVIEW AND THE YEAR AHEAD 

A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was presented providing 
Members with a review of the learning and development exercises undertaken in 
2017/18, and a forward look to learning and development in 2018/19.

L Noble informed the Authority of the two externally delivered and five internally 
delivered training sessions during 2017/18.  A series of development sessions 
would be held with the new Members.  The Corporate Advisory Group (CAG) would 
continue to meet on a 6 weekly cycle.

Councillor Lamb stated that it was his ambition to continue the good programme of 
work for learning and development that had been developed by Councillor Burgess, 
the former Chair to the Authority, to enable Members to represent the residents of 
South Yorkshire in the best possible manner.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the skills, learning and development acquired in 2017/18.

ii) Agreed to a process of Development Discussions between July 2018 and the 
end of August 2018, for all new and existing Members which would inform an 
appropriate and targeted Learning and Development Schedule for 2018/19.

iii) Noted the wider Learning and Development ‘Offer’ at Appendix A to the 
report.

14 ANNUAL REVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT 2017/18 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive/Clerk to the Fire and Rescue 
Authority was presented setting out the Authority’s and Service’s arrangements for 
managing risk in accordance with the Authority’s Corporate Risk Management 
Policy and Strategy.  The report also detailed the Governance arrangements 
around Corporate Risk Management and risk management developments during 
the year.  The annual session on Risk Management, Effective Audit Committee had 
not taken place this year; it was intended to hold a session early in the municipal 
year 2018/19.

Councillor Clements referred to Risk 005 in relation to partnerships.  He expressed 
concern that Systel had failed to ensure that the Service had achieved a consistent 
90 day period of fault free operation of the system.  He queried the outstanding 
monies owed to Systel, how long the contract had ran to date, and the steps that 
would be taken to ensure that the contractual obligations were met by Systel.

ACFO Johnson confirmed that a consistent 90 day period of fault free operation of 
the system had been achieved.  SYFR and WYFR were seeking compensation 
from Systel, under the contractual agreement, in relation to a number of 

Page 116



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

outstanding issues and items that had not been delivered on time.  Members noted 
the actual timescale for the implementation of the system.  SYFR could withhold 
payment if Systel failed to fulfil the criteria in relation to repairs etc.  SYFR and 
WYFR continued to meet to discuss any outstanding issues.

Councillor Ransome queried the cost to the Authority in winding up 
Safety Solutions UK Ltd (SSUK).

The Director of Support Services referred to the accounts that had been prepared 
by an external accountant, which had indicated a positive trading position.  He 
believed that the objectives that had been set in January 2018, to have a managed 
solvent wind down of the company, was still applicable.  It would be necessary for 
SSUK’s Board of Directors to recommend to the Shareholders the process to wind 
down the company.

A Frosdick stated that if the objective was to have a solvent wind down of the 
company, then there would be no cost implications to the Authority.

Councillor Ross sought clarity, at some point in the future, for a report to be 
presented to the Authority on the total cost of SSUK Ltd.

The Director of Support Services stated that the Board of Directors would need to 
receive the accounts, in order to determine whether to cease trading.  He 
considered that there would be no cost implications to the Authority or to the 
residents of South Yorkshire.

Councillor Ross requested that the Authority be provided with a report from the 
Directors of SSUK Ltd.

The Director of Support Services highlighted that the closure of the company would 
be the decision of the Authority Members, who were shareholders of SSUK Ltd.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Considered the Risk Management Annual Report, and the assurance 
provided, as part of its overall consideration of the Authority’s control 
framework for the purposes of the Annual Governance Statement (AGS).

ii) Noted that a report would be provided from the Directors of SSUK Ltd.

15 ANNUAL SCRUTINY REVIEW AND UPDATE 

A report of the Clerk to the Fire and Rescue Authority was submitted to provide 
Members with a summary of key scrutiny activity undertaken in the past year 
(June 2017 – June 2018).  A dedicated Scrutiny Board, with specific Terms of 
Reference and a Scrutiny Protocol had been introduced in 2008, which had 
strengthened the Authority’s scrutiny function.

L Noble stated that the Performance and Scrutiny Board considered a range of 
issues, mainly around SYFR’s performance.  There was an intention to develop 
other areas alongside ACO Johnson and Councillor Damms, as Chair to the Board.  

Page 117



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

It was hoped that the Board in 2018/19 would be able to support the Authority in 
exploring the detail of issues where appropriate to inform good governance.

Councillor Lamb expressed his thanks to Councillor Buckley, who had chaired the 
Performance and Scrutiny Board since 2012.

RESOLVED – That Members :-

i) Noted the Board’s scrutiny activity from June 2017 to the present.

ii) Supported the process for the referral of any topic or area from other Authority 
Committees/Boards etc. to the Performance and Scrutiny Board as 
appropriate.

iii) Agreed to continue to support scrutiny and challenge across the full range of 
Authority meetings.

16 ANNUAL CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2017/18 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive/Clerk to the Fire and Rescue 
Authority was presented providing Members with information on how SYFR had 
performed against local performance indicators during 2017/18.  The report also 
enabled Members to comment upon performance and to explore in greater detail 
the work behind the statistics.  The report would be presented to the Performance 
and Scrutiny Board on 12 July 2018, for a more detailed discussion and review.

DCFO Blunden reported that unfortunately there had been six fire related deaths in 
South Yorkshire during 2017/18, five of which had resulted from accidental dwelling 
fires and involved residents who had been known to partner organisations, but not 
SYFR.  He encouraged Members to support the partnerships with SYFR, to enable 
the Service to identify those most at risk in society, in order to allow interventions to 
prevent accidental dwelling fire deaths.  Each year, SYFR’s aspiration was to have 
a nil return on accidental fire deaths in South Yorkshire.

Councillor Ransome gave thanks for the extensive report presented.  She queried 
the reason why the Home Safety Checks (HSC) for each of the four districts had 
reduced from Quarter 1 to Quarter 4.

DCFO Blunden stated that in terms of the way that HSC was captured, the 
Doncaster district undertook the extended Safe and Well check.  His expectation 
was that there would be a reduction in the number of HSCs within the Doncaster 
district, due to the time required to complete the extended Safe and Well checks, 
which was a joint effort between SYFR, SYP and Public Health for the most 
vulnerable.  Each extended Safe and Well check took approximately 1 - 2 hours to 
ensure that the individual was signposted to the most appropriate resources.  
Members noted that Elm Lane Fire Station, whilst it was located within Barnsley, 
the statistics were fed into the Sheffield figures, to enable the South Yorkshire 
spread to be made easier for the Service; this would portray the Barnsley figures as 
low.

Page 118



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Councillor Haith referred to the high volume of arson incidents which had occurred 
within the prisons in Doncaster.  She queried whether it was anticipated that the 
figures, which had reduced, would reduce further with the cooperation of the prison 
service.

DCFO Blunden stated that he was delighted with the partnership between the 
Doncaster prison officers and the SYFR fire investigation officers.  Through the 
partnership, arrangements had been made whereby any prisoner that was caught 
deliberately setting fire to a cell would be brought before the prison governors, who 
could extend their prison sentence by a set period of time.  This arrangement had 
seen a significant reduction in the number of prison fires in Doncaster. 

Councillor Ayris considered it disconcerting that the number of accidental dwelling 
fires and cooking related fires were on the increase in South Yorkshire.  He queried 
whether there was an explanation for the increases.

DCFO Blunden stated that often cooking related accidental dwelling fires related to 
the most vulnerable in society.  Once the most vulnerable had been identified, 
SYFR could direct them to the correct partners for a number of initiatives which 
included cooking courses, the installation of automatic gas shut off valves, and the 
installation of smoke detectors etc.  SYFR was working extremely hard to reach the 
most vulnerable e.g. individuals with dementia.  The figures had indicated that the 
accidental dwelling fires were not related to the inclement weather, but often related 
to the individual’s style of living. 

Councillor Ayris referred to LPI 2.3 and LPI 2.4.  He queried the number of frontline 
SYFR staff that had been injured in the line of duty in 2017/18, how serious the 
injuries were, whether those that had been injured had been provided with 
adequate support, whether any of the injuries could have been preventable, and 
what was being undertaken to prevent reoccurrences.

DCFO Blunden stated that there had been 16 additional operational injuries in 
comparison to the previous year.  He was encouraged by the increased reporting in 
comparison to previous years; the reporting culture had changed within the Service.  
Of the 16 operational injuries, 7 people had been injured during a bariatric rescue 
incident.  AM Nicholson would undertake a review with AM Carlin in relation to the 
bariatric training provided to staff across the Service; he did not anticipate such 
operational injuries to be incurred in the future.  SYFR staff incurring an injury 
would be referred to Occupational Health, to ensure that they were provided with 
the relevant support, to ensure that they could return back to operational duties as 
soon as possible.

Councillor Hogarth queried whether those prisoners that had set fire to a prison cell, 
would have arson included on their records.

DCFO Blunden stated that SYFR had welcomed the recent introduction of 
neighbourhood policing hubs back into SYP.  The partnership was significantly 
improving the intelligence between local officers, SYFR and SYP to gain an 
understanding of the individuals being released from prison, to enable SYFR to 
quickly identify any spikes in arson related incidents and liaise with SYP.

Page 119



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

Councillor Haith referred to the direction of travel for secondary arson incidents.  
She queried what was being undertaken to educate children within South Yorkshire 
of the dangers of arson.

DCFO Blunden stated that SYFR are now looking forward 3 months ahead in 
relation to corporate reporting to identify likely spikes in activity e.g. operational 
crews would undertake specifically targeted interventions in those schools which 
were local to where arson incidents had occurred.  A reduction in the number of 
arson related fires had been observed in those targeted areas over the Easter 
period in 2018.  SYFR would continue with the initiative and include additional 
resources, as various ways were trialled to target secondary related arson fires.

Dr Billings welcomed the comments made in relation to the return of neighbourhood 
policing, which was a good example of the way in which one service could impact 
upon the demand of another service.  He suggested that the relationship between 
the areas of demand of SYFR and SYP and all other public services be reviewed; 
he would pass the information to SYP’s Chief Constable.  In relation to the 
Doncaster prison fires, he queried whether these were contributed to by the rubbish 
that collected within each cell’s window grill.

DCFO Blunden stated that the Doncaster prison cell fires had related to 
combustible items.

ACO Johnson referred to the Joint Community Safety Department which was now 
operational.  She had recently met with ACC Hartley, to begin to make linkages 
between the Joint Community Safety Department and the Neighbourhood Teams, 
to determine how the teams could support each other and strengthen those 
linkages.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Endorsed the contents of the report.

ii) Scrutinised and commented on the information presented in the attached 
report.

17 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK - TARGETS - 2018/19 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive/Clerk to the Fire and Rescue 
Authority was submitted setting out the agreed Performance Management 
Framework and to present the proposed targets for the Local Performance 
Indicators (LPIs) for 2018/19, which would be used to monitor performance and 
drive improvement.  SYFR’s Performance Management Framework was reviewed 
annually, to ensure that it continued to reflect the Service’s key priorities, and had 
been submitted to the Authority on 9 April 2018 for approval.

Councillor Ayris queried whether the Fire Brigades Union (FBU) had been 
consulted on the performance management framework.

Page 120



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

DCFO Blunden stated that all SYFR staff were aware of the performance 
management framework.  SYFR set the targets which were presented to the 
Corporate Management Board and then submitted to the Authority.
 
Councillor Ayris queried how frequently the SYFR’s Senior Management Team 
reviewed the Service’s performance.

DCFO Blunden stated that the SYFR’s Senior Management Team reviewed its 
performance on a monthly basis, and by the Corporate Management Board who 
meet on a 5 weekly cycle.

RESOLVED – That Members endorsed the contents of the report and agreed the 
targets for 2018/19.

18 POLICE AND FIRE COLLABORATION BOARD 

A report of the Deputy Chief Fire Officer and Director of Service Development was 
submitted providing Members with background information on the Policing and 
Crime Act 2017; an update on the progress being made on current areas of 
collaboration with South Yorkshire Police (SYP), together with a view on the 
continuing collaboration.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the contents of the report.

ii) Agreed that the Legal Agreement and Joint Community Safety Schedule were 
appropriate.

19 POLICE AND FIRE COLLABORATION BOARD MINUTES OF 27 MARCH 2018 

Councillor Lamb expressed his thanks to Dr Billings for the work undertaken on 
behalf of SYFR and South Yorkshire Police (SYP).

RESOLVED – That Members noted the minutes of the Police and Fire 
Collaboration Board held on 27 March 2018.

20 IMPACT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT NATIONAL PAY OFFER 2018 AND 2019 
(GREEN BOOK EMPLOYEES) 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive was presented to outline the 
impact of the Local Government national pay offer 2018 and 2019 (Green Book 
Employees).

In response to a pay claim made by the Trade Union Side, and on behalf of the 
Employers’ Side of the National Joint Council (NJC) (Green Book employees only), 
a final pay offer had been presented on 5 December 2017, to cover the period 
1 April 2018 to 31 March 2020.  A 2% uplift would be applied to the majority of 
employees on 1 April 2018, together with a further 2% on 1 April 2019; individuals 
on lower salaries would receive higher increases.  Unison and GMB had both voted 
to accept the agreement that had been reached on 10 April 2018, but Unite had 

Page 121



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

voted to reject the offer.  The pay award should now be implemented, as Unite had 
accepted the collective majority decision of the other unions.

Councillor Haith commented that it was pleasing to note that the Service was 
paying the national foundation living wage.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the contents of the report.

21 YEAR END OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive and Clerk was presented 
informing Members as to the final revenue and capital outturn position for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2018 and an updated total reserves position 
alongside a narrative commentary to help explain the key financial changes that 
had led to this year end position when compared to the approved revenue and 
capital budgets.

Councillor Clements expressed concern that the level of capital reserves was still 
too high.  He queried when the capital reserves would be spent on capital projects, 
and whether there was a possibility that this would happen within the current 
financial year.
 
The Director of Support Services referred to the financial accounts for 2017/18 
which had indicated that £3.2m had been spent on projects.  SYFR did have an 
ambitious capital programme, which looked to invest an additional £17m over the 
next 3 years; to include a new fire station at Barnsley.  Condition surveys had 
recently been undertaken at each fire station across the estate, to which backlog 
maintenance would be undertaken over the next 10 years.  Reports regarding the 
condition surveys would be presented to the Authority, to seek further approval 
around the capital investment over the longer term period.  

Councillor Ransome queried the minimum recommended level of general reserves.

The Director of Support Services referred to the Fire Authority meeting held in 
November 2017, where the Treasurer and himself had concurred that the minimum 
revenue reserve would be £4m plus £1m operational contingency, which equated to 
approximately 10% of the budget.
 
Councillor Ayris stated that it was particularly disappointing that there had not been 
the foresight to forecast the increase in the business rates, which had been 
publicised well in advance.

The Director of Support Services stated that reference had constantly been made 
to the £82k increase within the rating list, which had been publicised a little in 
advance.  A new rating list was available for 2017/18.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Approved and endorsed the positive revenue operating outturn position of 
£0.861m underspend when compared to the budget of £48.683m.

Page 122



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

ii) Agreed the capital expenditure outturn of £3.118m.

iii) Approved the summary statement of reserves (Section C) which showed total 
reserves of £24.517m, split Earmarked Reserves £18.400m and General 
Reserves of £6.117m for the year ended 31 March 2018.

iv) Approved the transfer of £2.117m from the Available General Reserve to the 
Capital Investment Reserve, that being the sum above the agreed minimum 
working balance (£4m, excluding the Operational Contingency £1m), to:

   Finance £1.592m of unfunded capital investment commitments approved in 
the 2018/19 Annual Budget.

   Allocate £0.525m to the Capital Investment Reserve (Uncommitted) to 
meet any new / additional investment priorities up to 2020.

v) Approved the carry forward requests as set out in Appendix B totalling 
£0.227m into 2018/19.

22 MINUTES OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE HELD ON 19 
MARCH 2018 

RESOLVED – That Members noted the minutes of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 19 March 2018.

23 DRAFT MINUTES OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE HELD ON 
14 MAY 2018 

RESOLVED – That Members noted the draft minutes of the Audit and Governance 
Committee held on 14 May 2018.

24 MINUTES OF THE YORKSHIRE AND HUMBER EMPLOYERS' ASSOCIATION 
HELD ON 26 APRIL 2018 

RESOLVED – That Members noted the minutes of the Yorkshire and Humber 
Employers’ Association held on 26 April 2018.

25 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and the public interest not to 
disclose information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.

26 SOUTH YORKSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE'S RESPONSE TO THE KERSLAKE 
REPORT 

A report of the Chief Fire Officer and Chief Executive was submitted to inform 
Members of South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue’s response to the Kerslake Report.

Page 123



Fire and Rescue Authority Ordinary Meeting
Monday 25 June 2018

D Terris referred to the vital learning messages that had been identified within the 
Kerslake Report.  She would invite CFO Courtney to attend a senior management 
meeting at BMBC to share the information.  She highlighted the importance for 
everyone to work together on the outcome of the report as widely and as quickly as 
possible with other the public bodies.

RESOLVED – That Members noted the contents of the report.

27 STRONGER SAFER COMMUNITIES RESERVE - PROJECT FUNDING 

A report of the Deputy Clerk was presented providing Members with information 
regarding the project funding for the Stronger Safer Communities Reserve.

RESOLVED – That Members:-

i) Noted the financial position in respect to the Stronger Safer Communities 
Reserve grant, and the delivery of the first phase of the project identified 
within the report.

ii) Noted and approved the return of the outstanding grant to the                           
Stronger Safer Communities Reserve.

28 STRONGER SAFER COMMUNITIES RESERVE - SPRINKLER FUND 

A report of the Deputy Clerk was submitted providing Members with information 
regarding the Stronger Safer Communities Reserve funding for the retro-fitting of a 
fire suppression system.
 
RESOLVED – That Members approved the additional grant from the Sprinkler Fund 
to cover the VAT element of the completed work.

CHAIR

Page 124



MEETING: Planning Regulatory Board
DATE: Tuesday, 22 May 2018
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barnsley

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors D. Birkinshaw (Chair), G. Carr, 
Cherryholme, Coates, Franklin, Gollick, Hampson, 
Higginbottom, Leech, Makinson, Markham, Mitchell, 
Richardson, Riggs, Spence, Stowe, Tattersall, Wilson 
and R. Wraith 

1. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declaration of Pecuniary/Non-Pecuniary interest in respect of any of 
the items on the agenda.

2. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 17th April 2018 were taken as read and signed by 
the Chair as a correct record.

3. Land off Lowfield Road, Bolton Upon Dearne - 2017/0638 - For Approval 

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2017/0638 [Residential development of 97 no. dwellinghouses with 
garages, parking spaces and public open space and associated roads and sewers] at 
Land off Lowfield Road, Bolton Upon Dearne.

Mrs Carol Bilton addressed the Board and spoke against the officer recommendation 
to approve the application.

RESOLVED that the application be deferred subject to clarification with the Legal 
Department and Planning Officers to determine whether the previous planning 
actions and history of the developer can be taken into account in the determination of 
this application. 

4. Land to the south of Middlecliffe Lane, Great Houghton - 2017/0008 - For 
Refusal 

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2017/0008 [Change of use of land to a private gypsy and traveller site 
comprising of 11 no. pitches (Resubmission)] at land to the South of Middlecliffe 
Lane, Little Houghton. 

Mr Kevin Osborne addressed the Board and spoke in favour of the officer 
recommendation to refuse the application.

Page 125

Item 18



2

RESOLVED that the application be refused in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.  

5. The Old Ticket Master's Office, Hill Street, Elsecar - 2017/1617 - For Approval 

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2017/1617 [Conversion of ticket office to 1 no. 3-bed dwelling, erection 
of 1 block of 4 no. of disabled living apartments and erection of 9 no. dwellings for 
dependent relative living] at The Old Ticket Master’s Office, Hill Street, Elsecar.

Ms Sharren Wright addressed the Board and spoke in favour of the officer 
recommendation to approve the application.

Ms June Backhouse addressed the Board and spoke against the officer 
recommendation to approve the application. 

RESOLVED that the application be approved in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.  

6. 1 - 37 Beever Street, Goldthorpe - 2018/0233 - For Approval 

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2018/0233 [Demolition of the existing terrace houses and the erection of 
8 no. bungalows and associated highways and landscape works] at 1 – 37 Beever 
Street, Goldthorpe. 

RESOLVED that the application be approved in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.  

7. Lundwood Waste Water Treatment Works - 2018/0035 - For Approval 

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2018/0035 [Siting of 7 no. kiosks and sludge thickening building to 
enable upgrade of treatment process] at Lundwood Waste Water Treatment Works, 
Lund Lane, Lundwood.

RESOLVED that the application be approved in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.  

8. Carlton Road Flat Nos 452, 454, 456, 462, 464, 466, 468, 470, 472, 474, 476, 504, 
506, 508, 510, 512, 514, 516, 518, 520, 522, 524, 526 and Springbank Close Flat 
Nos 14, 16, 18, 20, 22, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34, 36-45, 47, 49 and 51, Barnsley - 
2018/0353 - For Approval. 

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2018/0353 [Replacement cladding on external walls and re-roofing 
works] at Carlton Road Flat Nos 452, 454, 456, 462, 464, 466, 468, 470, 472, 474, 
476, 504, 506, 508, 510, 512, 514, 516, 518, 520, 522, 524, 526 and Springbank 
Close Flat Nos 14, 16, 18, 20, 22, 26, 28, 30, 32, 34, 36-45, 47, 49 and 51, Barnsley 

RESOLVED that the application be approved in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.  

Page 126



3

9. Planning Appeals - 1st to 30th April 2018 

The Head of Planning and Building Control submitted an update regarding planning 
appeals received.

The report indicated that 5 appeals were received in April 2018.  No appeals were 
withdrawn in April 2018.  

It was reported that 3 appeals have been decided since 1 April 2018, 1 of which 
(33.3%) was dismissed and 2 of which (66.7%) have been allowed.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Audit Committee
DATE: Wednesday, 6 June 2018
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES

Present Councillors Richardson (Chair) and Barnard together with 
Independent Members - Ms K Armitage, Ms D Brown, Mr S Gill, 
Mr P Johnson and Mr M Marks

1. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest from Members in respect of items on the 
agenda.

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 

RESOLVED that Mr S. Gill be appointed as Vice Chair of the Committee for the 
municipal year 2018/19.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 18th April, 2018 were taken as read and 
signed by the Chair as a correct record.  

The Chair requested that his thanks be placed on record to Councillor Clements, the 
former Chair of the Committee, for the work he had undertaken to promote the 
activities of the Committee during his time in office.

Arising from Minute 71, it was confirmed that Risk 4170 (failure to ensure the Glass 
Works programme delivers etc) would indeed be subject to a further report to the 
Committee later in the year detailing the progress on the project and any concerns 
arising.

Arising from Minute 74, Members commented on the long timescale for responses to 
the Information Commissioner’s Office consensual audit, with some 
recommendations not requiring implementation until 2020.  Whilst it was understood 
that this was indeed the timescale in respect of some recommendations, this would 
be subject to confirmation at the next Audit Committee meeting.

Arising from Minute 75, it was confirmed that progress had been made in the new 
approach for logging phishing and spam email, with staff encouraged to report this by 
way of a “report as spam” button available on incoming emails. 

4. DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18 

The meeting received a joint report of the Chief Executive and Executive Director 
Core Services submitting the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18, 
outlining the following:-

Page 129

Item 19



2

 the purpose of the Governance Framework;

 the Governance and Internal Control Framework;

 the process of annually reviewing the effectiveness of the Governance and 
Internal Control Framework; and

 identifying development and improvement opportunities arising from the Annual 
Governance Review, to be addressed in 2018/19 contained in the action plan at 
Appendix 1.

Further work was being undertaken to develop the Annual Governance Statement 
and the action plan for consideration at the Committee’s next meeting on 20th July, 
2018.  This included the incorporation at Section 11.4 of issues arising from the 
Annual Audit Report, as well as specific actions in relation to contract management 
procedures and data protection, together with recommendations arising from the 
Information Commissioner’s Office Consensual Audit.  Work continued with Service 
Directors on the review of the Annual Governance Statement, with approximately 
50% of responses received in advance of the deadline of 15th June, 2018.  

In the ensuing discussion, the following matters were highlighted:-

 Members commented on the extent to which the Council could respond to Brexit, 
given the general uncertainty as to the final position.  However, it was noted that 
there was already clarity in some areas and that the Council would respond 
incrementally to the opportunities and challenges presented by Brexit as this 
developed.

 The meeting noted the focus in Section 5.2.5 on the Sheffield City Region as the 
basis for Devolution, rather than the wider proposals for Yorkshire.  It was noted 
that the current offer was indeed in relation to the City Region and the need to 
respond to the recently elected Mayor’s agenda, and perhaps this section could 
be clarified in this respect. However, a further dimension was the extent to which 
Barnsley Council provided support services for the Combined Authority and 
whether a stocktake was needed given the views of the Mayor.

 Members commented that Section 12 did not identify any fundamental issues in 
relation to governance, risk and internal control arrangements, a similar position 
to that identified over a number of previous years.  Members asked about the 
process for identifying significant governance issues and the threshold at which 
these issues might be identified as such.  The meeting noted that this section was 
intended to highlight any issues of significance beyond those identified in the 
action plan, and this would be updated to reflect any issues arising from the 
review of the Annual Governance Statement and the Audit Annual Report, 
including the Information Commissioner’s Office Consensual Audit.  This detail 
was not available when the report now submitted was drafted, but would be 
provided in the updated report submitted to the July meeting.

Page 130



3

RESOLVED that the draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 be noted.

5. DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18 

The Service Director Finance submitted a report on the draft Statement of Accounts 
2017/18.  Members commented on the late circulation of the document, noting the 
extent to which this arose from this year’s advanced timescales, and discussed the 
need for more time for Members to consider issues raised in detail.

Notwithstanding the request to defer consideration of the report, the following matters 
were highlighted:-

 The Service Director Finance confirmed that the new timescales for production of 
the Statement of Accounts presented a challenge this year, but he considered 
that he had adequate resources to meet this challenge in the future.  The meeting 
noted similar pressures on the external auditors, but it was confirmed that KPMG 
did not anticipate any issues in relation to Barnsley’s processes, given the 
effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements for dealing with this matter.

 Reference was made to the significant loss of £5m within the Housing Revenue 
Account and the Service Director Finance indicated that he would investigate this 
issue.  The meeting noted that the management of the Housing Revenue Account 
had now returned to direct Council control, which would provide for more effective 
monitoring and understanding of the position.

 Members commented on the £33.76m earmarked in reserves for the Glass Works 
scheme and queried if this was the totality of the expenditure on that project.  The 
meeting noted that the scheme would be funded from a range of other sources, in 
addition to the amount in reserves, for example prudential borrowing, and that a 
further report on the overall package would be submitted to a future meeting of 
the Committee.  

RESOLVED that further consideration of the draft Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 
be deferred to a special meeting of the Committee to be arranged in coming weeks, 
but that Members be invited to comment on the document in the interim period.

6. ANNUAL FRAUD REPORT 2017/18 

The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud submitted his annual report 
providing an account of counter-fraud related activity undertaken by Internal Audit’s 
corporate team for the period 1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2018 and providing 
information and assurance to the Committee regarding key aspects of the Authority’s 
risk management, internal control and governance framework.

The meeting noted key priorities for 2018/19 as set out in Section 6 of the report, with 
558 days allocated for reactive and pro-active fraud work during the year.  The 
emphasis on improving fraud awareness across the Council during the year was 

Page 131



4

highlighted, in particular by way of a proposed fraud awareness week aimed at 
building better relationships across the Council.  It was proposed to submit further 
plans for anti-fraud work to the Committee in due course.

In the ensuing discussion, the following matters were highlighted:-

 The meeting noted that the level of duplicate payments highlighted represented 
the clearing of an historical backlog from before October 2016, when a system for 
identifying duplicate payments was introduced.  It was noted that recent changes 
to the payments system would stop a duplicate payment being made in the first 
place, rather than being identified later when repayment would be required.

 In relation to tenancy fraud, it was noted that cases where no evidence of fraud 
were found were generally held on file, and could be re-opened later in the light of 
further information.  Whilst Berneslai Homes did undertake landlord checks to 
confirm the identity of residents, its effectiveness was reduced by the requirement 
to give notice in writing of any visit.  The possibility of providing tenants with photo 
identification was being investigated, and arrangements for data matching tenants 
also under consideration.  Housing Management Officers would also follow-up 
any allegations received from neighbouring residents.  It was intended that 
Berneslai Homes would be involved in the proposed fraud awareness week to 
include tenancy fraud, with consideration of proposals such as key amnesties.

 The meeting noted that the amounts of fraud and error identified at the end of 
March 2018 of £240,196 were primarily errors or mistakes for example small 
amounts of undeclared income resulting in lower entitlements.  Where the 
overpayment arose from a systems issue, for example out of date data, the 
issues have been addressed and the systems updated.  

 It was noted that all Right to Buy applications were subject to detailed identity 
checks, carried out by the Council’s Strategic Housing team and included anti-
fraud checks on those resident in the property.  

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the Annual Anti-Fraud Report be received as part of the framework of 
assurance to support the Annual Governance Statement; and

(ii) that the embedding of a culture of zero tolerance and high levels of awareness 
regarding fraud and corruption be supported.

7. INTERIM INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 

The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud submitted his interim annual 
report on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control arrangements based on the work of 
Internal Audit during 2017/18, which had been prepared in accordance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Page 132



5

The meeting noted that the report gave an indicative opinion of adequate (positive) 
assurance, which was not expected to change unless significant control issues were 
indicated as a result of the Annual Governance Statement process.  A particular area 
of focus related to the implementation of audit recommendations, where two thirds 
still required implementation.  This issue had been raised with the Senior 
Management Team in order to refocus officer attention on this issue, with the 
establishment of a monthly reporting regime for monitoring progress and other 
arrangements to ensure that this was more thoroughly embedded across the Council.  
Against this background, it was important to acknowledge that only three 
fundamental recommendations had been identified by audit reports during 2017/18.  

In the ensuing discussion, the following matters were highlighted:-

 The meeting noted that the SAP system had not been audited during 2017/18, 
despite limited assurance opinions being given in 2015/16 and 2016/17.   It was 
confirmed that, whilst no specific review has taken place with regard to SAP, 
there is continuous liaison between Internal Audit and officers to seek to ensure 
that appropriate controls are maintained and are operating effectively.

 The meeting noted the general absence of fundamental recommendations in 
audit reports during 2017/18 and the efforts to resolve the three fundamental 
recommendations.  It was acknowledged that this report was the interim position, 
and that it was anticipated that the fundamental recommendations within the 
Place Directorate identified in the appendix would be resolved by the time the 
final report was published.  

 Members commented on the expectation that Future Council would result in 
officers having greater focus on their range of responsibilities, but noted that two 
thirds of audit recommendations had nevertheless not been implemented to 
timescales.  This seemed to be run counter the impression from the draft Annual 
Governance Statement that no significant control issues had been identified.  The 
meeting noted, however, the absence of fundamental recommendations 
suggested that control issues were generally being properly addressed, and 
acknowledged the increased focus on delivery and outcomes as a result of Future 
Council.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the assurance opinion provided by the Head of Internal Audit and 
Corporate Anti-Fraud on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control be noted; and

(ii) that the key issues arising from the work of Internal Audit in the context of the 
Annual Governance Statement be noted.

Page 133



6

8. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2018 - 2020 

The Head of Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud submitted a report on the 
Internal Audit Charter for 2018 - 2020, required to be produced in accordance with 
the revised Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, which, supplemented by regular 
reports and an annual report, gave assurance as to how the Internal Audit function 
was resourced, managed, organised and delivered.  The meeting noted the extent to 
which the Internal Audit function retained its independence and that the Head of 
Internal Audit and Corporate Anti-Fraud had direct access to the Chief Executive, 
and the resulting prominence of these issues on Senior Management Team’s 
agenda.

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Charter for 2018 - 2020 be received and the 
Committee place on record its satisfaction that it adequately represents and 
describes the function, and will consequently provide assurance to the Committee 
regarding its effectiveness.

9. GOVERNANCE AND MEMBER SUPPORT BUSINESS UNIT PROGRESS 
REPORT 

The Service Director Governance and Member Support submitted a report providing 
an overview of the functions of the Governance and Member Support Business Unit 
and related elements of the Annual Governance Statement process, in line with the 
Audit Committee work programme.

RESOLVED that the report be received.

10. EXTERNAL AUDIT TECHNICAL UPDATE AND PROGRESS REPORT 

Ms C. Partridge (KPMG) presented the external audit technical update, incorporating 
the external audit progress report, giving a summary of progress against certain 
deliverables, including reports and opinions.  The meeting noted that the external 
auditor did not anticipate any issues or problems in advance of the audit of the final 
accounts for 2017/18, work on which was due to commence during week ending 15th 
June, 2018.  

RESOLVED that the external audit progress report, resources and technical update 
be noted.

11. AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2018/19 

The Committee received the indicative Audit Committee work plan for 2018/19.  The 
Chair commented that he was due to meet with the Executive Director Core 
Services, the Service Director Finance and the Head of Internal Audit and Corporate 
Anti-Fraud to consider items for discussion at the forthcoming Audit Committee 
workshop and Committee members were invited to forward to him issues for 
consideration.

Page 134



7

RESOLVED that the core work plan for 2018/19 meetings of the Audit Committee be 
approved and reviewed on a regular basis.

…………………………….
Chair

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Planning Regulatory Board
DATE: Tuesday, 26 June 2018
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Town Hall, Barnsley

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors D. Birkinshaw (Chair), Coates, M. Dyson, 
Gollick, David Griffin, Hampson, Higginbottom, Lamb, 
Leech, Makinson, Mitchell, Noble, Pickering, 
Richardson, Riggs, Saunders, Spence, Tattersall, 
Wilson and R. Wraith 

10. Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Noble declared a Non-Pecuniary interest in Planning Application No 
2017/0638  – [Residential development of 97 no. dwellinghouses with garages, 
parking spaces and public open space and associated roads and sewers] at land off 
Lowfield Road, Bolton Upon Dearne as she has been working with FLAG (Friends of 
Lowfield Action Group) in her capacity as a local ward member.

11. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 22nd May 2018 were taken as read and signed by 
the Chair as a correct record.

12. Land off Lowfield Road, Bolton Upon Dearne, Rotherham, S63 8JF - 2017/0638  
- For Refusal 

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2017/0638 [Residential development of 97 no. dwellinghouses with 
garages, parking spaces and public open space and associated roads and sewers] at 
land off Lowfield Road, Bolton upon Dearne, Rotherham S63 8JF

Mr Steve Gamble addressed the Board and spoke against the officer 
recommendation to refuse the application.

The Head of Planning, Policy and Building Control, addressed the Board and read 
out a letter composed by representatives of FLAG (Friends of Lowfield Action Group) 
asking for the Board to refuse the application, in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.  

RESOLVED that the application be refused in accordance with the officer 
recommendation.  

13. Former Wood Yard, Tithe Laithe, Hoyland, Barnsley, S74 9DQ - 2018/0158 - For 
approval 

Page 137

Item 20



2

The Head of  Planning and Building Control submitted a report on Planning 
Application 2018/0158 [Erection of 2 no. detached two storey dwellings with 
provision of double integral garages] at former wood yard, Tithe Laithe, Hoyland, 
Barnsley S74 9DQ.

RESOLVED that the application be granted in accordance with the officer 
recommendation subject to completion of a S106 Agreement covering compensation 
for loss of green space.  

14. Worsbrough Hall Wood -  Tree Preservation Order No. 1/2018 - To seek 
confirmation of the Order without modification 

The Head of Planning and Building Control submitted a report informing members 
that an objection had been received in respect of Tree Preservation Order 1/2018 at 
Worsborough Hall Wood, Worsborough.

RESOLVED that the Executive Director, Core Services, be authorised to confirm 
Tree Preservation Order 1/2018 without modification.

15. Planning Appeals - 1st to 31st May 2018 

The Head of Planning and Building Control submitted an update regarding 
cumulative appeal totals for 2018/19.

The report indicated that 4 appeals were received in May 2018, no appeals were 
withdrawn, and 1 appeal was decided in May 2018.

It was reported that 4appeals have been decided since 1 April 2018, 2 of which 
(50%) have been dismissed and 2 of which (50%) have been allowed.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 138



MEETING: Audit Committee
DATE: Monday, 2 July 2018
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Meeting Room 1, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES

Present Councillors Richardson (Chair), Barnard and Lofts together with 
Independent Members - Ms D Brown, Mr S Gill, Mr P Johnson and 
Mr M Marks

12. DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTEREST 

Councillor Lofts declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute No 13 ‘Draft Statement 
of Accounts 2017/18’ in view of his membership of the Local Pensions Board.

13. DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2017/18 

Referring to Minute No 5 of the meeting held on the 6th June, 2018, the Service 
Director Finance submitted his report on the draft Statement of Accounts 2018 
consideration of which had been deferred at that meeting to enable Members to have 
more time to consider issues raised in detail.

Members then asked a series of questions, including a series of written questions 
submitted by an Independent Member who was unable to attend this special 
meeting, and answers were provided where appropriate.  Where this was not 
possible due to the lack of information at the meeting, these would be addressed in 
writing by the Service Director.

Arising out of the ensuing discussion, the following matters were amongst those 
raised:

 There was a discussion of the Performance Indicators that had been 
developed and aligned to the priorities within the Corporate Plan and particular 
reference was made to the 25 red priorities for the ‘People Achieving their 
Potential’ priority.  In response to specific queries the Service Director 
commented that whilst the links to the individual quarterly performance reports 
did not include information for Quarter 4 (largely because of the timing issues 
involved in producing that information), this would, nevertheless, be included 
within the final report.  In addition, the report would include short 
commentaries on performance and on the action taken to tackle any 
underperformance identified

 Members noted the disparity between the gross expenditure in 2016/17 within 
the Core Services Directorate as outlined within the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  The reasons for this were briefly referred to but a 
detailed explanation would be provided by the Service Director Finance in 
writing

 It was noted that the Statement of Accounts was ‘Code’ compliant and details 
of the requirements thereof could be provided at a future training course.  A 
digital copy of the Code could also be provided

Page 139

Item 21



2

 There was a discussion of the Net Revenue Expenditure for 2017/18 and 
particularly as this related to the Core Services Directorate, the inclusion of 
Asset Management within that Directorate and the impact of PFI payments 
which had resulted in the net surplus within that budget head

 Arising out of the above, there was a discussion of the Council’s position with 
regard to PFI and BSF costs and to the legally binding contracts that were in 
place.  The Authority was looking to possibly re-finance the PFI borrowings 
given the current position with interest rates.  Further information would be 
provided in due course

 Referring to the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 and in response to 
specific questioning, the Service Director outlined the difference between 
Local Authority and Company accounts and made particular reference to the 
preparation of and rationale for Group accounts.  

 Arising out of the above, reference was made to the ‘Assets under 
Construction’ which related to the purchase of land and buildings details of 
which were outlined within notes to the accounts

 Reference was made to the Retirement Benefit Obligations and to the ways in 
which the accounts were prepared and assumptions made.  It was noted that 
in relation to funding arrangements, assets exceeded liabilities and the 
reasons for this were referred to.  Arising out of this, particular reference was 
made to investments made and to the improvements of the fund consequent 
upon Brexit.  It was noted that the Authority was examining ways of how 
improvements in investments could be protected

 It was reported that the link within the accounts relating to NPS Barnsley was 
not working correctly and this would be rectified.  Arising out of this, there was 
a discussion of the use of external links and to the Authority’s stance on this

 In response to questioning, the Service Director Finance stated that he would 
provide additional information on the way in which NPS Barnsley dealt with 
Pensions within their accounts and on any liabilities for the  Authority arising 
therefrom

 Reference was made to the Unfunded Liabilities: Discretionary Benefits 
Arrangements in relation to the Pension Assets and Liabilities which could, in 
part relate to historic issues and the previous allocation of ‘added years’ to 
enhance pension entitlement.  It was noted, however, that this was no longer 
permitted and that such arrangements had ceased approximately 10 years 
ago.  Further information on this would be provided

 The Service Director would provide additional information regarding the 
potential liabilities of the ongoing CPO Compensation Claim relating to the 
acquisition of land at Carlton Marsh

 Questions were asked in relation to any potential difficulties likely to be 
encountered in relation to the Glassworks Scheme as detailed within 
earmarked reserves within the Capital Programme.   It was noted that a 
procurement scheme was currently being undertaken, however, the reserves 
element had no correlation with the overall cost of the scheme.  Further 
information on the scheme and costs involved would be available at the end of 
the Summer

 Referring to the Trading Operations and particularly in relation to Building 
Services, it was noted that the deficit related to Facilities Management.  The 
Strategic Finance Manager was to examine how this was dealt with within the 
accounts in the future

Page 140



3

 In relation to the underspend on the Better Care Pooled Account, in was noted 
that this was largely around the receipt of one off grants last year and that 
plans were in place which would address that deficit

 An assurance was given that in relation to the Treasury Management 
Overview the Authority, unlike some authorities, was not investing in 
inappropriate schemes.  The Authority did not invest purely for commercial 
gain

 A previous report to this Committee some time ago had outlined the 
Authority’s position with regard to the repayment of debt which, unless there 
was some significant reason for it, was over a 50 year time period

 In relation to the Capital Programme Monitoring Overview and Asset 
Expenditure, information was provided in relation to Non BMBC Assets which 
was largely in relation to disabled facilities grants for the improvement of 
homes. 

 It was noted that in relation to sources of Capital Finance, EU structural 
funding was now reducing – further information on this could be provided

 Information was provided about the current position in relation to Business 
Rates Appeals

 An explanation was provided about surplus assets which largely related to 
properties that were no longer required for service delivery purposes but which 
might be used at some future date or put up for sale

 There was a discussion of the demise of Independent Living at Home 
(Barnsley) Ltd the services of which had now been brought back into the 
Council

 In relation to the Cash Flow Statement, information was provided about the 
arrangements in place for borrowing from other Local Authorities.  The Service 
Director confirmed that this was an existing long term arrangement for funding 
cash flow and was only used for short term arrangements which never 
exceeded 12 months in duration.  Information about the scheme and the 
Authorities involved was publicly available

 There was a detailed discussion of the operation of the Collection Fund, the 
assumptions made in relation to collection rates (which was currently 95%) 
and how this was distributed to the precepting bodies.  It was noted that 
collection rates were currently higher than assumed additional funds collected 
were written down against budgets for future years

 The Service Director commented that in relation to the value which was 
realistic to be taken from long term borrowing, he was aware of the capital 
financing requirement and was aware of up and coming borrowing needs.  An 
opportunity was taken, therefore, to set/fix borrowing so that certainty was built 
into the budget going forward

 Information had been submitted to Committee previously detailing the position 
with regard to the treatment of debt and this could be re-submitted in the 
future.  The Service Director commented that a forensic analysis was 
undertaken of the type and nature of the debt and of how long that had been 
outstanding and a view was then taken of the level to be set in relation to the 
impairment of outstanding debt

 In response to specific questioning, the Service Director stated that he would 
provide a more detailed breakdown of the depreciation and impairment 
calculation

 In relation to carry forward leave, the Service Director commented that this 
was routinely monitored and the policy of the Authority of allowing 5 days carry 

Page 141



4

forward (to be used by the end of May) was adhered to.  There was an 
element of discretion, however, to exceed this in certain limited and restricted 
circumstances.  There was no correlation between outstanding carry forward 
leave and staff reductions as a result of financial restrictions

 There was a discussion of the reduction in the revenue budget and to the 
impact this had on service delivery.  Whilst the majority of services had 
continued (though not all) there had been a significant reduction in some 
areas in the level of the services provided.  Going forward, it was likely that the 
next round of financial reductions would see further services cut altogether

 It was noted that to date no queries had been received to the accounts during 
the public consultation period which was currently ongoing

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the Service Director Finance and his Team be thanked for their hard work 
and dedication in producing the accounts;

(ii) that the work that has taken place to prepare the Authority’s Draft 2017/18 
Statement of Accounts on an International Financial Reporting Standards 
basis be noted; and

(iii) that the finalised Statement of Accounts 2017/18 be submitted to the next 
meeting of the Audit Committee to be held on 20th July, 2018.

…………………………….
Chair

Page 142



NOTES OF GENERAL LICENSING REGULATORY BOARD PANEL

29th May, 2018

Present: Councillors C Wraith MBE (Chair), Daniel Griffin and Markham together 
with Councillor Lofts (Reserve Member). 

Members of the Public and Press were excluded from all meetings.

1 Declarations of Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest from Members in 
respect of items on the agenda.

2 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver's Licence – Determination – Mrs G M 

The Panel considered a report of the Service Director Culture, Housing and 
Regulation requesting the determination of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence held by Mrs G M.

Mrs G M was in attendance and gave evidence in support of her case.  She also 
submitted two references/letters of support together with a letter from her solicitor 
which outlined the background to her current position.

After considering all the information and representations made the Panel decided 
that there the licence be revoked on the following grounds:

 The accumulation of 15 points on her DVLA Licence
 The offences committed would not become spent for nearly four years and, 

therefore, in accordance with the Council’s Guideline Policy for Criminal 
Convictions, the licence should not be considered until the 13th March, 2021 
at which point Mrs G M would still have 6 points on her DVLA Licence

 The issuing of three Written Warnings for the breach of the same Licensing 
Condition – ‘failure to report’

 Her attendance at a Speed Awareness Course approximately 3 ½ years ago 
which was not reported to the Licensing Service

 Her failure to present any extenuating circumstances to warrant a departure 
from the Council’s Guideline Policy for Criminal Convictions or to show that 
she remained a fit and proper person to hold such a licence

The decision of the Panel was unanimous.

19th June, 2018

Present: Councillors C Wraith MBE (Chair), Lofts and Shepherd together with 
together with Councillor Sumner (Reserve Member). 

Page 143

Item 22



3 Declarations of Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest from Members in 
respect of items on the agenda.

4 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver's Licence – Application – Mr G B 

The Panel considered a report of the Service Director Culture, Housing and 
Regulation on an application for the grant of a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence by Mr G B.

Mr G B was in attendance and gave evidence in support of his case.  The Panel also 
received a letter of support from Mr D W (Licensing Consultant).

After considering all the information and representations made the Panel decided to 
grant the application as there was sufficient justification to warrant a deviation from 
the Council’s Guideline Policy for Criminal Convictions and on the following grounds:

 The manner in which he presented himself
 The genuine remorse shown at the offences committed
 The time that had elapsed since the offences were committed and the fact 

that most were committed whilst he was young
 The assurance that he had changed his ways and was not the same person 

who had committed those offences
 The fact that he had previously held a taxi licence within Barnsley for 

approximately five years and that there was no evidence to suggest that there 
were any concerns regarding his behaviour or driving or any record of any 
complaints received

 The fact that he had provided sufficient extenuating evidence to convince the 
Panel that he was a fit and proper person to hold such a licence

The decision of the Panel was unanimous.

5 Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver's Licence – Application – Mr Z S S

The Panel considered a report of the Service Director Culture, Housing and 
Regulation on an application for the grant of a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence.

Mr Z S S was in attendance and gave evidence in support of his case.

After considering all the information and representations made the Panel decided 
that in view of the evidence submitted and, taking account of the manner in which he 
presented himself, the applicant was a fit and proper person to hold such a licence 
and that the application be granted on the following grounds:

 There was sufficient justification to warrant a deviation from the Council’s 
Guideline Policy for Criminal Convictions in relation to migrant workers

Page 144



 He entered the country as an asylum seeker at the age of 14, became a 
naturalised citizen in 2009 and, as such, had the right to live and work in the 
UK

 He had lived in the UK for a number of years and had held a position of work 
and was currently a licenced driver in Rotherham, a position he had held for 
approximately one year

 He had undertaken courses of study and was continuing such courses at 
University

 Whilst resident in his country of origin he had confirmed that he had no 
criminal convictions recorded against him

 His excellent command of the English Language
 His Enhanced DBS check had come back clear and had been since he came 

into the UK

The decision of the Panel was unanimous.

Page 145



This page is intentionally left blank



APPEALS, AWARDS AND STANDARDS REGULATORY BOARD

(a) School Admission Appeals Panel – 14th May, 2018

Holy Trinity 1 Withdrawn

(b) School Admission Appeals Panel – 15th May, 2018

Darton College 2 Allowed
3 Refused

(c) School Admission Appeals Panel – 17th May, 2018

Brierley C of E Primary 2 Refused

Cherrydale Primary 1 Refused

Darton Primary 2 Refused
1 Allowed

Mapplewell Primary 1 Refused
1 Allowed
1 Withdrawn

(d) School Admission Appeals Panel – 18th May, 2018

Jump Primary 3 Refused

Upperwood Primary 1 Allowed

The Mill Academy 2 Allowed

(e) School Transport Appeal – 21st May, 2018

Home to School Transport Appeal 1 Refused

(f) School Admission Appeals Panel – 22nd May, 2018

Penistone Grammar 4 Refused
2 Withdrawn
1 Withdrawn

(g) School Admission Appeals Panel – 23rd May, 2018

Outwood Academy Carlton 10 Refused
2 Allowed

Page 147

Item 23



(h) School Admission Appeals Panel – 5th June, 2018

Kirk Balk 7 Refused
5 Allowed
1 Withdrawn

(i) School Admission Appeals Panel – 7th June, 2018

Summer Lane Primary 1 Refused

Thurlstone Primary 1 Refused
1 Withdrawn

The Mill Academy 1 Refused

Shawlands Primary 1 Refused

Cherrydale Primary 1 Allowed

(j) School Admission Appeals Panel – 14th June, 2018

Kexborough Primary 1 Allowed

Horizon College 4 Allowed

Jump Primary 1 Refused

Ladywood Primary 2 Refused
1 Allowed

(k) School Admission Appeals Panel – 18th June, 2018

Outwood Academy Carlton 2 Refused
1 Allowed

Brierley C of E Primary 1 Refused

Hoylandswaine Primary 1 Refused

Worsbrough Common Primary 4 Refused

(l) School Admission Appeals Panel – 21st June, 2018

Burton Road Primary 1 Refused

Wilthorpe Primary 1 Refused

Worsbrough Bank End Primary 2 Refused

Heather Garth Primary 3 Refused
Page 148



Holy Trinity 2 Refused
3 Allowed

(m) School Admission Appeals Panel – 26th June, 2018

Summer Lane Primary 2 Refused
1 Refused
1 Withdrawn

Lacewood Primary 2 Withdrawn
1 Deferred

West Meadows Primary 3 Refused

(n) School Admission Appeals Panel – 2nd July, 2018

Athersley North Primary 3 Refused
1 Withdrawn

High View PLC 4 Refused

Keresforth Primary 2 Refused

(o) School Admission Appeals Panel – 5th July, 2018

Shawlands Primary 1 Refused

The Mill Academy 1 Refused

Silkstone Common Primary 1 Withdrawn

Birkwood Primary 1 Refused
1 Allowed
1 Withdrawn

Worsbrough Bank End Primary 1 Refused
1 Withdrawn

(p) School Admission Appeals Panel – 6th July, 2018

Milefield Primary 2 Withdrawn

Wombwell Park Street 1 Refused

Worsbrough Bank End Primary 1 Refused

(q) School Admission Appeals Panel – 9th July, 2018

Kirk Balk 1 Refused
Page 149



2 Allowed

Cawthorne Primary 1 Refused

Lacewood Primary 1 Refused
2 Withdrawn

(r) School Admission Appeals Panel – 10th July, 2018

Barugh Green Primary 2 Refused

Queens Road Academy 1 Refused
1 Withdrawn

(s) School Admission Appeals Panel – 13th July, 2018

Laithes Primary 1 Allowed

Horizon College 2 Refused

Worsbrough Common Primary 1 Refused

Summer Lane Primary 1 Refused
1 Withdrawn

Holy Trinity 2 Refused

(t) School Admission Appeals Panel – 16th July, 2018

Penistone Grammar 5 Allowed
1 Refused
1 Withdrawn

Dearne ALC 2 Refused

Other appeals withdrawn prior to the allocation of a date

Lacewood Primary 4 Withdrawn

Holy Trinity 1 Withdrawn

Heather Garth Primary 3 Withdrawn

Highgate Primary Academy 3 Withdrawn

Milefield Primary 3 Withdrawn

Sacred HeartPrimary 1 Withdrawn
Page 150



Carrfield Primary 1 Withdrawn

Upperwood Primary 2 Withdrawn

Shafton Primary 2 Withdrawn

Worsbrough Common Primary 1 Withdrawn

Littleworth Primary 1 Withdrawn

Kirk Balk 4 Withdrawn

Wellgate Primary 2 Withdrawn

Cherrydale Primary 1 Withdrawn

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Health and Wellbeing Board
DATE: Tuesday, 5 June 2018
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present 

Dr Nick Balac, Chair, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (in the Chair)
Councillor Jim Andrews BEM, Deputy Leader
Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson - People (Safeguarding)
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson - Communities
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities
Julia Burrows, Director Public Health
Lesley Smith, Chief Officer, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group
Emma Wilson, NHS England Area Team
Adrian England, HealthWatch Barnsley
Sean Rayner, District Director, South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust
Helen Jaggar, Chief Executive, Berneslai Homes

1 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest.

2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 3rd April, 2018 (HWB.05.06.2018/2) 

The meeting considered the minutes of the previous meeting held on 3rd April, 2018.  
Arising from Minute 58, the meeting noted SSDG consideration of topics for 
discussion at the proposed development session on 7th August, 2018 and that any 
contributions from Board members as to matters to be considered at that session 
would be welcomed.

RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a true and correct record.

3 Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 28th February, 2018 
(HWB.05.06.2018/3) 

The meeting considered the minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership meeting 
held on 28th February, 2018.  The meeting noted the benefits of closer working and 
collaboration between the Council, South Yorkshire Police and South Yorkshire Fire 
and Rescue Service identified in the minutes.  Work was also progressing in 
developing the next edition of the Safer Communities Plan, which would be launched 
at a joint event with the Adult Safeguarding Board, and would be circulated to Health 
and Wellbeing Board members when finalised.

RESOLVED that the minutes be received.

Page 153

Item 24



2

4 Minutes from the Provider Forum held on 7th March, 2018 (HWB.05.06.2018/4) 

The meeting considered the minutes from the Provider Forum meeting held on 7th 
March, 2018.

The meeting noted the focus of the discussion on dementia, and consideration of the 
contribution made by providers in other partnerships.  The Forum had developed a 
forward plan of agenda items, and would be considering the Public Health Strategy at 
a future meeting, but would welcome suggestions from partners as to areas that the 
Provider Forum should consider.

The meeting discussed the membership of the Forum and attendance by 
representatives and the need perhaps to give this further consideration.  A particular 
consideration was the move towards delivery of services at the neighbourhood level, 
and whether Provider Forums should be built around this geographical configuration.  
However, the key consideration in this approach would be whether sufficient capacity 
existed to support Provider Forums at this level.  

RESOLVED:- 

(i) that the minutes be received; and

(ii) that the Executive Director Communities and Chair of Provider Forum discuss 
arrangements for a review of the membership and configuration of the 
Provider Forum for further consideration.

5 Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 19th February, 
2018 (HWB.05.06.2018/5) 

The meeting considered the minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership 
Board meeting held on 19th February, 2018.  The meeting noted in particular the 
launch of Live Well Barnsley and the engagement with over 700 groups in this 
initiative, and the need for partners to help promote the service.  The meeting noted 
the importance of providing appropriate links to My Best Life from Live Well Barnsley 
and the need to give further consideration about how the two initiatives can work 
better together.  A better understanding of the people using both services as a way of 
identifying gaps in provision was noted as an area for further investigation.

The meeting noted the increasing role for the voluntary and community sector in 
complementing the health and social care system.  The meeting noted the value of 
support from friends, family and the wider community, particularly for people with 
mental health problems, with agencies making provision where this support was not 
in place.  However, there was a need to give consideration to the proper training of 
volunteers in these roles, and to ensure that there was clarity about how this could be 
escalated to the agencies when necessary.

The meeting noted plans to develop growing schemes on unused public space, 
perhaps under the banner of “Incredible Edible”.  The meeting noted the role that 
could be played in growing schemes tackling food poverty, and noted that Fair Share 
was investigating the possibility of developing a community pantry.

Page 154



3

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the minutes be received; and

(ii) that the Executive Director Communities and Chief Officer of the CCG 
investigate how better links can be made between Live Well Barnsley and My 
Best Life, including an analysis of data to identify gaps in provision/coverage.

6 Public Questions (HWB.05.06.2018/6) 

The meeting noted that no public questions had been received for this meeting and 
that a further review of the arrangements was due at the October meeting of the 
Board.  The meeting discussed the need for the review to consider if the current 
arrangements were such that they encouraged the public to ask questions.

RESOLVED that the intention for the review of the arrangements for public questions 
to be considered at the Board’s October meeting be noted.

7 Local Health and Care Records Exemplar (LHCRE) (HWBB.05.06.2018/7) 

The meeting received a report on proposals for a Yorkshire and Humber Health and 
Care Record Exemplar site bid, and informing the Health and Wellbeing Board of the 
request that Barnsley Council give its support for this bid.  The proposal was 
consistent with the work already being undertaken in Barnsley to develop a digital 
roadmap to establish interoperability of systems across health and social care, which 
had previously been considered by the Board.  The meeting noted that, if the bid was 
successful, there would be a need to identify match funding across the region of 
£7.5m over 2 years. Although the bid would not commit partners to providing that 
match funding at this stage, it was anticipated that the funding already provided for 
the digital roadmap could be counted towards this.  Similarly, the element of 
vanguard funding towards interoperability might also be a source of match funding.

RESOLVED that the proposed Yorkshire and Humber Local Health and Care Record 
Exemplar bid be noted and the Health and Wellbeing Board place on record its 
support for the Chief Executive of Barnsley Council to write in support of the bid.

8 Health Protection (HWB.05.06.2018/8) 

The meeting received a report and presentation on the role and scope of health 
protection work being undertaken in Barnsley, including the system where a range of 
organisations have responsibility to respond to threats to the health of the population.  
The meeting noted action in relation to preventing future deaths from food induced 
anaphylaxis and the measles action plan as examples of work undertaken under the 
auspice of the Barnsley Health Protection Board.  The meeting also noted work to 
undertake an audit of local health protection arrangements, to review plans and test 
response arrangements.

The meeting noted the intention to incorporate a check of food businesses’ 
procedures in relation to preventing anaphylaxis as part of the normal food hygiene 
regime.  Members commented on the emphasis in relation to food businesses, and 
noted that many food related services might now be provided in the voluntary and 

Page 155



4

community sector.  There was a need to be clear whether the proposed checks 
would pick up this type of activity.

The meeting noted the recent publication of data in relation to sexually transmitted 
diseases, which had seen a 25% increase nationally.  There was a need to consider 
the data for Barnsley to identify if this raises any issues for the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  In relation to flu vaccinations, the meeting noted the need for further 
promotion for next winter, although it was understood that vaccination rates in 
Barnsley for 2017/18 were the highest ever achieved.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the approach to health protection in Barnsley, as identified in the report, 
be noted and minutes of the Health Protection Board be received by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board by exception when there are matters in need of 
further consideration;

(ii) that a report be submitted on an annual basis to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board on Health Protection Board activity to provide assurance that the health 
of the residents of Barnsley is being protected in a pro-active and effective 
way; and

(iii) that the Director of Public Health review the data on sexually transmitted 
diseases in Barnsley for reporting to the Board in order that any further actions 
can be considered.

9 Access to Primary Care (HWB.05.06.2018/9) 

The meeting received a report and presentation giving an overview of arrangements 
for access to primary medical care in Barnsley.  The meeting noted specific initiatives 
in relation to extended access through the iHeart Barnsley arrangements, the use of 
digital technology to improve access through the Patient Partner and Patient On-line 
arrangements, and a range of workforce initiatives that recognise the importance of 
access to general practice services, rather than just the GP as an individual.  The 
presentation highlighted as priorities for 2018/19 the consideration of results from the 
2018 Patients Survey, the wider development of e-consultations, increased capacity 
of extended access and patient on-line uptake, a review of current opening hours and 
consideration of locality access.

The meeting welcomed the proposals to develop the extended access arrangements, 
particularly given the difficulty that residents of the Dearne Valley would have 
accessing the current arrangements.  The use of digital technology to access 
services was noted, and there was a need to consider possible barriers, including 
poor broadband coverage as well as digital exclusion, in enabling access.  The 
current review of libraries also provided an opportunity to review the use of space in 
LIFT centres to support developments within the locality. 

The meeting welcomed the consideration being given to the work undertaken by 
HealthWatch in relation to access to general practice.  The importance of promoting 
with the public the idea that there were numerous entry points for general practice 
services, and not just through the GP, in order to maximise access was 
acknowledged.  The meeting noted the response from Accident and Emergency 

Page 156



5

services that 25% of those patients attending hospital could have been treated by 
their GP, and that potentially more patients could be redirected if general practice 
had the capacity.  This highlighted the importance of ensuring that patients were 
properly signposted to those different access points.

RESOLVED that the report and presentation be noted and the plans and priorities for 
improving access to general practice services during 2018/19 be welcomed.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
DATE: Tuesday, 5 June 2018
TIME: 1.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Ennis (Chair), Bowler, G. Carr, Frost, 
Gollick, Hampson, W. Johnson, Makinson, Pourali, 
Sheard, Tattersall and Williams together with co-opted 
members Ms P. Gould and Ms K. Morritt.

1 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives 

No apologies for absence were received in accordance with Regulation 7(6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001.

2 Appreciation 

The Chair wished to place on record his thanks for work Cllr W Johnson had 
undertaken in chairing the Committee for the previous year. 

3 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest.

4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

The minutes of the meeting held on 24th April, 2018 were approved as a true and 
accurate record.

5 Waste Collection Service Review 

The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting:-

Councillor Roy Miller – Cabinet Spokesperson, Place
Paul Castle – Service Director, Environment and Transport
Jeanette Jones – Waste Collection Manager, Environment and Transport
Rachel Tyas – Head of Transformation, Environment and Transport

The Service Director, Environment and Transport introduced the item, reminding 
Members that this was one of four reviews being undertaken which also included 
Neighbourhood Services; Highways; and Fleet Services. This formed part of work to 
modernise the service.  Some service improvement had already been undertaken 
and the service was generally performing well, however it was recognised that there 
were some areas for improvement as highlighted in the report.  Questions were then 
invited from Members and the ensuing discussion included the following points:-

 Cabinet had recently agreed the combining of household waste and 
cardboard, however this was yet to become operational.  The ability to do so 
related to a new facility becoming available and a new contractor being in 

Page 159

Item 25



2

place.  Members were made aware that it was expected that this would go live 
in August, with appropriate communications to make the public aware.

 With regards to replacement bins Members were made aware of the policy; if 
the bin was damaged by staff then this would be reported and replaced 
directly.  If damaged prior to it being emptied by staff, then the responsibility 
for replacement lay with the resident.

 Members discussed the issue of bins being left inappropriately after being 
emptied, and were encouraged to report any specific issues directly to the 
service.  This would help to ensure that these were dealt with appropriately.

 In relation to the review, Members questioned how stakeholders were 
engaged in the process and in response they were made aware that a wide 
range of business partners and staff had been engaged at all levels.  
Members had also been engaged at Area Council and Ward Alliance levels.  
Assurance was given that further engagement would happen where 
appropriate; recognising that local intelligence from Members through Area 
Councils and Ward Alliances was important and closer working could be 
beneficial.  It was noted that the Everybody Think campaign had been 
extended to include litter and recycling and that a representative from the 
Communities Directorate was now on the group.

 With approximately 110,000 households with up to 4 bins each, Members 
noted the significant number in circulation, and that current usage rates were 
not known.  However a business case is currently being developed in relation 
to adopting in-cab technology.  The technology would help to measure put out 
rates and weights in order to plan rounds and maximise efficiency.  It was 
noted that this technology was being used by other authorities such as 
Rotherham and Bradford.

 The high collection rates were noted, and the policy recently adopted of 
issuing additional pink sacks by post for residents where bins had 
unfortunately been missed was noted.

 The process for applying for assisted bin collection, or for residents changing 
their address for the service was discussed as feedback from residents 
suggested this was onerous.  Work had been undertaken to simplify the 
process, and a GP letter was no longer required. However, it was recognised 
that relevant checks were undertaken to ensure that resources were utilised 
for those who required the service.  Members heard that the process had a 
target of 4 weeks to conclude. 

 Questions were asked in relation to the use of Association for Public Service 
Excellence (APSE) data, and why the service had declined to submit 
information to APSE as part of the benchmarking club.   In response Members 
heard how, in a time of making efficiency savings, the decision had been 
taken previously to withdraw from the benchmarking club, however more 
recently the situation had been reconsidered and it was recommended that the 
service reengage with APSE.

 The committee discussed current performance, noting that changes to 
measurements, such as pre and post treatment to remove water, had meant it 
difficult to make accurate comparisons.  Assurances were given that, due to 
the BDR facility, over 95% of the waste in Barnsley diverted from landfill.

 In relation to commercial waste, it was noted that the service had around 
1,900 customers, and worked collaboratively with other providers.  Over the 
past four years both turnover and profitability had increased, and customers 
were provided with assurances about where their waste went.  However, in 

Page 160



3

growing this element of the service, it was recognised that the Council had to 
be mindful of the boundaries in relation to the private sector.

 The issues of waste produced by Houses of Multiple Occupation (HMOs) was 
mentioned, with many producing the waste of many families, but with Council 
tax levied on the property itself.  The challenge this presented was 
acknowledged, and it was noted that this was an issue nationally as HMOs 
were treated as a private dwelling and not as a business.  It was suggested 
that Members ought to lobby where possible to raise the importance of this 
issue with central government.

 Questions were asked in relation to flies around sites at Stairfoot and 
Manvers, and Members were made aware of the strict plans in place to deal 
with this issue.  This included doing fly counts to ascertain the severity of the 
issue and then deal with it accordingly.  Members heard how a recent 
investigation into flies in the vicinity found them to be emanating from a local 
pig farm.

 When discussing good practice Members heard how the South Yorkshire 
Waste Strategy prioritises the dependability and predictability of the service, 
as this was of paramount importance to residents. This which was echoed in 
Barnsley. Though there were many variables which could provide disruptions, 
where possible contingencies were in place to ensure the impact of these was 
minimised.

 Members discussed what could currently be recycled and it was noted that 
work to ensure the public was aware of this through education campaigns was 
ongoing. Twice a year waste arisings were analysed to understand where 
further recycling could be targeted.  In-cab technology could provide further 
information, which would aid the targeting of communications.  In addition the 
bottom ash at the end of the processes used at Manvers and Ferrybridge 
could be used to make aggregate used in roads.  Further investigation was 
being undertaken regarding the use of recyclables such as plastics in roads.

 The age profile of staff in the service was discussed, and it was noted that 
whenever vacancies were advertised the response was very positive. 
Witnesses recognised the need to invest in areas such as apprenticeships and 
this was part of the business plan for the service.

 The issue of an increased demand on the service through the building of 
houses was mentioned, and Members were made aware that increases in 
income from Council tax did feed into increased finance for the service.

 The meeting discussed the effectiveness of the permit system for the use of 
Household Waste Recycling Centres, and it was noted that around 25,000 
permits had been issued with the system working well to assist Barnsley 
avoiding processing the household waste from other boroughs.  In addition the 
service was looking at how to deal with the issue of commercial or semi 
commercial waste that residents brought into the sites.

 The issue of refrigerators being left on pavments was discussed, with some 
being left out to be collected by the bulky collections service, and some being 
fly-tipped.  It was noted that there was a market in the motors within the fridge, 
and often they were stripped at the kerbside or picked up, stripped, and 
subsequently fly-tipped.  Work with the enforcement team was ongoing to 
address the issue, and work to align the service provided by the fly-tipping and 
bulky collection teams was also underway.  

 Members noted that waste carriers licences were administered by the 
Environment Agency, and were relatively easy to obtain, but that the Council 

Page 161



4

worked in partnership for the Agency to revoke these where these had been 
abused in order to fly-tip. Also noted was the responsibility now placed on 
householders when gaining planning permission to ensure that licenced waste 
carriers were used.

 Members questioned the frequency of litter picking in the town centre and in 
response Members heard how operatives were in place every day including 
weekends.

RESOLVED
(i) That the witnesses be thanked for their attendance;
(ii) That thanks be given to all staff involved in delivering a high performing 

service, which is subject to continuing challenges;
(iii)That the content of the report be noted.

6 Scrutiny Work Programme 2018/19 

The Scrutiny Officer introduced the item, reminding the committee of the recent 
workshop session which had discussed potential items for inclusion in the work plan.  
In addition Members had been asked to email any ideas so that they could also be 
incorporated. 

The attention of Members was drawn to the draft plan, which included dates where 
consideration could be given to quarterly performance reports.  The committee noted 
that both annual reports from the Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board and 
Safeguarding Children’s Board would be considered as part of an All Members 
Scrutiny Session.

Also noted were the themes suggested for the Task and Finish Groups: Adult Mental 
Health Services; Substance Misuse (which would include associated Anti-Social 
Behaviour); and Social Housing.

With regards to the review of hospital services, it was suggested that this could be 
part of the scope of the session to consider Integrated/Accountable Care System 
Progress if appropriate.

The Committee discussed attendance at the Committee, and the Chair remarked that 
this was an issue already in consideration.  A review of the arrangements for 
Overview and Scrutiny was already in train, and that any changes necessary could 
be made to be effective from the start of the next municipal year.

RESOLVED that the Overview and Scrutiny draft work programme for 2018/19 be 
endorsed by the committee, recognising the need for this to be flexible in order to 
remain responsive.

Page 162



MEETING: Overview and Scrutiny Committee
DATE: Tuesday, 19 June 2018
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Ennis (Chair), G. Carr, Clements, Gollick, 
Hampson, W. Johnson, Makinson, Mitchell, Pourali, 
Sheard, Tattersall, Williams, Wilson and Wright 
together with co-opted members Ms P. Gould and 
Ms K. Morritt

7 Apologies for Absence - Parent Governor Representatives 

No apologies for absence were received in accordance with Regulation 7(6) of the 
Parent Governor Representatives (England) Regulations 2001.

8 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interest 

Councillors Carr, Tattersall and Wilson declared non-pecuniary interests with regard 
to items 4 and 6 on the agenda due to their positions on the Corporate Parenting 
Panel.  

9 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5th June 2018 were approved as a true and 
accurate record.

10 Ofsted Inspection of Local Authority Children's Services (ILACS) 

The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting:-

Mel John-Ross, Service Director, Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding,
BMBC
Deborah Mercer, Head of Children & Family Social Care, BMBC
Jon Banwell, Head of Children in Care Services, BMBC
Monica Green, Head of Safeguarding & Quality Assurance, BMBC
Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson for People – Safeguarding

The Service Director, Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding, BMBC, introduced 
this item and provided Members with an overview of BMBC’s Self Evaluation of 
Social Work Practice in Barnsley, in response to the Office for Standards in 
Education, Children’s Services and Skills’ (Ofsted’s) new framework for the 
Inspection of Local Authority Children’s Services (ILACS).  

It was explained that this is a more efficient,  strength based approach underpinned 
by the principle of catching and supporting Local Authorities before they fall, not 
catching them out.  A self-evaluation is completed, which must be fewer than twenty 

Page 163

Item 26



2

pages long, by talking to practitioners on the front line in the first instance.  The report 
includes full year performance, which demonstrates the distance travelled.  It was felt 
that the new framework was a step in the right direction, as previous inspections did 
seem to have a negative impact.

Questions were then invited from Members and the following lines of enquiry were 
challenged and pursued:

Neglect is the negative behaviour which children coming into care in Barnsley are 
most likely to have experienced.  Neglect impacts on children in many areas, 
including lack of boundaries, poor attachments, poor behaviour at school and social 
relationships and can lead to mental health and drug and alcohol problems in later 
life. To combat this, the Neglect strategy was developed in 2017 and includes 
training for partners.  To date more than 500 professionals have been trained and 
now have a greater understanding of the implications of neglect.  Work is also done 
with parents and a successful media campaign raised awareness with the general 
population.  There is a link between poverty and neglect in that parents who are living 
in poverty may lack the capacity and motivation to care for their children adequately.  
Work is currently underway to further explore the linkages and this theme will be 
returned to by the Committee later in the year.

Barnsley is currently graded as ‘requires improvement’.  The inspection judgement 
will be received after the inspection has taken place – Barnsley’s last inspection was 
in May 2014 so an inspection could be imminent.  The Local Authority is also subject 
to two visits focussing on narrow and specific areas and lasting 2-3 days, which could 
prompt  a full inspection if the results of the visits are a cause for concern.  There is 
also the possibility of a joint targeted inspection with the CQC and the Police.  An 
annual meeting with the Director takes place to review a self-evaluation, which will be 
refreshed every quarter.  
It was highlighted that Elected Member challenge and scrutiny is very much a part of 
continuous improvement.  Together with Cllr Bruff’s input, this is viewed as a 
significant part of Barnsley’s improvement journey.  

Mark Riddle MBE, National Implementation Adviser for Care Leavers was invited to 
Barnsley in May 2018 to test the offer to Care Leavers here in Barnsley.  Detailed 
feedback from the very positive visit will be shared with the Corporate Parenting 
Panel.  Mr Riddle visited the new care leavers’ drop in and was very impressed with 
the offer, which was developed alongside the young people and now offers additional 
support up to age 25, not 21 as previously.  An open day is planned and Mr Riddle’s 
suggestions will be taken on board and included in the redeveloped offer.  

A Member questioned  that social workers working with disabled children appeared 
to have a high number of caseloads.  It was explained that caseloads have 
significantly reduced from previous levels with the addition of new social workers.  
The Disabled Children’s Team work with lots of children with varying levels of need.  
Some may only need help to review support and respite arrangements and thus the 
work is not as intensive as in other teams.  It was also pointed out that caseloads in 
other teams are coming down and numbers can change on a daily basis.

It was felt that Barnsley is successful in recruiting new social workers as they ensure 
social workers are given ongoing support and an effective, supportive working 
environment so that they feel valued.  Training needs are reviewed and met on an 

Page 164



3

annual basis.  The management structure is efficient, with visible leaders which 
provides a sense of confidence.  ‘Home grown’ social workers are supported by a 
three year offer of training and learning opportunities.  Agency staff are no longer 
used.

Referral thresholds are agreed with partners, and re-referrals and those cases 
deemed as ‘no further action’ are constantly monitored.  Sometimes there has to be 
some adjustments made, and consultations about concerns take place with partner 
agencies to ensure the right service is provided at the right time, with a strong ‘step 
up/step down’ process in place.  Challenge is always welcome.

The voice of the child is always heard in Barnsley and the child’s views and needs 
are placed at the centre and incorporated into any intervention.  Children are involved 
in their own case conferences and clear feedback is obtained from children with 
regard to what helps and what hinders.  The Care4Us Council challenges officers on 
performance and contributes to improvement plans.  A new website for children in 
care was launched just last week and the Care leavers’ service was developed in 
conjunction with care leavers.   Non-verbal tools are used where a child has 
communication difficulties and complaints are carefully considered to pick out the key 
elements.  

Good practice is identified and shared between the Local Authority and partner 
agencies and success is celebrated at a bi-monthly forum.   The biggest risk to the 
effective delivery of services to children is the austerity measures and cuts to 
government funding.  The budget for statutory services is protected in Barnsley but 
the national picture can’t be ignored and preventative and early help services could 
be reduced, leading to more children being referred to ‘high end’ social care.  An 
increase in the number of care proceedings and rising numbers of children in care 
could put pressure on Local Authorities.  

The education and school attendance of Looked After Children is a priority, as is the 
ongoing delivery of the Placement Sufficiency Strategy.  Barnsley has a strong 
ambition that children should be placed within a family setting, especially older 
children.  Adolescents and sibling groups present a particular challenge.  One recent 
success has been the fostering recruitment campaign run in conjunction with the 
North East Area Council, which has seen a phenomenal  increase in the number of 
Barnsley carers from this area recruited to care for Barnsley children.  This initiative 
will be rolled out across the Borough.  

Members felt that Barnsley was keeping pace with other Local Authorities and had a 
strong, stable and committed workforce and should be thanked for their commitment 
to Barnsley children.    

RESOLVED that:

(i) Witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution
(ii) The contents of the reports be noted

Page 165



4

11 Exclusion of the Public and Press 

RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item, because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as described by the specific paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) as follows:

Item Number Type of information likely to be disclosed
6 Paragraph 1

12 Children's Social Care Performance Cover Report 

The following witnesses were welcomed to the meeting:

 Mel John-Ross, Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding 
 Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson for People (Safeguarding)

An introduction was given to the report circulated, which provided information for the 
whole year’s performance and Quarter 4 performance (April 2018)..  The report 
provided a summary section with an overview of performance using RAG (red, 
Amber, Green) ratings and direction of travel for most indicators together with 
historical performance and comparisons with other local authorities and national and 
statistical neighbour averages (based on 2016/17 data) where available.  

Members asked questions and challenged the following issues, to which appropriate 
responses were given:   

 The reasons behind the relatively low number of Early Help Assessments 
completed in April.

 The decrease in the proportion of looked after children in the same placement for 
two years or more.

 Looked after children’s high school attendance and exclusion rates.
 The role of the Virtual Head, Social Workers and Education Welfare in addressing 

education issues.
 The role of partners in supporting care leavers to engage in education, 

employment or training.
 The significant increase in the number of contacts received, due to changes in the 

recording system, not an increase in demand.
 The increase in children subject to a child protection plan for the second or 

subsequent time.

RESOLVED that:

i) witnesses be thanked for their attendance and contribution; and

ii) the report be noted.

Page 166



MEETING: Central Area Council
DATE: Monday, 14 May 2018
TIME: 3.00 pm
VENUE: Meeting Room 2, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Riggs (Chair), D. Birkinshaw, 
P. Birkinshaw, Bowler, Bruff, G. Carr, Clarke, 
K. Dyson, W. Johnson, Mitchell, Murray, Pourali, 
Williams and Wright. 

36. Declaration of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests.

37. Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Central Area Council held on 12th March, 
2018 (Cen.14.05.2018/2) 

The meeting received the minutes from the previous meeting of Central Area Council 
held on 12th March, 2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Central Area Council held on 12th March, 2018 
be approved as a true and correct record.

38. Area Profile Presentation (Cen.14.05.2018/3) 

Liz Pitt, Business Intelligence Advisor was welcomed to the meeting to give a 
presentation of available data relating to the Central Area.

The presentation covered demographic trends in the area; deprivation; skills, training 
and employment; poverty; and health and wellbeing.

With regards to the changing ethnicity in the area, it was noted that for adults the only 
available information was the 2011 census, and therefore children registered in 
school with English as an additional language was suggested as a proxy.

It was suggested that trend data could be provided, which could help to show 
whether the ethnicity in the area was changing.

When considering Experian data, Members noted the high proportions of residents in 
the groups ‘transient renters’ and ‘vintage value’.

Members noted the higher than Barnsley and National average figures for Free 
School Meals, and questioned why proportions for Education and Health Care Plans 
were relatively high for primary school pupils when compared to secondary.  It was 
thought that there could be secondary pupils waiting for assessment, and that the 
process for assessment in primary school may be better than in previous years.

Attention was drawn to the trends in attainment from early years foundation stage 
through to key stage 4 and those Not In Education, Employment or Training (NEET) 
post 16.

Page 167

Item 27



2

The meeting considered the numbers of residents out of work in the area, with the 
proportion being higher than Barnsley and nationally.  Within the area there were 
significant variations between wards for child and fuel poverty.  It was thought that 
poverty was increasing in the area and therefore work had been arranged to improve 
the dataset. 

Health statistics were discussed, including risk factors causing premature deaths, 
with smoking, high blood pressure and high cholesterol being the three greatest 
factors.

Other health information, including excess winter deaths, and mortality rates from 
cancer, respiratory disease, and cardiovascular diseases were considered.  It was 
again noted that there were significant variances between wards.

With regards to loneliness, data relating to ‘hot spots’ identified by Age UK was 
discussed, as were the numbers of men 25-49 living alone 

A number of comments were made in relation to the data, which often had time lags 
and was therefore not up to date, however it was noted that this was the most recent 
available.

RESOLVED That thanks be given for the presentation.

39. Procurement and Financial Update (Cen.14.05.2018/4) 

The item was introduced by the Area Council Manager, who referred to the previous 
item. Members were asked to consider the priorities of the Area Council, and whether 
these remained valid in light of additional data and local intelligence.   Members 
confirmed that the existing priorities would remain for 2018/19.

In relation to issues of loneliness in men, recent feedback from My Best Life had 
suggested that this had been identified as an emerging issue. A suggestion was 
made to invite My Best Life to a future meeting of the Area Council to discuss this 
and other emerging issues in more detail.

Members discussed other issues within the area, including issues with cohesion, and 
residents being less tolerant.   It was noted that the Area Council had recently agreed 
a Service Level Agreement (SLA), which would support new tenants and hopefully 
assist with this issue.  In addition a suggestion was made to undertake an exercise 
with Berneslai Homes, the scope of which could consider issues such as these.

The Area Council Manager provided an update in relation to the SLA to support new 
tenants, and shift allowance had now been removed from the post, which would 
reduce the cost correspondingly.  The post had been advertised with a closing date 
of 25th May for applications.

Members questioned whether this would duplicate existing work, but assurances 
were given that detailed discussions had taken place with services already in 
operation to ensure that work was complementary.   

Page 168



3

The attention of Members was then drawn to appendix 2, and the outcome of work 
undertake by the Central Area Fly-tipping working group, and subsequent 
discussions with the Safer Neighbourhood Services and Neighbourhood Services in 
order to address the issue of household fly-tipping in the area.   A proposal was 
submitted to create a service to focus on the enforcement of household fly tipping, 
and education at an individual and neighbourhood level.  This would focus on ‘hot 
spot’ areas and be overseen by a steering group comprising of Central Area Council 
Members, and representatives from the Central Area Team, Safer Neighbourhood 
Service, and Neighbourhood Services.

Issues such as the under-reporting of fly tipping were discussed.  It was suggested 
that further development of reporting mechanisms and the areas to be targeted could 
be undertaken through a workshop, and brought back to a future meeting of the Area 
Council.

In relation to the family support priority, the Area Council Manager referred to 
discussions with the Family Centre staff, Public Health Specialist Midwife and the 
Healthy Child Programme Lead.  Here the issue of low level mental health, or 
emotional wellbeing, of new parents had been highlighted.  It was suggested that this 
could significantly impact on effective parenting, and the individuals concerned were 
unlikely to engage with work happening in Family Centres or be involved with a 
family support worker.  

It was suggested that this would build on the work of the service provided by 
Homestart, and that early intervention in this area could lead to better outcomes for 
the family, and could avoid more costly and more intensive intervention later on.

The attention of Members was drawn to the financial position of the Area Council.  A 
remaining balance of £126,619 had been carried forward into 2018/19 to give a total 
opening balance of £626,919.  Of this £469,393 had been committed with £157,225 
to allocate.  However a number of areas of expenditure were anticipated, and should 
these come to fruition then £84,825 would remain.

RESOLVED:-
(i) That the current priorities and underlying principles for Central Area 

Council be confirmed for 2018/19;
(ii) That My Best Life be invited to a future meeting of the Area Council to 

provide an update on their work to date in the area and to highlight any 
emerging issues or challenges;

(iii) That the update on all current contracts, contract extensions and 
associated timescales, including the revised costings for the Service 
Level Agreement to provide a service focused on new tenants in the 
low cost private rented sector, be noted;

(iv) That the proposal to develop a new Targeted Household Fly-tipping 
Enforcement and Education Service Level Agreement, with an 
indicative cost of £64,000 over two years be supported, subject to 
further development with Members, with a workshop to be convened to 
finalise details;

(v) That the proposal to provide a home based and community follow-on 
peri-natal intervention to support emotional wellbeing be supported, and 
a working group be convened to develop a service specification and 
procurement strategy for this service;

Page 169



4

(vi) That the financial position for 2017/8 and the projected expenditure for 
2018/19-2020/21 be noted.

40. Quarter 4 Performance Management Report (Cen.14.05.2018/5) 

The Area Council Manager drew the attention of Members to the report circulated.  
The performance against all contracts was satisfactory.  It was noted that patrolling 
hours for the contract with Kingdom Security were at 93%, and the number of Fixed 
Penalty Notices issued had reduced.  It was thought that this was due to staff 
changes.

RESOLVED that the report be received.

41. Consideration of Boroughwide Services Delivered Locally - Update 
(Cen.14.05.2018/6) 

Members were referred to the report as circulated, and the details of the work 
previously undertaken as set out in the table at 3.4 of the report was noted.

Discussion then turned to the future programme of work, with suggestions that 
Neighbourhood Services be revisited around September, 2019 once restructure had 
been fully operational for six months.  In addition it was suggested that the Family 
Centre/ Family Support Service be reconsidered in October 2018, and the Safer 
Neighbourhood Service in September, 2018.

Members agreed that consideration of Berneslai Homes services would be pertinent, 
but that the scope of the exercise needed to be well defined to be most productive.  It 
was therefore suggested that Members forward their suggestions to the Area Chair 
or Area Council Manager, and if these provided no real consensus then a workshop 
be convened to discuss the scope between Central Area Council Members.

RESOLVED:-
(i) That the update on current exercises to consider boroughwide services 

delivered locally be noted;
(ii) That the future programme of exercises be supported;
(iii) That Members forward their thoughts on the scope of the exercise with 

Berneslai Homes to the Area Chair or Area Council Manager.

42. Notes of the Ward Alliances (Cen.14.05.2018/7) 

The meeting received the notes of the meetings of the following Ward Alliances 
within the Central Area:- Central Ward Alliance, held on 28th March; Dodworth Ward 
Alliance held on 27th February and 20th March; Kingstone Ward Alliance held on 11th 
April; Stairfoot Ward Alliance held on 12th March and 9th April; and Worsbrough Ward 
Alliacne held on 7th March.

RESOLVED that the notes of the Ward Alliances be received.

43. Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (Cen.14.05.2018/8) 

Page 170



5

The attention of Members was drawn to the levels of finance expended in 2017/18 
and the remaining for allocation in 2018/19 within each the Ward Alliance Funds.  
These were as follows:-

Central Ward Alliance Fund - £19,855.29
Dodworth Ward Alliance Fund - £18,685.00
Kingstone Ward Alliance Fund - £20,869.00
Stairfoot Ward Alliance Fund - £20,505.00
Worsbrough Ward Alliance Fund - £22,874

RESOLVED that the report be received.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 171



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Dearne Area Council
DATE: Monday, 14 May 2018
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Meeting Room, Goldthorpe Library

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Noble (Chair), Gardiner, Gollick, 
C. Johnson, Phillips and Sixsmith MBE 

37 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

Councillor Sixsmith declared an interest in Item 6 in his capacity as a Board Member 
of Age UK in view of that organisation’s potential involvement in the social isolation 
project.

38 Minutes of the Previous Meeting of Dearne Area Council held on 22nd January, 
2018 (Dac.14.05.2018/2) 

The meeting received the minutes from the previous meeting of the Dearne Area 
Council held on 22nd January, 2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a true and correct record.

39 Performance Report (Dac.14.05.2018/3) 

The Area Council Manager introduced a report giving an update on the performance 
of services commissioned by the Area Council and the service level agreement with 
BMBC, together with the progress of projects supported by the Dearne Development 
Fund, for the period January to March 2018.

The meeting noted in particular that the Twiggs clean and tidy project was exceeding 
targets, which had been reviewed and increased.  The Kingdom environmental 
enforcement commission was showing some underachievement of targets, and a 
formal performance report from the company was delayed but had now been 
received.  However, the Area Manager was aware of a number of staffing issues that 
had contributed to this and she was seeking to address these with Kingdom.  The 
Area Manager was aware that dog fouling remained a considerable concern for 
Elected Members and it was hoped to target better the offenders and Members were 
asked to identify particular areas for attention.  In relation to private sector housing 
enforcement, although performance for this quarter was low, progress overall was 
good.  It was noted that a vacant post and then newly appointed person had 
contributed to this lull in performance.  It was proposed to review the targets for this 
SLA where it was not possible for the activity to show that impact.  

The meeting noted that the problems in progressing car parking enforcement was 
partly due to the issue of “no parking” signs not being in place and the meeting noted 
work to address this issue.  The parking restrictions at the Post Office on Market 
Street continued to be of concern and Councillor Gardiner agreed to investigate the 
background to the introduction of these restrictions.

Page 173

Item 28



2

The meeting noted the progress of projects funded from the Dearne Development 
Fund, and the slight overspend from 2017/18 that would be carried over into 2018/19.  
The Development Fund continued to provide good value for money, with the DIAL 
project, for example, bringing in £22 to the area for every £1 spent.  Dearne 
Electronic Village had now seen 14 of its learners move into employment and by the 
end of the project over 60 learners will have achieved an OCR qualification.  The 
project was directly related to one of the Council’s overall priorities and was 
achieving a major impact for a very small investment, and the project was now 
receiving referrals from the Job Centre.  

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

40 Community Safety in the Dearne (Dac.14.05.2018/4) 

The Area Council Manager introduced a report on the position on community safety 
issues in the Dearne for the period 1st January to 31st March, 2018.  Members noted 
in particular the multi-agency action day in the Gosling Gate Road area to deal with a 
number of complaints.  

The meeting noted continuing problems with cyclists in the area and that actions 
previously agreed did not appear to be having an impact.  The need for a further 
meeting with Police representatives to discuss this issue was agreed.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

41 Dearne Area Council Financial Position and Progress of Projects 
(Dac.14.05.2018/5) 

The Area Manager introduced a report giving an updated financial position for all 
Dearne Area Council expenditure during 2017/18 and the anticipated position for 
2018/19 on the basis of current plans.  It was noted that this position did not take 
account of any income that might be forthcoming from fixed penalty notices.

Progress was being made in developing the 2018/19 commissioning intentions in 
advance of the meeting scheduled for 11th June.  It was hoped that funding could be 
secured for a research project into reasons for residents not attending GP and 
hospital appointments, which might form the basis of a university student research 
project in the event that the funding bid was unsuccessful.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

42 Dearne Area Council Social Isolation Project (Dac.14.05.2018/6) 

The Area Council Manager introduced a report giving an update on developing the 
project to tackle social isolation in the Dearne, in particular to provide evidence for a 
model for a self-sustaining programme of support.  The meeting noted that external 
funding had been secured for the project, but the Area Council needed to consider 
providing match funding of £2,000 in each of 2018/19 and 2019/20.  A draft 
specification for the project had been developed and would be circulated to Members 
for consideration and comment.

Page 174



3

The meeting noted the intentions of Age UK to take forward initiatives in the Dearne, 
with social isolation being a particular focus.  The meeting noted that there will be an 
opportunity for Age UK to tender to undertake this work or undertake complementary 
activity in due course.  

RESOLVED:-

(i) that Members submit comments to the Area Council Manager on the draft 
specification for a social isolation project in the Dearne and the Service 
Director Stronger, Safer and Healthier Communities be authorised to approve 
the final specification in consultation with the Chair of the Area Councils; and

(ii) that match funding of £2,000 in 2018/19 and 2019/20 be contributed to the 
project from the Dearne Development Fund, subject to completion of the usual 
application process.

43 Notes from the Dearne Approach Steering Group held on 15th January, 2018 
(Dac.14.05.2018/7) 

Members considered the notes from the meeting held on 15th January, 2018.

RESOLVED that the notes from the Dearne Approach Steering Group be received.

44 Notes from the Dearne Ward Alliance held on 1st February, and 15th March, 
2018 (Dac.14.05.2018/8) 

The meeting received the notes from the Dearne Ward Alliance meetings held on 
1st February and 15th March, 2018.

RESOLVED that notes from the respective Ward Alliances be received.

45 Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (Dac.14.05.2018/9) 

The Area Council Manager introduced a report on the use of the Ward Alliance 
funding allocations during 2017/18.  The meeting noted that the bulky rubbish project 
was now being administered through Berneslai Homes and the private sector 
housing project where specific issues were identified.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 175



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: North Area Council
DATE: Monday, 14 May 2018
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Meeting Room 1, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Leech (Chair), Cave, Charlesworth, 
Cherryholme, Lofts, Miller, Spence and Tattersall 

47 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest.

48 Minutes of the North Area Council meeting held on 19th March 2018 

The Area Council received the minutes of the previous meeting held on 19th March 
2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the North Area Council meeting held on 19th March 
2018 be approved as a true and correct record.

49 Youth Participation Worker - recruitment update 

The Area Council Manager introduced this report and provided the Area Council with 
an update on the youth participation support worker post.

It was explained that two part time (18 hours) workers at Grade 4 would be 
preferable to 1 x Grade 6 post, as this would enable more flexible working.  The 
postholders would be based  in Wombwell but would spend as much time as possible 
in the North Area, enhancing  existing links with schools, the voluntary and 
community sector and ward alliances and also incorporating work with Area Councils 
and encouraging participation in social action activities.  

The two posts will be advertised on Friday with a two week turnaround.  Members 
were informed that the current Borough wide offer was very limited due to recent 
budget cuts and that the North Area would be in an enviable position as they would 
have dedicated officers on the ground.  Members were asked to identify possible 
opportunities in their area.  Once the vacancies are filled, Members will be given 
contact details to help them to  work constructively with young people.  They will be 
invited to meetings to make links but will not be attending every meeting as it is 
important that they spend as much time as possible working on the ground.

RESOLVED that Members note the update regarding the proposed recruitment to 
the post(s) of Young People’s Participation Worker.

50 Commissioning, Project Development and Finance update 

Page 177

Item 29



2

The Area Council Manager introduced this item and provided the Area Council with a 
financial position and forecast for expenditure based on the projects that have been 
proposed.

The report gave a snapshot of each of the current project, which are varied and 
diverse and include CAB & DIAL, Clean and Green and Environmental Enforcement 
(which has now come to an end).  A discussion took place regarding the valuable 
work of the Housing Migration Officer, who has already resolved a number of 
longstanding problems.

A Member queried liaison arrangements and what would happen if someone moved 
from one area to another.  It was explained that information is shared and checks 
made across both the Police and council tax systems to trace individuals.    

Members discussed the difficulty in getting volunteers to work with Clean and Green 
during the week and in sparsely populated areas.  Some Members felt that there is a 
mismatch between volunteer availability and Twiggs’ work schedules.  It was 
highlighted that Twiggs need to be involved when more specialised support is 
needed – it was never intended that they carried out ongoing maintenance work.  

RESOLVED that 

i. The North Area note the existing budget position and forecast for the funding 
commitments.  

ii. The North Area Council note that contrary to previous information the North 
Area received a budget of £400,000 for the period 2017/18.

iii. Members note the update regarding the proposed recruitment of a Young 
Peoples Participation Worker.

iv. Members note the update on the Social Inclusion and Fuel Poverty Reduction 
project proposal.   

v. Members note the current financial position.

vi. Members note that forecasted annual budget commitments based on the 
decisions that were made at the September and November 2017 meetings. 

51 Social Isolation and Cold Homes Prevention - Specification for approval 

The Area Council Manager provided the Area Council with confirmation that Barnsley 
Council have submitted a bid for the Warm Homes Fund Round Two and made 
Members aware that this will provide the North Area with an opportunity to develop a 
reducing social isolation project with a housing and energy focus piloted in the North 
Area.  The Darton East Ward has a large population of older people  and a higher 
than average excess winter death index (the second highest in the Borough).  The 
project will be advertised on Yortender shortly.    

RESOLVED that

Page 178



3

Members agreed to increase the budget for the project to £85,000 if ‘soft’ market 
testing indicates that this is appropriate and necessary.

52 Performance Management Report - Commissioned Projects and Grant 
Summary 

The Area Council Manager provided Members with a comprehensive North Area 
Council Performance report for the period January to March 2018 (2017/18 Quarter 
4), giving an aggregate picture of how all the North Area Council contracted services 
contribute to the achievement of each of the North Area Council’s agreed outcomes 
and social value objectives.  

Members were also provided with a summary performance management report for 
each of the contracted services, together with RAG ratings and updated information 
from all North Area Council Providers.  Full performance reports for each project are 
available on request.

Members were informed that the Kingdom security contract has now come to an end.  
It was reported that equipment had now been returned to the Community Safety 
Service and all vehicles returned to the leasing company.  The CAB/Dial project has 
helped to manage £116,776 of debts for clients in this quarter and has generated an 
estimated £650,291 in benefit gains.

RESOLVED that Members note the contents of the Performance Management 
Report.

53 Report of the Ward Alliance Fund 

Members were provided with an update report regarding the North Area Council’s 
financial position and the Ward Alliance budget for each ward for the 2018/19 
financial year, including carried forward amounts from the 2017/18 allocation and any 
devolved budgets from the Area Council where available.   Many of the current 
projects are seasonal-related, such as hanging baskets and bedding plants.

RESOLVED that each Ward in the North Area Council area prioritises the efficient 
expenditure of the Ward Alliance Funds in line with the guidance on spend.

54 Notes from the Area's Ward Alliances 

The meeting received the notes from the Darton East Ward Alliance held on 13th 
March and 10th April 2018; Darton West Ward Alliance held on 5th March and 9th 
April; Old Town Ward Alliance held on 7th March and 11th April; and St Helen's Ward 
Alliance held on 18th January and 15th March 2018.

Darton East – as printed.

Darton West – as printed.  

Old Town – as printed

Page 179



4

St Helen’s – as printed.  Simon Dobby, Head of Health and Safety and Emergency 
Planning attended the meeting in January to discuss flooding.   

RESOLVED that the notes of the respective Ward Alliances be noted.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 180



MEETING: North East Area Council
DATE: Thursday, 31 May 2018
TIME: 2.00 pm
VENUE: Meeting Room 1, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Hayward (Chair), Cheetham, Clements, 
Ennis, S. Green, Hampson, Houghton CBE, 
Richardson, Sheard and C. Wraith MBE 

1 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests.

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting of North East Area Council held on 29th March 
2018 

The meeting considered the minutes from the previous meeting of the North East 
Area Council held on 29th March 2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the North East Area Council held on 29th March 2018 
be approved as a true and correct record.

3 Notes of the Following Ward Alliances with Feedback from each Ward Alliance 
Chair 

The meeting received notes from the Cudworth, Monk Bretton, North East and 
Royston Ward Alliances held recently.  The following updates were noted:-

Cudworth – The Academic Achievement awards were held on Tuesday 12th June 
and were very successful.  The Health Fayre is coming up and summer activities 
agreed.  There have been reports of wildlife shooting around the Carlton Marsh area.  
Permissions for this are unclear but there are concerns that this presents a danger to 
life. 

Monk Bretton – Funding for the Burton Grange breakfast club, Christmas events, the 
working fund and hanging baskets has been agreed.  The pantomime will be held on 
1st December at Priory campus and the Health Fayre will take place on 21st 
September.  Dementia training will take place on 8th June.  Memorial planting is 
taking place at the moment in readiness for the Yorkshire in Bloom competition.  
Summer activities, including ‘ Brass on the Grass’  in August have also been agreed.

North East – It was reported that Sian Stanhope, Project Manager for the Principal 
Towns Programme, had attended a recent meeting.  Recent funding projects agreed 
included the Grimethorpe Youth Band and the Little Houghton TARA for 
entertainment.  An entry has been submitted to the Yorkshire in Bloom competition.  
A recent litter pick was well attended, with 35 sacks of rubbish being collected.    

Page 181

Item 30



2

Royston – A new member has been welcomed to the Ward Alliance.  It was reported 
that Grimethorpe colliery band is coming to Royston.  The litter pick which was 
postponed due to snow earlier in the year has now taken place, with over 40 bags of 
litter collected.  The Gala will take place in the park on 30th June.  National grid have 
now repaired the damage to the safe route to school.  The bridge over the canal has 
now been repaired.  A final site visit will take place before the site is vacated.  
Concern was expressed around the lack of coordination between street works and 
highways authorities, which had led to roads being blocked, affecting bus services.  
Church Hill was scheduled for closer for 2.5 hours but lasted 10 days.  There have 
been a number of firearms incidents involving wildlife shooting which have caused 
concern, including the dumping of foxes and rabbits.  A police report is awaited.  

RESOLVED that the notes from the Ward Alliances be received.

4 North East Area Council Project Performance Report 

The Area Council Manager introduced this item  and provided Members with a 
detailed update report regarding performance of the North East Area Council's 
commissioned projects together with a summary performance management report 
and individual case studies for each service.  Key points to note include:

 The interviews for the Community Development Officer post have taken place, 
and there were 17 applications received.  A preferred candidate has been 
identified and references requested.  It is hoped that the successful candidate 
will be able t start in post at the end of July.

 Environmental Enforcement Commission – Officers concentrate their patrols 
around intelligence led information from the tasking process and also from 
complaints on the street, and from the community at large.

 Dog fouling problems are being experienced across all wards, with dog fouling 
operations ongoing in the Brierley area.   Members felt there is a need to 
educate children and young children about responsible dog ownership.

 Parking operations continue in Cudworth, mainly around the Robert Street car 
park, Carlton Street and Bank Street.

 The Fixed Penalty Notice for littering increased to £100 from 1st April 2018.  
Hot spot areas have included the Trans Penning Trail in Monk Bretton and 
Lundwood and Midland Road, Royston.

 23 juveniles within the North East area, together with juveniles from other 
areas, completed community litter picks in February at Stairfoot.  

 Stop Smoking Initiative – A position report was submitted with regard to the 
new Stop Smoking Initiative, which highlighted that the Stop Smoking Adviser, 
Sarah Sverdloff, is part of the Yorkshire Smoke Free Barnsley core specialist 
team, employed by SWYFT.  Since coming into post on April 25th, Sarah has 
set up 3 clinics and is exploring the possibility of setting up further clinics 
across the area.

Page 182



3

 The CCG have recently introduced a Get Fit First scheme, where if someone 
smokes they will be encouraged to take a smoking cessation course prior to 
surgery.  The expectation is that GPs will refer people into the Yorkshire 
Smokefree Barnsley for support prior to surgery.

 2017-2018 volunteering statistics - 1433 volunteers were engaged across the 
four wards of the North East Area Council, representing a total of 8389 
volunteering hours from 1st April 2017 to 31st March 2018, which at £13.51 an 
hour equates to £113,335.

 Case studies were presented relating to the Brierley Resident Group – 
Onwards and Upwards, the Brierley Spring Fete (March 2018) and the 
Royston Academic Achievement Awards.

RESOLVED that:

(i) Members note the update report.

5 Report on the Use of Area Council Budgets and Ward Alliance Funds 

The North East Area Council Manager introduced this item and updated Members 
regarding the North East Area Council budget and progress in each ward in 
expending the Ward Alliance Fund, in line with priorities.  It was highlighted that  
£16191 of the Area Council budget remains uncommitted.  A Member pointed out 
that community groups should be involved in the delivery of local health checks.  
Another Member felt that health checks should be part of a universal service and not 
a local responsibility.

RESOLVED that:

(i) Members note the current position of the Area Council Devolved Ward 
Budget and Ward Alliance Funds, and

(ii) Each ward prioritises the efficient expenditure of the Ward Alliance 
funds in line with the guidance on spend.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 183



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Penistone Area Council
DATE: Thursday, 7 June 2018
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Council Chamber, Penistone Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Barnard (Chair), David Griffin, Kitching and 
Millner.

1 Declarations of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 

No Members declared an interest in any item on the agenda.

2 Minutes of the Penistone Area Council meeting held on 5th April, 2018  
(PAC.07.06.2018/2) 

The Area Council received the minutes of the previous meeting held on 5th April, 
2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Penistone Area Council meeting held on the 5th 
April, 2018 be approved as a true and correct record.

3 Penistone East and West Ward Alliance held on 5th April, 2018 
(PAC.07.06.2018/3) 

The meeting received the notes from the Penistone East and West Ward Alliance 
held on 5th April, 2018.

With regards to the Tour De Yorkshire, Members gave thanks to all those involved, 
including staff and volunteers.  It was noted that Penistone Town Council had only 
spend half of their allocated £2,000, so £1,000 would be returned to the Ward 
Alliance Fund.

Councillor Millner provided a brief update on the Alehouse Project, which is now 
gathering pace and seeking to become incorporated. The project was considering a 
variety of options regarding premises, but favoured something in the town centre 
which could provide a multi-use facility.

RESOLVED that the notes from the Penistone East and West Ward Alliance held on 
5th April, 2018 be received.

4 Procurement and Financial Update (PAC.07.06.2018/4) 

The Area Council Manager drew attention to the information relating to the service 
supporting isolated and vulnerable older people. Members were reminded of the 
history of the project, starting in January, 2017, with a recommendation to extend this 
for a further year.  The project, delivered by Age UK was due to finish on 14th 
January, 2019. 

Page 185

Item 31



2

Performance of the service to date was satisfactory, however a discussion was 
pertinent due to the time required should a service be procured to deliver post 15th 
January, 2019.

Members were reminded of the recent workshop session, where Age UK presented 
their performance to date, and advised of future options. 

The Area Council Manager highlighted the need for the service as originally procured 
which included the following:- that the Penistone Area has the highest rate of one 
person households aged 65+; that 39% of the population of Penistone East and West 
Wards are known to be aged 60+; the rural nature of the area, and the lack of 
facilities and amenities, particularly in outlying areas.  

Members also noted the aims and objectives of the current service, and how these 
were being delivered through two Social Inclusion Workers with one focused on 
supporting individual service users, carers and volunteers and the other 
concentrating on activities to reach potential service users and development of group 
support.

The service had provided built a map of groups and activities and held a number of 
‘eyes on the ground’ activities such as the Penistone Big Knit and Keeping Penistone 
Warm in order to engage service users.  The service had worked closely with U3A 
and had established 10 new sustainable groups and 217 people attend new groups 
and activities as a result of the service.

733 interventions were made within year one of the contract and individual 
interventions had highlighted the complexities of social isolation.  It was noted that 
year two of the contract would focus more on the outlying area, with sloppy slippers 
events being arranged in a number of villages.

The impact of volunteering was noted, including the 27 Good Neighbours currently in 
place, and volunteer drivers assisting the Community Car Scheme.

Members questioned the awareness of the Community Car Scheme and how this 
was promoted, and it was noted that this had been carefully managed in order 
ensure that there were appropriate numbers of drivers available to meet demand.

With regards to the wider promotion of the service, it was noted that that the Eyes On 
the Ground Events provided part of the promotion, and that the service had regularly 
been featured on Penistone FM.  Social Media had been used, and there had been a 
number of features in Penistone Matters that gets delivered to every household.  In 
addition a number of Parish Newsletters had promoted the service and information 
was available from Penistone Library, which also acted as a base for the staff.

The service had measured loneliness and wellbeing, with 81% of people scoring an 
increase in Wellbeing after 3 months and 63% showing a reduction in loneliness.

Members heard how the project was considered a pioneer and much of the evidence 
and learning was being used elsewhere in the borough.

Those present were made reminded of the current areas of need identified, which 
included developing existing provision such as volunteering through the Good 

Page 186



3

Neighbours Scheme and Community Car Scheme.  Also noted was the need to focus 
on providing a service to men, which were less likely to participate in group activities. 

Further to the work done in year two of the commission, it was acknowledged that 
continued focus on outlying areas needed to be maintained, with Tankersley being 
suggested as one potential ‘hot spot’ for isolation.

Members also heard about the need to focus on physical and mental wellbeing; 
including walking, light exercise and getting people moving.  It was suggested that 
this would also support those living with dementia.  

Noted was the suggestion to work more closely with partners such as Community 
Pharmacy and Social Prescribing to ensure a more coherent service for older people 
in the area.

The Area Council Manager also alluded to the suggestion of Penistone acting as a 
pilot in Barnsley becoming an Age Friendly Town.  It was suggested that this could 
be part of the Principal Towns Programme in Penistone.

The final suggested area of development related to intergenerational work, following 
on from the success that had been seen in this area through Bumping Spaces.  It 
was also acknowledged that this would also help to meet the Area Council’s priorities 
of Health and Wellbeing and Supporting Young People.

After agreeing that need still existed in this area and the momentum that the good 
work already undertaken had acquired needed to be maintained, Members 
considered the options presented within the report, discussing the merits of each.  
Though the option of further commission was discussed in depth, Members felt that a 
number of smaller scale projects from a range of providers had merit, and suggested 
that this would be the preferred way forward, inviting submissions to the Working 
Together Fund.  In addition it was also felt useful to establish a Health and Wellbeing 
network of providers, but that this could be part of one of the submissions.  

The Area Council Manager provided an update with regards to the Working Together 
Fund. Including the initial allocation, and subsequent additions, the Working Together 
Fund had received £202,038 in total to allocate.  Members noted that £33,856 
remained for allocation at the time of the report, but subsequently an application had 
been recommended for approval which would leave £13,856 to allocate.  It was 
suggested the Area Council considers a further allocation to the Working Together 
Fund at its next meeting, together with the likely level of demand likely placed on the 
Ward Alliance Fund.

Members were reminded that the contract for the Clean, Green and Tidy service, 
provided by Twiggs Grounds Maintenance had commenced in November, 2017 and 
had been invited to present a report on progress later in the agenda.  This 
information would help to inform a discussion regarding the continuation of the 
service at the next meeting of the Area Council.

An overview of the current financial situation was then provided, and it was noted that 
£153,157 remained to allocate within the current financial year.

RESOLVED:- 

Page 187



4

(i) That a proposal to invite bids to the Working Together Fund to  address the 
needs of isolated and vulnerable older people be developed for consideration 
at the next meeting of the Area Council;

(ii) That the next meeting of the Area Council considers the financial position of 
the Ward Alliance Fund and Working Together Fund, and the anticipated 
demand within the current financial year;

(iii) That the current financial position of the Area Council be noted.

5 Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (PAC.07.06.2018/5) 

The item was introduced by the Area Council Manager.  At the time of publishing the 
report £5,927.81 remained for allocation, however since this date £1,000 from 
Penistone Town Council had been returned and £1,000 from Underneath the Stars 
had also been returned, giving a balance of £7,927.81.

Members noted that the Ward Alliance had also recently met and recommended 
further applications for approval, which resulted in a balance of £2,467.81 remaining.  
It was suggested that Members should formally consider allocating further finance to 
the Ward Alliance at the next meeting of the Area Council.

The review of Ward Alliance arrangements currently taking place was noted and 
Members discussed a number of ways in which the consideration of Ward Alliance 
Fund applications could be improved, and the impact of the fund increased.  These 
included working with groups to consider grant finance from elsewhere and moving to 
quarterly meetings.  It was agreed that the Area Council Manager would feed these 
into the review.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

6 Performance Report Q4 (PAC.07.06.2018/6) 

The Area Council Manager introduced the item, making Members aware that data 
referred to the end of the financial year 2017/18.  A number of projects had come to a 
conclusion at the end of the financial year, including Bumping Spaces, Penistone 
Round Table, Penistone Youth Project, Cycle Penistone and the TPT Volunteers.  It 
was also noted the South Pennine Community Transport CIC pilot had finished, 
however a subsequent bid for continuation had been recommended for approval.

Part A of the report provided an overview of performance across all of the investment 
made by the Area Council.  Attention was due to the significantly increased numbers 
of adults and young people engaged in volunteering, and of community groups 
supported.  These increases were attributed to the performance of the contract with 
Twiggs Grounds Maintenance.

The attention of Members was drawn to the numbers of people receiving training, 
which now stood at 369, an increase from 188 in the previous quarter.  This was due 
to the informal training, including the use of equipment, provided to all volunteers 
when engaging with Twiggs Grounds Maintenance. 

Members discussed the performance of DIAL.  Numbers of clients being seen had 
dropped slightly since January, though this was thought to be due to excessively high 
demand in the early New Year due to sessions cancelled before Christmas.   

Page 188



5

Demand was now being more effectively managed, and therefore staff were not keen 
on implementing an appointment system at the moment. 

Attention was drawn to the exceptional performance of Cycle Penistone, which now 
only required 10% grant funding.  The project worked with Raleigh Cycles to sell ex-
demonstrator bikes, as well as recycling bikes in partnership with Barnsley Council. 
Members praised its success.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

7 Twiggs 6 month update (PAC.07.06.2018/7) 

John Twigg and colleagues were welcomed to the meeting to provide an update on 
the work Twiggs Grounds Maintenance were undertaking in the area on behalf of the 
Area Council.

This included improvements in the following areas:-
 Cawthorne – including at Cannon Hall, at Cawthorne Pre-School and in local 

lay-bys;
 Hoylandswaine – including at the Lord Nelson Pub and Rose and Crown Pub;
 Wortley – to erect Christmas trees, improve footpaths and clear drainage 

preventing standing water;
 Silkstone – with Silkstone Common Primary School and the Huskar 180 

Group;
 Tankersley – working with local businesses including McDonalds to tidy the 

area;
 Green Moor – creating wildlife habitats, clearing pathways/steps, landscaping, 

seeding and trimming;
 Oxspring – Cleaning/Picnic session at Old Bower Bridge, litter picks at Castle 

Dam;
 Ingbirchwork – at the nature reserve entrance;
 Langsett – working with local businesses to tidy the area;
 Thurlstone – with Daisy Chains School building habitats, and 

Thurlstone/Millhouse Green Women’s Institution to clear litter from the main 
road;

 Millhouse Green – working with volunteers at Royd Community Garden;
 Water Meadows Park – clearing steps/pathways/seating, and building 

habitats;
 Thurgoland – working with the school to tidy footpaths and trim trees/hedges 

and with volunteers to improve foodpaths;
 Penistone Town Centre – working with staff at Tesco, History Archive Group, 

Springvale Community Garden, and Penistone FM.  Work with St John’s 
Primary prior to the Tour De Yorkshire to clear weeds and litter from the street.

Members noted the schedule of regular activities throughout the area, and the future 
developments planned for the service.  The latter included working with groups to 
ensure their sustainability, working to create more volunteering opportunities and 
promoting the service.

RESOLVED that the feedback be noted and thanks be given to Twiggs Grounds 
Maintenance for the work undertaken on behalf of the Area Council.

Page 189



6

8 Bumping Spaces (PAC.07.06.2018/8) 

Karen Senior, colleagues and service users were welcomed to the meeting to 
provide an overview of the work of Bumping Spaces.

Approximately two years ago the project started with the aim to create peer support 
to vulnerable people in the Penistone area. Pendon House was identified as a venue 
as there was a need to make better use of their lounge.  The project brought people 
together, with a mix of old and new people attending, both residents of Pendon 
House and from the wider area.  

Tesco had supported the project with food, which has been used to provide lunches 
as well as distributed to other people who find it difficult to leave the house, with peer 
support volunteers involved throughout.

On a weekly basis 60 people are involved, with the luncheon club at Pendon House, 
a breakfast club and a meet/chat outing to Generation Café.  In bringing people 
together mutual peer support networks had been created, and other groups had been 
created as a result.

Events such as the Royal Wedding and Christmas Lunches were very well attended, 
but differed from traditional lunch clubs as all involved contributed, preparing the 
event together.

Members heard how Bumping Spaces was inclusive and spanned different walks of 
life, different generations, and individuals required different levels of support.  Often 
support was given without people realising.

Connections had been made with Age UK and other agencies, and the project 
offered an informal way for organisations to engage with individuals.

Currently many of the existing events only required minimal support in order to run 
effectively, but to take the project forward discussions were taking place with 
colleagues at Tesco, for future support. As a group they were involved in the 
Community Alehouse project, which would be run to generate funding to support 
community needs.

Service users and Members praised the work of the project and its success, with 
many other organisations and areas looking towards Bumping Spaces as a 
successful model for peer support.

RESOLVED that thanks be given to all those in attendance, and their work to make 
Bumping Spaces such a success.

9 Principal Towns Programme - Update (PAC.07.06.2018/9) 

The Area Council Manager introduced the item, and made Members aware of the 
reasons for the recent delays.  The consultants for the programme had just been 
appointed, and would be mid operational by mid June.

Page 190



7

The Area Council Manager made members aware that they would work with the 
Principal Town Project Manager and the consultant to engage networks in Penistone 
to build up the feasibility plan.  It was suggested that individual consultations could 
take place with relevant partners to build up the plan which would then feed in the 
Principal Towns Board in September, with Councillors being briefed through the Area 
Council prior to this.

RESOLVED that the update be received.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: South Area Council
DATE: Friday, 15 June 2018
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Meeting Room, The Hoyland Centre

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Stowe (Chair), Franklin, Daniel Griffin, 
Markham, Shepherd, Sumner and R. Wraith.

1 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

Councillors Franklin and Shepherd each declared a non-pecuniary interest in items 6 
and 7 in relation to their positions as directors of Forge Community Partnership.

2 Minutes of the Meeting of South Area Council held on 27th April, 2018 
(Sac.15.06.2018/2) 

The meeting considered the minutes of South Area Council held on 27th April, 2018.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the South Area Council held on 27th April, 2018 be 
approved as a true and correct record.

3 Notes of the Ward Alliances (Sac.15.06.2018/3) 

The meeting received the notes from the following Ward Alliances:- Hoyland Milton 
and Rockingham held on 9th May, 2018; and Darfield Ward Alliance held on 17th May, 
2018.

RESOLVED that the notes from the Ward Alliances be received.

4 Report on the Use of Ward Alliance Funds (Sac.15.06.2018/4) 

The report was introduced by the Community Development Officer.  It was noted that 
Darfield had an opening balance of £11,225.47 and from this £11,100.47 remained.  
However it was acknowledged that there were a small number of additional 
applications currently in the process of being approved.

Hoyland Milton and Rockingham had not made any allocations and therefore the 
opening budget of £20,086.25 remained.

Wombwell had utilised £400 of its £11,308.04 budget to leave £10,908.04 for 
allocation.

RESOLVED that the report be received.

5 Performance Update (Sac.15.06.2018/5) 

The Community Development Officer made Members aware that quarterly monitoring 
information would be received in July and therefore a report would be submitted to 
the next meeting of the Area Council.

Page 193

Item 32



2

RESOLVED that the next meeting of the Area Council receives a report detailing 
performance in quarter 1.

6 Young People's Social Media Project (Sac.15.06.2018/6) 

Neil Spencer and John Lang from Forge Community Partnership were welcomed to 
the meeting.  Members were referred to the Youth Aware Focus Group report 
2017/18, and reminded how this work followed on from the Youth Mapping Exercise 
in 2016.

The report and presentation detailed the findings of research into ways of reaching 
and communicating information to young people in the local area.

Members were made aware of the methodology used, which included the Youth 
Partnership establishing a focus group to identify the best approach for the study.

The project used a 10 question survey, which was agreed to be circulated through 
the school in January, 2018.

804 responses were received, which was a remarkable return.  Many answered that 
they communicate using social media, with SnapChat being the most popular form of 
sharing information, but with YouTube being very popular. Facebook was used, but 
less so that other mediums

Members discussed the merits of social media and the possibility of establishing a 
presence led by young people in the area.  It was suggested that, due to potential 
issues such as bullying or harassment via social media, this would need to be 
overseen by an adult third party.

It was suggested that further work needed to be undertaken in order to develop this 
as a project further, and that this be discussed at a future meeting of the Area 
Council.

RESOLVED 
(i) that thanks be given to representatives of Forge Community Partnership;
(ii) That the detail of a potential Social Media Project be developed for 

consideration at a future meeting of the Area Council.

7 Procurement and Financial Update (Sac.15.06.2018/7) 

The Community Development Worker reminded Members of the workshop recently 
held to consider the contracts currently held by the Area Council, with a view to 
discussing the commissioning intentions for 2019/20 an later.

It was noted that the contracts for the Tidy Team, Environmental Enforcement and 
Private Sector Housing SLA would finish at the end of the financial year, with the 
Advice Service contract finishing at the end of June, 2019.

Members were given an overview of the current financial situation, noting that 
£46,434 remained for allocation within the current year, and £381.250 in 2019/20. 

Page 194



3

Those present noted the outcome of the workshop held on 25th May, 2018.  With 
reference to the Tidy Team, a refocusing on upskilling groups and residents with an 
increased educational remit was suggested, as was a priority around local 
employment and apprenticeships.

Members discussed the current service level agreement for the Private Sector 
Housing service, and it was suggested that this be extended for a further 12 months.

In relation to Environmental Enforcement it was suggested that the service refocuses 
on parking only, centred around the shopping centres of Wombwell and Hoyland, 
including in the evening and at weekends.

Members supported recommissioning the advice service, however it was suggested 
that the new service reflects the need to support the most in need with others 
encouraged to access telephone and online support.

Members discussed current levels of demand seen by the advice service and were 
reminded of discussion at the previous meeting.  The preferred option to address 
demand was for a welfare rights worker to deliver an extra service per month in both 
Hoyland and Wombwell in the evenings in order to assist clients with pre-booked 
appointments at a cost of £4,572

Members noted the suggested project ideas to be developed which included the 
following:- youth life skills; youth voice and influence activity, including social media; 
early help support projects; and the winter wellbeing event. These were in addition to 
the proposed focus on social isolation discussed previously by the Area Council.

With regards to the organisation of the winter wellbeing event, a proposal was 
received for the Area Council to allocate up to £2,000 in order to fund winter packs, 
room hire, promotional materials, food, and transport.  Members were made aware of 
an organisation who had assisted with a sloppy slippers event in Darfield who had 
been funded for such work, and it was suggested that they be engaged if possible to 
reduce duplication and costs, to maximise impact.

RESOLVED:-
(i) That the current financial position of the Area Council for 2018/19 and 2019/20 

be noted; 
(ii) That the Private Sector Housing Service SLA be extended for a further year at a 

cost of £32,580;
(iii) That £4,572 be allocated to fund a Welfare Rights Worker to address demand 

for the Advice Service in order to deliver an extra service per month in both 
Hoyland and Wombwell in the evenings to assist clients with pre-booked 
appointments;

(iv) That tender documentation be developed for a refocused Tidy Team and 
Environmental Enforcement Service be developed for consideration by the Area 
Council at a future meeting;

(v) That up to £2,000 be approved to support organisational costs for the Winter 
Wellbeing Event.

(vi) That the areas proposed for future project development be supported.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 195



This page is intentionally left blank



1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

This matter is not a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has not been 
included in the relevant Forward Plan 

REPORT OF THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CORE SERVICES

MINOR AMENDMENTS TO THE COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To propose certain minor amendments to the Council’s Constitution.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That it be recommended to the Council that the amendments to the 
Constitution contained in section 4 of the report be approved.

3. INTRODUCTION

3.1 The Council’s Constitution is subject to periodic review as part of the proper 
governance of the Authority.  A number of proposed changes have been identified 
arising from recent review and related internal audit exercises.

4. PROPOSAL AND JUSTIFICATION

4.1 Ethical Standards Complaints

       The Constitution currently provides that a three member Standards Panel, 
appointed from amongst the members of the Appeals and Standards Regulatory 
Board, should comprise a majority of members from a political group other than that 
of the member who is the subject of the complaint.  These provisions were drafted 
as part of the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Localism Act 2011 
which required the Council to set up its own procedures to deal with ethical 
standards complaints.  This followed the abolition of the Standards Board for 
England which dealt with complaints nationally.  

The political composition of the Council at the time was significantly different.  Now 
that the majority group is substantially larger than any of the opposition groups it is 
no longer practicable to continue with the current provision.  

It is proposed that the Constitution is amended to provide that at least one 
member of a Standards Panel should be from a political group other than that 
of the member who is the subject of the complaint.

Page 197

Item 34



2

4.2 Approval of Scrutiny Work Programme

The annual work programme is drawn up by the members of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee following which there is consultation with the Leader of the 
Council and the work programme is then considered by the Cabinet.  The 
Constitution as worded provides that the Cabinet gives approval to the programme. 

Given that the Scrutiny process is to hold the Executive to account it would 
be more appropriate for the Constitution to say that the Cabinet should note 
the relevant Programme.

4.3 Approval of Selective Voluntary Early Retirement (SVER) and related discretions 
under the Local Government Pension Scheme

There has been an internal review of the processes relating to decisions taken 
under the Council’s powers under the Local Government Pension Scheme in the 
context of SVER.  The current officer delegation to approve relevant costs up to 
£250,000 would benefit from being drafted more clearly than present.  The current 
drafting is implicit that the power to approve restructurings includes the power to 
approve the related cost of consequential decisions made with regard to the 
exercise of powers under the Local Government Pension Scheme in relation to 
access to pension benefits.

It is proposed that the delegation is redrafted to make more specific provision 
about the exercise of powers in relation to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme.

The following amendment to the relevant officer delegation is proposed:

The Service Director, Human Resources and Business Support is authorised to:

i) approve restructurings resulting in changes to the grades, duties and numbers of 
posts or staff where the cost in any one year does not exceed £250,000 and the 
sum(s) can be contained within the cash limited budget for the service concerned 
for current and future years on receipt of a report from the Executive Director or 
Service Director in question

 
ii) approve, in consultation with the Cabinet Spokesperson for Corporate Services, 
the incurring of costs arising to the Council in relation to Selective Voluntary Early 
retirement or retirement in the efficiency of the service or the exercise of the 
Council’s discretionary powers under the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2014 in accordance with the relevant policies of the Council where the 
cost in respect of any particular business case does not exceed £250,000 

4.4 Instituting legal proceedings:

The current delegation makes reference to the need for any legal proceedings to be 
instituted by the Executive Director for Core Services in their capacity as Solicitor to 
the Council on instruction from the relevant Service Director. This wording is 
arguably more suited for a private solicitor client relationship than the nature of the 
professional dialogue which takes place within a local authority where a decision is 
taken to institute legal proceedings.

Page 198



3

It is proposed that the wording be amended to provide for legal proceedings 
to be commenced by the Executive Director for Core Services in consultation 
with the relevant Service Director.

This more reflects the nature of the dialogue which takes place within a One 
Council context.

5. RECOMMENDATION

5.1 That the proposed recommendations to the Council be recommended to full Council 
for approval.

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1 Constitution of Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council, published on the Council 
website.

If you would like to inspect background papers for this report, please email 
governance@barnsley.gov.uk so that appropriate arrangements can be made

Report author: Andrew Frosdick, Executive Director Core Services

Page 199

https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13273
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13273
mailto:governance@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

This matter is not a Key Decision within the Council’s definition and has not been 
included in the relevant Forward Plan

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, CORE SERVICES

CABINET ON 2 JULY 2018

COUNCIL NOMINATIONS TO THE BERNESLAI HOMES BOARD

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 Two vacancies have arisen for a Council nomination to the Board of Berneslai 
Homes, due to:
- one Council Board Member retiring as a Councillor at the recent local elections;
- the upcoming expiration of the three-year term of office for an existing 

Councillor Board Member.

2. Recommendation

2.1 To approve the nomination two Councillors to the Berneslai Homes Board. 
The two Councillors who are recommended for appointment will be reported 
at the meeting.

3. Introduction

3.1 In accordance with the Berneslai Homes Memorandum of Articles and Association 
the Council has three Member representatives on the Berneslai Homes Board.  Our 
representatives were Councillors Makinson, Pourali and Unsworth.

3.2 However, Councillor Unsworth retired as a Member at the recent local elections and 
Councillor Pourali’s three-year term of office is due to expire on 30th July 2018. The 
Council was advised of the vacancy and nominations were sought from all 
Councillors.

3.3 It is a requirement of the Articles and Association that all potential Board Members 
must undergo a “threshold interview” to ensure they meet the essential criteria and 
have the skills set required to undertake the role of a non executive director.  Once 
applicants have passed the threshold the Council is then able to consider its 
appointment.

3.4 Following the Council’s request for nominations Berneslai Homes received three 
applications. The threshold interview will take place on Monday, 25th June. The 
outcomes of these interviews will be reported orally to the meeting on 2nd July, and 
the Councillors who score the highest at the interview and meet the minimum 
threshold will be recommended as the Council’s nominees to the Board.

3.5 Those Councillors nominated to the Board would commence in their roles with 
immediate effect.

Page 201

Item 35



2

4. Consideration of Alternative Approaches

4.1 There are no alternative approaches for consideration as it is a requirement of the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association that the Board has a balance of 
representatives from Independent members, Council nominees and Tenants 
representatives.  The Memorandum and Articles of Association were agreed by the 
Council and it has determined how an appropriate balance of member 
representation to the Berneslai Homes Board should be maintained.

5. Proposal and Justification

5.1 The agreed process for the nomination of Council representatives to the Board of 
Berneslai Homes has been followed.  Following the notification to the Council that 
Council member vacancies had arisen, three applications for the position were 
received.  The threshold interviews will be conducted, as required, and the 
applicants with the highest scores who meet the essential criteria will be reported at 
the meeting, to be approved as the nominations from the Council to the Berneslai 
Homes Board.

6. Delivering Sustainable Community Strategy Ambitions and Local Area 
Agreement Outcomes

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7. Long Term Sustainability of the Proposal

7.1 There are no implications arising from this report.

8. Impact on Local People

8.1 There are no implications arising from this report.

9. Compatibility with European Convention on Human Rights

9.1 This report is fully compatible with the Human Rights Act.

10. Promoting Equality and Diversity and Social Inclusion

10.1 There are no implications arising from this report.

11. Reduction of Crime and Disorder

11.1 In investigating the options set out in this report, the Council’s duties under Section 
17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 have been considered.

12. Conservation of Biodiversity

12.1 There are no implications arising from this report.

13. Risk Management Issues, including Health and Safety

13.1 There are no implications arising from this report.

Page 202



3

14. Financial Implications

14.1 There are no new financial implications arising from this report.

15. Employee Implications

15.1 There are no implications arising from this report.

16. Glossary

16.1 None.

17. List of Appendices

17.1 None.

18. Background Papers

18.1 Berneslai Homes Memorandum and Articles of Association, as amended December 
2012.

Officer Contact: Chris Braithwaite     Telephone No:  01226 773425     Date: June, 2018

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank



1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
CORE SERVICES

REGISTRATIONS OF MEMBERS INTERESTS/CODE OF CONDUCT – RESPONSE TO 
AUDIT REPORT

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 An Internal Audit Review of the arrangements for the Registration of Member and 
Officer Interests was undertaken during the Summer/Autumn 2017.  This report 
proposes revisions to the Member Code of Conduct and the associated for the 
Registration of Members’ Interests in response to the review.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the recommendations arising from the Internal Audit review of the 
Registration of Member Interests be noted;

2.2 That the revised Member Code of Conduct, amended in the light of the review 
as outlined in section 4 of the report and attached at Appendix 1, be 
approved;

2.3 That forms for the Registration of Gifts and Hospitality and for the Declaration 
of Relationships, as set out at Appendices 2 and 3 respectively, be approved.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The Ethical Standards arrangements for Members changed significantly as a result 
of the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.  This places a duty on Councils to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct.  Councils are also required to 
establish a Code of Conduct setting out behaviours expected of Members to meet 
these standards, in line with Nolan principles.  The Act maintains the requirement 
for Members to complete Registration of Interests.  Councils can determine what 
interests should be registered, subject to the inclusion of  “disclosable pecuniary 
interests” defined in the Act.  The Act also introduced a new system for the 
investigation of complaints made against Members said to have broken the Code of 
Conduct.  This Council adopted a new Code of Conduct and other arrangements at 
its meeting on 5th July 2012.

2.2 On 4th June 2015, the Council approved an update to the Code of Conduct, to 
incorporate the Vision for Future Council, together with associated Values and 
Behaviours.  The Vision, Values and Behaviours were established to guide 
programmes of development for both Elected Members and staff, and detailing 
them in the Member Code of Conduct completed this link.

Page 205

Item 36



2

2.3 During Summer / Autumn 2017, an Internal Audit review of the Registration of 
Interests process was undertaken as part of the agreed 2017/8 work programme.  
The scope of the review was to provide assurance that the current arrangements for 
the declaration and recording of interests, gifts and hospitality amongst Members 
and employees was robust and operating in accordance with an approved 
policy/procedure.  The conclusion of the Audit in respect of Members processes 
was generally positive, although with 10 recommendations for consideration, four of 
which related to Members.  Some of these are in the nature of process issues, but a 
number merit consideration by Elected Members before they are implemented.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE AUDIT REVIEW AND PROPOSED RESPONSES

3.1 The Audit concluded that the process for Members to complete and update their 
Registration of Interest form was generally well observed by Members.  It was noted 
that some Registrations of Interests had not been updated for over a year, although 
it was acknowledged that there was no obligation under the Localism Act 2011 to do 
so unless there were any changes.  However, Members are reminded of the need 
to review their Registration at least annually, and the Audit report recommends that 
this review requirement should be formally reflected in an updated Code of 
Conduct.  It is proposed to amend the Code of Conduct in line with this 
recommendation.

3.2 The Audit review specifically considered issues that arose from the Casey Review 
of Rotherham MBC, where Members had failed to record employment as Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Drivers or a position as a School Governor.  The Review 
concluded that there were no issues in relation to Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Driver employment being recorded on the forms of Barnsley Councillors.  However, 
7 out of 9 Members had not recorded their School Governor appointment on 
Section 2 of the Registration form.  It is therefore proposed to make specific 
reference to the need to include School Governor appointments on the form, also 
asking Members to ensure that the correct name for the school is used.

3.3 As part of the Annual Statement of Accounts process, Elected Members are 
requested to complete a related party transactions questionnaire.  In brief, this 
requires Members to identify any contractual relationship with the Council, any 
monies owed to them by the Council or any monies they owed to the Council for the 
financial year in question.  The Audit has identified the need to secure a better 
response rate to this questionnaire by highlighting its importance to Members and 
by the Service Director Finance working more closely with Members Services to 
encourage a better response.  These arrangements were implemented for the 
questionnaire relating to the year 2017/8, and the signs are that a better return will 
be achieved as a result.

3.4 Arrangements are in hand for Elected Members to notify the Monitoring Officer of 
any gifts or hospitality they have received valued in excess of £100.  The Audit 
review identified that there is no standard form which Elected Members are required 
to complete to give this notification and it is recommended that a form similar to that 
used by Officers for this purpose be adopted.  The Audit report also recommends 
that items notified be collated into a Register, which could then be made public.  
Finally, the Audit report also notes that the amount for Officers is currently £10 
(proposed to increase to £25), and recommends that a similar common amount 

Page 206



3

should be established for Elected Members.  It is proposed to adopt these 
recommendations.

3.5 The Audit report also noted that a number of issues were incorporated into the 
Officer Code of Conduct that did not appear in that for Members and suggested that 
consideration should be given to these being included.  These are:-

 Declaration of Relationships – Whilst the Registration of Interest form identifies 
the need for Members to record disclosable pecuniary interests of their spouse, 
it makes no reference to the declaration of relationships with named Members or 
Officers.  This is a feature of the Officer Code of Conduct, and is intended to 
prevent collusion and/or provide transparency in the way that businesses are 
undertaken.  The Audit report recommended that consideration be given to 
adopting similar requirement for Elected Members.  It is proposed to adopt this 
recommendation, with the information not made public, but be available 
internally to senior officers, in line with arrangements for staff.

 Drugs and alcohol – A zero tolerance policy in respect of the consumption of 
alcohol and drugs during the working day has recently been introduced for 
employees, including when flexed out and likely to return to work.  The only 
exception for alcohol is in respect of attendance at social functions associated 
with work, where employees are expected to show responsible behaviour.  
Failure to observe the policy is a disciplinary matter for staff.  The application of 
the policy to Members is not straightforward, as arguably they are always “on 
duty” and there are different processes to deal with any reputational issues 
associated with irresponsible consumption of alcohol.  It is therefore proposed 
that the Member Code of Conduct, be revised requiring Members to have due 
regard to the Policy and to behave responsibly in alcohol consumption.

 Smoking/vaping at work – Since July 2007, employees, Members or members of 
the public have not been permitted to smoke in or in the immediate vicinity of the 
entrance to any Council workplace or in Council vehicles.  This was extended in 
November 2013 to include vaping.  This has recently been updated to require 
staff to take steps so that they are not identified as a Council employee when on 
smoking/vaping breaks, as well as more accurately recording these breaks.  
This is to deal with any potential reputational issues regarding the promotion of 
“stop smoking” messages by the Council.  Again, the position is slightly different 
for Members, so it is proposed to revise the Member Code of Conduct, requiring 
Members to have due regard to the Policy in relation to the reputational aspects.  

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 The proposed revisions arising from the Audit report are incorporated into the 
updated Member Code of Conduct attached at Appendix 1.  The proposed forms to 
record Gifts and Hospitality and Declarations of Relationships are attached at 
Appendix 2 and Appendix 3 respectively.  Members are requested to approve the 
report to give effect to these revisions.

Page 207



4

5. FINANCIAL AND EMPLOYEE IMPLICATIONS

5.1 There are no financial or employee implications arising directly from this report.  
There will be some revisions to the arrangements for dealing with the Registration 
of Interests, but this should not have a significant impact on workload or costs.

6. LIST OF APPENDICES

 Appendix 1: Proposed revised Members Code of Conduct
 Appendix 2: Proposed form for Registration of Gifts and Hospitality
 Appendix 3: Proposed form for Declaration of Relationships

7. BACKGROUND PAPERS

 Current Members Code of Conduct
 Internal Audit Final Report

If you would like to inspect background papers for this report, please email 
governance@barnsley.gov.uk so that appropriate arrangements can be made

Officer Contact: Ian Turner Date:  16 April 2018

Page 208

mailto:governance@barnsley.gov.uk


5

APPENDIX 1

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

MEMBERS CODE OF CONDUCT

This Code applies to you as a Member or Co-opted Member of Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council when you act in your role as a member or as a member of any other 
body to which you have been appointed by the Council, and it is your responsibility to 
comply with the provisions of this Code. 

 “Meeting“ means any meeting of the Council, its Cabinet or any Scrutiny Committee, 
Regulatory Board, or Panel; 

 “Pecuniary interest“ means any interest which affects your financial position whether 
favourably or adversely; 

 “Non-pecuniary interest" means any interest which affects your personal wellbeing. 

IN EITHER CASE this also includes the position or wellbeing if affected to the best of your 
knowledge of:

 Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or 
management; 

 A member of your family or any other person with whom you are closely acquainted; 

 Any person or body who employs or has appointed you or such persons, any firm in 
which you or they are a partner, or any company of which you or they are directors; 

 Any person or body in whom you or such persons have a beneficial interest in a class 
of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000. 

a) General Conduct

As a Member or Co-opted Member of Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council you are 
committed to behave in a manner which is consistent with the following principles:-

- Selflessness 
- Integrity 
- Objectivity 
- Accountability 
- Openness 
- Honesty 
- Leadership by example.

You should conduct yourself in a manner which is consistent with the Council’s duty to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct of Members. 

Page 209



6

You must act only in the public interest and should never improperly confer an advantage 
or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material benefits for 
yourself, your family, or those with whom you are closely associated. 

You should treat others with respect. 

You should make all decisions on merit and be as open as possible about your decisions, 
and should be prepared to give proper reasons for those decisions. 

You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to any outside individuals 
or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance of your official duties. 

When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the Council you must 
ensure that those resources are not used improperly for political purposes and you must 
have regard to any Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986. 

You should not disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone or information 
which you reasonably believe or ought reasonably to be aware is of a confidential nature:

- UNLESS you have the consent of the person authorised to give it or you are required 
by law to do so or the disclosure is reasonable and in the public interest. 

- AND you have consulted the Executive Director Core Services prior to its release. 

b) Vision and Values – Members Responsibilities and Behaviours

The Council has developed a new vision and values as part of its work on Future Council. 
The vision is supported by a set of values that have been developed to drive change and 
improvement to achieve the Council’s future priorities and outcomes. 

The Council’s new vision:

‘Working Together for a brighter future, a better Barnsley’.

The core values developed are: 

1. Working Together – we work as one to do the best that we can for our customers 
and our communities. 

2. Honesty – we are open, honest, true to our word, reliable and fair. 

3. Excellence – we are committed to quality and value for money and believe only our 
best is good enough. 

4. Pride – we are proud of what we do to make Barnsley a better place. 

A set of defined behaviours for elected members (see Appendix 1) have been developed 
in line with the Council’s core vision and values and in accordance with the principles 
outlined in the Members Code of Conduct which governs the behaviours of members. 

Page 210



7

These behaviours clearly outline what is expected from you in performing your duties 
whether in official meetings or in less formal settings when working with partners, the 
community and officers. 

c) Dignity at Work

The Council is committed to creating and maintaining a positive working environment 
where all elected members and employees are treated with dignity, respect and are free 
from any form of harassment, bullying and victimisation. 

The Dignity at Work Policy sets out guiding principles of workplace behaviour which 
applies to elected members and employees. 

If you would like further information on this policy, please click on the link below:-

Dignity at Work Policy 

d) Code of Conduct for Employees

The ‘Code of Conduct for Employees’ is aimed at ensuring that all employees are aware of 
the standards of behaviour expected of them by the Council. 

The Code covers the protocols for relations between elected members and employees, as 
well as the expected professional standards of behaviour between them. 

If you would like further information on this policy, please click on the link below:-

Code of Conduct for Employees

e) Smoking and Drugs & Alcohol Policies

The Council has established a policy for employees relating to smoking at work and in 
public, having regard to legal position and the role of the Council in promoting healthy 
lifestyles.  In particular, people are expected to remove items that identify them as Council 
employees.

The Council has also established a policy for employees to put in place a safe and healthy 
working environment to ensure that employees are fit to carry out their duties safely and 
effectively in a working environment which is free from alcohol and drugs misuse.  It 
operates a zero tolerance policy in respect to consumption of alcohol and drugs during the 
working day.

Members are in a different contractual position to employees and these policies cannot be 
applied to them directly.  However, Members should consider the potential for reputational 
damage to themselves and the Council if seen smoking in public or under the influence of 
excessive alcohol or drugs when on Council business.  Members are therefore expected to 
have due regard to these policies when on Council business.

If you would like further information on these policies, please click on the links below:-

Smoking

Page 211

https://homel.barnsley.gov.uk/14/_layouts/15/WopiFrame.aspx?sourcedoc=/14/Documents/Dignity%20at%20Work/Dignity%20At%20Work%20Policy.doc&action=default
https://homel.barnsley.gov.uk/14/Documents/Code%20of%20Conduct/Code%20of%20Conduct.docx
https://homel.barnsley.gov.uk/14/Documents/Smoking%20and%20Vaping/Smoking%20and%20Vaping%20at%20Work%20Policy.docx


8

Drugs & Alcohol

f) Disclosure of Interests and Participation

If you have any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any matter at any meeting of the 
Authority or any meeting with officers at which you are present you must disclose that 
interest and give sufficient details of it so that the nature of your interest is clearly 
understood. 

Unless a dispensation has been granted you should not take part in or vote on any item of 
business at any meeting of the Authority where your interest is a “disclosable pecuniary 
interest” which you are required to register in accordance with regulations made by the 
Secretary of State as listed in Schedule 1 to this Code, and you should withdraw from the 
meeting during the consideration of that item. 

g) Registration of Interests 

You must within 28 days of taking office as a Member or Co-opted Member notify the 
Executive Director Core Services for entry on the Council’s Register of Members' Interests 
any “disclosable pecuniary interest” as defined in regulations made by the Secretary of 
State, as listed in Schedule 1 to this Code, where that interest is yours, that of your spouse 
or civil partner, or that of somebody with whom you are living as husband and wife or as if 
you were civil partners.  Your interests and those of your spouse / partner are subject to 
inspection by the public and will be published on the Council’s website. 

In addition you must, within the same time periods, notify the Executive Director Core 
Services of any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest which the Council has decided should 
be included in the Register of Members' Interests as listed in Schedule 2 to this Code. 

You must also notify the Executive Director Core Services within 28 days of any such 
interest arising for the first time.   In addition, you must review your Register of Interests at 
least every 12 months, on the receipt of a request to do so from the Monitoring Officer or 
his staff.

You must register with the Executive Director Core Services within 28 days of receipt 
details of any gifts or hospitality which you have accepted as a member from any person 
or body other than the Authority, the value of which exceeds £25, using the form available 
from Members’ Services.  This information is subject to inspection by the public and will be 
published on the Council’s website.

h) Declaration of Relationships

In order to demonstrate transparency in the way that the business of the Council is 
conducted and to avoid collusion, Members must complete a Declaration of Relationship 
form within 28 days of taking office.  This will identify any close personal or family 
relationships that the Member has with any other Members or Officers of the Council.  The 
form will be made available internally to senior officers, in line with arrangements for 
employees.  Forms for this purpose are available from Members’ Services. 

Page 212

https://homel.barnsley.gov.uk/14/Documents/Drug%20and%20Alcohol%20Testing/Drugs%20and%20Alcohol%20Testing%20Policy.doc?Web=1


9

Schedule 1 – “Disclosable Pecuniary Interests”

a) Employment, office, trade, profession or vocation

o Any employment, office, trade, profession, or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

b) Sponsorship

o Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant 
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses 
incurred by the member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election 
expenses of the member. 

o This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of 
the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992(a). 

c) Contracts

o Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority:-

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; 
and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

d) Land

o Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority.  This 
includes your home.

e) Licences

o Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant 
authority for a month or longer. 

f) Corporate Tenancies

o Any tenancy where (to the member's knowledge):-

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.

g) Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:-

a) that body (to the member's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 
of the relevant authority; and 

Page 213



10

(b) either -

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of that total issued share capital of 
that class.

Schedule 2 - Other Interests required to be registered

Membership of any Body:-

 to which you are appointed or nominated by the Authority. 

 or exercising functions of a public nature, including membership of a School Governing 
Body. 

 or dedicated to charitable purposes. 

 or one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 
(including any political party and trade union). 

 Membership of a private club or society. 

 Membership of any organisation which promotes secrecy amongst its membership. 

Arrangements for handling ethical standards complaints by Barnsley MBC

The Executive Director Core Services as Monitoring Officer should initially consider any 
complaint received and determine whether the complaint warrants any specific 
consideration by members. This will allow trivial or vexatious complaints to be filtered out 
at an early stage. 

The Executive Director Core Services shall consult the Independent Person as 
appropriate.  Where it is considered that the complaint warrants further consideration by 
members the Executive Director Core Services shall arrange for an officer or some other 
person if appropriate to carry out a further investigation and to produce a report of their 
findings. 

The Executive Director Core Services shall inform the member who is the subject of the 
complaint of the nature of the complaint and that it is subject to investigation. That report 
shall be considered by a Panel of three members selected from the membership of the 
Appeals and Awards Regulatory Board by the Executive Director Core Services in 
consultation with the Chair of the Board. 

The Panel shall contain a majority of members who are not members of any Political 
Group on which the elected member who is the subject of the complaint is represented. 

Page 214



11

In the event that the complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, a Parish Council 
representative appointed by the Council shall be invited to attend the Panel on an advisory 
basis but such representative shall not be entitled to vote. 

The Panel shall consider the report and consider whether any further action is appropriate. 

In the event that it is considered that further action may be appropriate the Panel shall 
arrange to hold a hearing at which the elected member who is the subject of the complaint 
shall be entitled to be present and to be heard. 

The views of Independent Person required to be appointed under section 28 of the 
Localism Act 2011 shall be sought as appropriate and where sought shall be taken into 
account before any decision is taken by the Panel with regard to the allegation. 

In the event that the allegation is upheld the Panel shall either:-

 Determine that no further action be taken. 

 Recommend to the Council any further appropriate action be taken in accordance with 
the general powers available to the Authority. 

The Executive Director Core Services shall inform the member of the outcome of the 
complaint. 

Page 215



12

APPENDIX 1

P
age 216



1

MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
REGISTRATION OF RECEIPT OF GIFT OR HOSPITALITY

Member

Date received

Details of gift or 
hospitality received, 
including estimated 
value, if known

Details of donor, 
including name of 
individual and, if on 
behalf of company, 
nature of business

Further information

Signed Date:

To be completed by Executive Director Core Services or representative:

Signed Date:

NOTES

A member must notify the Executive Director Core Services any gift or hospitality they 
have accepted with a value of £25 or more within 28 days of the receipt of the gift or 
hospitality.  Failure to do so would be a breach of the Code of Conduct.

Members may indicate in the “Further Information” section any action taken in respect of 
the gift or hospitality received.

A copy of all forms must be forwarded to the Executive Director Core Services, Barnsley 
Metropolitan Borough Council, Town Hall, Barnsley, S70 2TA.

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank



1

MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
NOTIFICATION TO MONITORING OFFICER OF RELATIONSHIP WITH MEMBERS OR 
OFFICERS OF BARNSLEY MBC

I, (full name)

a Member of Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

GIVE NOTICE of the following relationships with Members or officers of the Council:

Name of relation Business Unit (for 
officers)

Nature of Relationship

Signed: Date:

ADDITIONAL NOTES

A member must within 28 days of becoming aware of any relationship provide written 
notification to the Authority’s Monitoring Officer.  Failure to do so would be a breach of the 
Code of Conduct.   “Relationship” is interpreted to be a close relative, defined as a spouse, 
parent, sibling, son, daughter or common law partner.

A copy of all forms must be forwarded to the Monitoring Officer, Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council, Town Hall, Barnsley, S70 2TA.

RECEIVED

Signed: Date:

Monitoring Officer of Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: Wednesday, 16 May 2018
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Houghton CBE (Chair), Andrews BEM, 
Bruff, Cheetham, Gardiner, Howard and Miller 

Members in Attendance: Councillors Franklin, Frost, Lamb, Pourali and 
Saunders, Daniel Griffin, Johnson, Sheard and 
Tattersall
 

243. Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests.

244. Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions 

The Leader reported that no decisions from the previous meeting held on 18th April, 
2018 had been called in.

245. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 18th April 2018 (Cab.16.5.2018/3) 

The minutes of the meeting held on 18th April, 2018 were taken as read and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

246. Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.16.5.2018/4) 

The Record of Decisions taken by Cabinet Spokespersons under delegated powers 
during the week ending 27th April, 2018 were noted.

247. Petitions received under Standing Order 44 (Cab.16.5.2018/5) 

RESOLVED that the report notifying the receipt of the following petitions be noted 
and the recommended actions for responding to them be endorsed:-

(a) Containing the signatures of 32 signatories, in respect of the volume and 
speed of traffic through Great Houghton and Cllr Higginbottom’s additional request 
for a pedestrian refuge  

Highway Officers met the three Ward Members and Cllr Coates, representing Great 
Houghton Parish Council, on the 11th December 2017 to discuss the request for a 
pedestrian refuge on High Street. The process for prioritisation of the available Road 
Safety funding, using Personal Injury Collision (PIC) data supplied by the Police, was 
explained. Interrogation of the PIC data determined there was no PIC Cluster site or 
Cluster length identified through the village, thus, Highways were unable to fund the 
refuge. Accordingly, it was agreed a budget estimate would be provided to Members 
to enable them to investigate funding from other sources. A budget estimate of 
£14,000 for the works and £2,600 for the associated Traffic Regulation Order to 

Page 221

Item 37



2

prevent indiscriminate parking was provided on the 16th February 2018. Once 
Members have identified a budget this work can be prioritised into the Highways work 
programme.

Deputy Leader

248. Public Health Strategy 2016-18 - Response to the Scrutiny Task and Finish 
Group (Cab.16.5.2018/6) 

RESOLVED that members endorse the responses to each of the recommendations 
made by Public Health and Core Services as outlined in Section 4 of the report.

Core Services Spokesperson

249. Barnsley Council's Asset Management Strategy - Response to the Scrutiny 
Task and Finish Group (Cab.16.5.2018/7) 

RESOLVED that members endorse the responses to each of the recommendations 
made by Asset Management and the Place Directorate as outlined in Section 4 of the 
report.

250. Strategic Risk Register Review - March 2018 (Cab.16.5.2018/8) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that Cabinet confirmed that the high level strategic risks articulated within the 
Strategic Risk Register fully reflect the current position of the Council: and

(ii) that Cabinet considers the content of the report and continues to commit to 
support the Corporate Risk Management process and the embedding of a Risk 
Management culture within the organisation.

Communities Spokesperson

251. Community Engagement Steering Group - Response to the Scrutiny Task and 
Finish Group (Cab.16.5.2018/9) 

RESOLVED that Members endorse the responses to each of the recommendations 
made by the Core Services and Communities Directorates as outlined in section 2 of 
the report.

Place Spokesperson

252. Greater Use of Enforcement Powers to Tackle Problematic Long-Term Empty 
Properties (Cab.16.5.2018/10) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that in order to more effectively tackle problematic long-term empty properties 
approval be granted for the use of:

 Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMOs);

Page 222



3

 Enforced Sale procedure through the use of delegated powers as mortgagee 
under the Law of Property Act (1925) and

 Compulsory Purchase Orders; and

(ii) that powers under the Acts set out below be delegated to the Service Director, 
Culture, Housing and Regulation insofar as they relate to tackling long-term 
empty properties:

 Housing Act 2004 – for Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMO)
 Building Act 1984 – for ruinous and dilapidated buildings
 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 – for maintenance and amenity of land
 Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 – for dealing with rats and mice
 Environmental Protection  Act 1990 (section 215) – for detriment being caused 

by condition of land and buildings.

The Responsibility for Executive Functions – Officer Delegations to be updated 
accordingly

253. Report on the Schools Capital Programme 2018/19 (Cab.16.5.2018/11) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the list of schemes, detailed in Appendices B and C of the report, be 
approved and financed from the 2018/19 Department for Education (DFE) 
School Condition Allocation;

(ii) that the Executive Director Place, in consultation with the Place Cabinet 
Spokesperson, be authorised to vary the programme of works, and to approve 
additional schemes to meet emerging priorities; and

(iii) that the financial implications arising from the report be included in the capital 
programme and released in accordance with the Financial Regulations Code of 
Practice C5.2(a).

254. Beever Street, Goldthorpe - Re-development (Cab.16.5.2018/12) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that approval be given to the proposal for the Council to build 7x 2-Bed 
bungalows and 1x 3-bed bungalow on the site of former properties at 1-37 
Beever Street due to be demolished over the coming months (agreed as part of 
Cab.20.4.2018/9).  The homes will be HRA properties, managed by Berneslai 
Homes and let to applicants on the Council’s Housing Waiting List; and

(ii) that approval be given to the proposal for the Council to appoint NPS 
Construction as part of the Joint Venture SLA as principal contractor to deliver 
the scheme.  NPS Construction will then deliver the scheme, appointing BH CS 
as a Sub-contractor.  The scheme will be funded from the HRA Capital 
Programme as a total project cost of £1,060,620 (£119,320 of which will be 
finded via 1-4-1 RTB receipts in line with ‘grant’ terms).

Page 223



4

People (Safeguarding) Spokesperson

255. Proposal to Amend the Current Payment Scheme for Barnsley In-House Foster 
Carers (Cab.16.5.2018/13) 

RESOLVED that approval be given to the proposed changes to the payment of 
allowances to Local Authority foster carers as summarised below:

 Increase the weekly payment at skills level 1 from £50 to £100
 Reduce the number of skills levels from 5 to 3
 Formalise the age-related skills payments and ensure that they both reflect the 

additional skills required to provide placements to older children and provide an 
incentive for carers to consider older children

 Allowances will continue to be paid at the National Minimum Standards rates.

…………………………….
Chair

Page 224



MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: Wednesday, 30 May 2018
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Houghton CBE (Chair), Andrews BEM, 
Cheetham, Gardiner, Howard, Miller, Platts and 
Saunders 

Members in Attendance: Councillors Franklin, Frost, Daniel Griffin, Pourali and 
Tattersall and Sheard
 

1. Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 

Councillor Roya Pourali declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute 6 (Barnsley 
Energy Tariff) in her capacity as a board member of Berneslai Homes.

2. Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions 

The Leader reported that no decisions from the previous meeting held on 16th May, 
2018 had been called in.

3. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 16th May 2018 (Cab.30.5.2018/3) 

The minutes of the meeting held on 16th May, 2018 were taken as read and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

4. Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.30.5.2018/4) 

The Record of Decisions taken by Cabinet Spokespersons under delegated powers 
during the week ending 11th May, 2018 were noted.

5. Petitions received under Standing Order 44 (Cab.30.5.2018/5) 

RESOLVED that the report notifying the receipt of the following petitions be noted 
and the recommended actions for responding to them be endorsed:-

(a) Containing the signatures of 4 electronic signatories, in respect of a request to 
resurface Estate Road, Viewlands at Silkstone Common in Barnsley.

In 2015 Cabinet approved the Highways Asset Management Strategy and 
Policy for the years 2016 to 2021. These documents set out our new approach 
to asset management. This has seen a change in the way we prioritise roads 
for treatments. We use Highway Survey condition data to develop our 
programs and have used this data for the 2018/19 program.

From the data available, unfortunately, Viewlands did not meet the criteria for 
inclusion in the coming program. However in the next financial year we will be 

Page 225

Item 38



2

updating our survey information and from this will develop the 2019/20 works 
program for which Viewlands will again be assessed.

It is recommended that the Service Director, Environment and Transport write 
to the lead petitioner to inform them of this situation.

Place Spokesperson

6. Barnsley Energy Tariff (Cab.30.5.2018/6) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that an open, OJEU-compliant tender process be undertaken to recruit a 
suitable domestic energy supply company partner to offer a dedicated energy 
tariff to Barnsley residents, as set out in the report now submitted;

(ii) that the award of the contract to the successful tenderer to establish a 
partnership agreement for a domestic energy supply be delegated to the 
Executive Director Place, or their authorised representative;

(iii) that delegated authority be given to the Executive Director Core Services to 
enter in to the agreement with the domestic energy supplier on behalf of the 
Council; and

(iv) that the strategic objectives of the domestic energy supply offer as set out at 
paragraph 4.4 of the report be agreed;

People (Safeguarding) Spokesperson

7. Refresh of the Barnsley Placement and Sufficiency Strategy for Children in 
Care 2017-20 (Cab.30.5.2018/7) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the outcome of the recent review of the current Barnsley Placement and 
Sufficiency Strategy, as detailed in the report submitted, be noted; and

(ii) that the refreshed Strategy for 2018-20, as summarised in paragraphs 4.2 to 
4.8 and detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, be approved for adoption.

8. Review of the Council's Section 75 Partnership Agreement (Mental Health) with 
South and West Yorkshire NHS Partnership Foundation Trust (SWYPFT) 
(Cab.30.5.2018/8) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the outcome of the review into the Council’s Section 75 Partnership 
Agreement with the South and West Yorkshire NHS Partnership Foundation 
Trust (SWYPFT), as detailed in the report now submitted, be noted;

(ii) that the termination of the Partnership Agreement with SWYPFT be agreed; 
and

Page 226



3

(iii) that the Council resumes direct management of the functions concerning 
mental health provision.

9. Exclusion of Public and Press 

RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items, because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as described by the specific paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended, as follows:-

Item Number Type of Information Likely to be Disclosed

10 Paragraph 3

Place Spokesperson

10. Wentworth Castle And Stainborough Park Heritage Trust (Cab.30.5.2018/10) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the preferred option for proceeding with the future of Wentworth Castle 
Gardens and Stainborough Park, as outlined in the report now submitted, be 
agreed; and

(ii) that the Executive Director Place in conjunction with the Executive Director 
Core Services and Cabinet Spokesperson for Place be delegated to agree 
Heads of Terms for the necessary Leases and Partnership Agreements and to 
authorise completion subject to complying with the financial criteria outlined at 
paragraph 7.10 of the report.

…………………………….
Chair

Page 227



This page is intentionally left blank



MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: Wednesday, 13 June 2018
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Andrews BEM, Bruff, Cheetham, Gardiner, 
Howard, Miller and Platts 

Members in Attendance: Councillors Franklin, Daniel Griffin, Pourali, Saunders 
and Tattersall
 

11. Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 

Councillor Roya Pourali declared non-pecuniary interests in Minutes 20 and 28 by 
virtue of her role as a member of the Berneslai Homes Board.

12. Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions 

The Leader reported that no decisions from the previous meeting held on 30th May, 
2018 had been called in.

13. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 30th May 2018 (Cab.13.6.2018/3) 

The minutes of the meeting held on 30th May, 2018 were taken as read and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

14. Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.13.6.2018/4) 

The Record of Decisions taken by Cabinet Spokespersons under delegated powers 
during the week ending 1st June, 2018 were noted.

15. Petitions received under Standing Order 44 (Cab.13.6.2018/5) 

It was reported that no petitions had been received under Standing Order 44.

Cabinet Spokesperson without Portfolio

16. Outside Body Representation - Changes to Ex-Officio Appointments - June 
2018 (Cab.13.6.2018/6) 

RESOLVED that the changes to the ex-officio appointments to outside bodies, as 
detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, be noted.

Page 229

Item 39



2

Core Services Spokesperson

17. Corporate Plan Performance Report - Quarter 4 ending 31st March, 2018 and 
2017/18 Year End (Cab.13.6.2018/7) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the Corporate Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 (January to March 
2018) and the 2017/18 Year-End, as detailed in the report now submitted, be 
noted;

(ii) that no areas for improvement or achievement have been suggested for 
follow-up at the year-end but initiatives were already in progress to address 
areas of concern; and

(iii) that the report be shared with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to inform 
and support their ongoing work programme.

18. Corporate Financial Summary for the 2017/18 Financial Year (Cab.13.6.2018/8) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the 2017/18 draft revenue final accounts position, as set out in the report 
now submitted, be noted;

(ii) that the service operational underspend of £0.633m be noted and the sum be 
approved to be transferred to the Authority’s strategic reserves in line with the 
updated Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS);

(iii) that the additional corporate resources received during the year of a net 
£6.290m be noted and this sum approved to be transferred to the Authority’s 
strategic reserves in line with the MTFS;

(iv) that the total strategic resources available for investment/budget support be 
£6.923m and subjected to a robust plan being developed to deliver the MTFS;

(v) that agreement be given to earmark the carry-forward revenue resources as 
identified in Section 4 and Appendix 1, subject to further reports being 
submitted for individual approvals where necessary;

(vi) that approval be given to write-off historical bad debt totalling £2.583m made 
up of £2.440m historical bad debts (General Fund) and £0.143m tenant 
arrears (HRA) as detailed in Section 7.3;

(vii) that the Invest to Grow investment of £1.466m in 2018/19 including £1.009m 
carried forward from 2017/18 be noted;

(viii) that the Section 151 officer be requested submit a further report on the overall 
outturn position if any significant adjustments arise following external audit 
scrutiny; and

Page 230



3

(ix) that the potential impact of the draft revenue final accounts position on the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, as outlined at Section 8 of the 
report, be noted.

19. Capital Programme Performance, Year Ended 31st March, 2018 
(Cab.13.6.2018/9) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the final position of the 2017/18 Capital Programme, as set out in the 
report now submitted, be noted;

(ii) that the 2017/18 scheme slippage totalling -£8.820m and scheme re-phasing 
totalling 31.239m (as referred to in paragraphs 3.6, 3.7 and Appendix B), be 
approved;

(iii) that approval be given to the total net decrease in scheme costs in 2017/18 of 
£1.547m (as detailed in paragraph 3.8 and Appendix B); and

(iv) that the updated 2018/19 Capital Programme position, as part of the Quarter 1 
monitoring report, be noted.

20. Provisional Revenue Final Accounts 2017/8 - Housing Revenue Account 
(Cab.13.6.2018/10) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the 2017/18 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) final accounts position, as 
detailed in the report submitted, be noted;

(ii) that the Section 151 officer submits a further report on the overall outturn 
position if there are significant adjustments to the accounts arising from 
external audit or other factors;

(iii) that approval be given to carry forward the underspend on the Berneslai 
Homes mobile working project; and

(iv) that any unallocated working balance be earmarked to support the Council’s 
strategic objectives particularly around housing growth.

21. Treasury Management Activities and Investment Performance, Annual Report 
2017/18 (Cab.13.6.2018/11) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the Treasury Management and Leasing Activities carried out during 
2017/18, as detailed in the report now submitted, be noted; and

(ii) that the Prudential and Treasury Indicators, as set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report, be noted.

Page 231



4

Communities Spokesperson

22. Libraries Review Consultation (Cab.13.6.2018/12) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the findings of the Library Review engagement activity, as detailed in the 
report now submitted, be noted;

(ii) that approval be given for consultation on the Library Strategy, as set out at 
Appendix C of the report; and

(iii) that a three month period of formal public consultation on the proposed model 
for Library Services, as detailed in Appendix H of the report, be approved.

Place Spokesperson

23. 2018 to 2020 - Updated Highways Capital Programme (Cab.13.6.2018/13) 

RESOLVED that the additional Capital investment into the existing 2018-2020 
Highways Capital Programme, as set out in the report submitted, be approved.

24. Fleet Vehicle Replacement Report (Cab.13.6.2018/14) 

RESOLVED that the replacement of up to £2.953m worth of vehicles/plant over the 
next 6 months, via a leasing scheme totalling approximately £0.491m annual revenue 
cost if all 77 vehicles are replaced, as set out in the report submitted, be authorised.

25. Implementation of a Pre-Construction Services Agreement (Cab.13.6.2018/15) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the current position of the procurement exercise to secure services of a 
Phase 2 main works contractor, as set out in the report submitted, be noted;

(ii) that the Executive Director Core Services be authorised to enter into a Pre-
Construction Services Agreement with shortlisted bidders at an estimated cost 
of £0.534m;

(iii) that delegated authority be approved for the Executive Director Core Services 
to enter into contract with Yorkshire Water for the production of detailed sewer 
designs associated with sewer diversion necessary for the progression of the 
Glass Works Phase 2 scheme;

(iv) that approval be given to the release of up to £0.200m, for the cost of detailed 
sewer design work undertaken by Yorkshire Water and their sub-contractor 
designers; and

(v) that the release of £0.100m be approved for the cost of additional procurement 
fees, with this cost being added to the overall cost update.

Page 232



5

People (Achieving Potential) Spokesperson

26. Validated Education Outcomes for Children and Young People in Barnsley 
2017: Foundation Stage to Key Stage 5 (Cab.13.6.2018/16) 

RESOLVED that the validated education outcomes for children and young people in 
Barnsley, covering Early Years Foundation Stage to Key Stage 5 in 2017, as set out 
in the report now submitted, be noted.

27. Exclusion of Public and Press 

RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items, because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as described by the specific paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended, as follows:-

Item Number Type of Information Likely to be Disclosed

28 Paragraph 3
29 Paragraph 1

Place Spokesperson

28. Housing Property Repairs and Improvement Partnership (PRIP) - Procurement 
Strategy (Cab.13.6.2018/18) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the findings of Key Stage One (Scope, Evaluation and Assess Options) of 
the agreed Property Repairs and Improvement Partnership (PRIP), as set out 
in the report, be noted; and 

(ii) that the PRIP contract be approved for tender on the basis of the Tender 
Strategy set out in Section 7 of the report.

Communities Spokesperson

29. Changes to Records Management Service Model Provision (Cab.13.6.2018/19) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that approval be given for the Records Management function to be outsourced 
to a specialist provider, as detailed in the report now submitted;

(ii) that a procurement process be initiated to award a contract to a third party 
supplier and provide a Records Management service for a maximum seven 
year contract term by 6th July, 2018; and

(iii) that all savings arising from the initiative be allocated against the Council’s 
Digital First programme.

Page 233



6

…………………………….
Chair

Page 234



MEETING: Cabinet
DATE: Monday, 2 July 2018
TIME: 10.00 am
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present Councillors Houghton CBE (Chair), Andrews BEM, 
Bruff, Cheetham, Franklin, Howard, Miller and Platts 

Members in Attendance: Councillors Frost, Pourali, Saunders and Tattersall
 

30. Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests 

Councillor Roya Pourali declared a non-pecuniary interest in Minute 35 (Council 
Nominations to the Berneslai Homes Board) as a current Member of the Berneslai 
Homes Board and as an applicant to the vacancies to the Board.

31. Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions 

The Leader reported that no decisions from the previous meeting held on 13th June, 
2018 had been called in.

32. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 13th June 2018 (Cab.2.7.18/3) 

The minutes of the meeting held on 13th June, 2018 were taken as read and signed 
by the Chair as a correct record.

33. Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.2.7.18/4) 

The Record of Decisions taken by Cabinet Spokespersons under delegated powers 
during the weeks ending 8th and 15th June, 2018 were noted.

34. Petitions received under Standing Order 44 (Cab.2.7.18/5) 

It was reported that no petitions had been received under Standing Order 44.

Cabinet Spokesperson without Portfolio

35. Council Nominations To The Berneslai Homes Board (Cab.2.7.2018/6) 

RECOMMENDED TO FULL COUNCIL ON 26TH JULY, 2018 that approval be given 
for the nomination of Councillors Coates and Pourali to the Berneslai Homes Board.

Core Services Spokesperson

Page 235

Item 40



2

36. Barnsley Council Annual Customer Feedback Report - Complaints, 
Compliments and Comments - April 2017 to March 2018 (Cab.2.7.2018/7) 

RESOLVED that the Annual Customer Feedback Report for Complaints, 
Compliments and Comments for the period April 2017 to March 2018, as detailed in 
the report now submitted, be noted.

37. Pay Award for JNC Officers/Chief Executives (Cab.2.7.2018/8) 

RESOLVED:-

(i) that approval be given to implement the recently agreed National Joint Council 
(NJC) Pay Award to employees on Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for 
Chief Officers/Chief Executives terms and conditions with effect from 1st April, 
2018 to 31st March, 2020, as set out in the report submitted; and

(ii) that approval be given to harmonise the JNC Chief Officers/Chief Executives 
future pay awards with those agreed by the National Joint Council (NJC).

38. 6 Monthly Analysis Of Selective Voluntary Early Retirement And Voluntary 
Severance - October 2017 to March 2018 (Cab.2.7.2018/9) 

RESOLVED that the Selective Voluntary Early Retirement and Voluntary Severances 
which have taken place in the period October 2017 to March 2018, as detailed in the 
report now submitted, be noted.

…………………………….
Chair

Page 236



Declarations of Interest contained within the Minute Book

The following Members declared an interest in the minutes indicated:-

Councillor Minute No. Subject Interest

Planning Regulatory Board
Cllr Noble 12 Planning Application 2017/0638 – Residential 

development of 97 no. dwelling houses with garages, 
parking spaces and public open space and associated 
roads and sewers.  Land off Lowfield Road, Bolton-upon-
Dearne

Non-Pecuniary – Working with 
friends of Lowfield Action Group in 
her capacity as a Local Ward 
Member

Audit Committee
Cllr Lofts 13 Draft Statement of Accounts 2017/18 Non-Pecuniary – Membership of 

the Local Pensions Board

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee
Cllrs Carr, Tattersall and 
Wilson

10 Ofsted Inspection of Local Authority Children’s Services Non-Pecuniary – Members of the 
Corporate Parenting Panel

Cllrs Carr, Tattersall and 
Wilson

12 Children’s Social Care Performance Cover Report Non-Pecuniary – Members of the 
Corporate Parenting Panel

Dearne Area Council
Cllr Sixsmith 42 Dearne Area Council Social Isolation Project Non-Pecuniary – Board member of 

Age UK Ltd

South Area Council
Cllrs Franklin and 
Shepherd

6 Young People’s Social Media Project Non-Pecuniary – Directors of 
Forge Community Partnership

Cllrs Franklin and 
Shepherd

7 Procurement and Financial Update Non-Pecuniary – Directors of 
Forge Community Partnership

P
age 237

A
genda A

nnex



Councillor Minute No. Subject Interest

Cabinet
Cllr Pourali 6 Barnsley Energy Tariff Non-Pecuniary – Board member of 

Berneslai Homes
Cllr Pourali 20 Provisional Revenue Final Accounts 2017/18 – Housing 

Revenue Account
Non-Pecuniary – Member of 
Berneslai Homes Board

Cllr Pourali 28 Housing Property Repairs and Improvements 
Partnership (PRIP) – Procurement Strategy

Non-Pecuniary – Member of 
Berneslai Homes Board

Cllr Pourali 35 Council Nominations to Berneslai Homes Board Non-Pecuniary – Current Member 
of Berneslai Homes Board and 
applicant to the vacancies to the 
Board

P
age 238


	Agenda
	6. Final Annual Governance Statement 2017/18
	7. Minutes
	Minutes (Ordinary meeting)

	11. Police and Crime Panel (Annual Meeting) - 4th June, 2018
	12. Police and Crime Panel - 2nd July, 2018
	13. South Yorkshire Pensions Authority (Annual) (Draft) - 7th June, 2018
	14. South Yorkshire Pensions Authority (Ordinary) (Draft) - 7th June, 2018
	15. Sheffield City Region Combined Authority (Draft) - 11th June, 2018
	16. South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority (Annual) (Draft) - 25th June, 2018
	17. South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority (Ordinary) (Draft) - 25th June, 2018
	18. Planning Regulatory Board - 22nd May, 2018
	19. Audit Committee - 6th June, 2018
	20. Planning Regulatory Board - 26th June, 2018
	21. Audit Committee (Special Meeting) - 2nd July, 2018
	22. General Licensing Panel - Various
	23. Appeals, Awards and Standards - Various
	24. Health and Wellbeing Board - 5th June, 2018
	25. Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 5th June, 2018
	26. Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 19th June, 2018
	27. Central Area Council - 14th May, 2018
	28. Dearne Area Council - 14th May, 2018
	29. North Area Council - 14th May, 2018
	30. North East Area Council - 31st May, 2018
	31. Penistone Area Council - 7th June, 2018
	32. South Area Council - 15th June, 2018
	34. Minor Amendments to the Council's Constitution
	35. Council Nominations To The Berneslai Homes Board (Cab.2.7.2018/6)
	36. Registration of Members Interests/Code of Conduct – Response to Audit Report (Cab.11.7.2018/7)
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	37. Cabinet Meeting - 16th May, 2018
	38. Cabinet Meeting - 30th May, 2018
	39. Cabinet Meeting - 13th June, 2018
	40. Cabinet Meeting - 2nd July, 2018
	 Schedule of Declarations - copy attached

